
 

 

putting residents first 
 

 
 
 
 

 
COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

 
(Budget Council Meeting) 

 
 
 

Wednesday 23 February 2011 
 

 
Hammersmith & Fulham Council 





 



  
The Mayor (Councillor Adronie Alford) 

Deputy Mayor (Councillor Frances Stainton) 
 

ADDISON 
 
 
Alex Chalk (C) 
Belinda Donovan (C) 
Peter Tobias (C) 

HAMMERSMITH  
BROADWAY 
 
Michael Cartwright (L) 
Stephen Cowan (L) 
PJ Murphy (L) 

RAVENSCOURT PARK 
 
 
Charlie Dewhirst (C) 
Lucy Ivimy (C) 
Harry Phibbs (C) 
 

ASKEW  
 
Lisa Homan (L) 
Caroline Needham (L) 
Rory Vaughan (L) 
 

MUNSTER 
 
Michael Adam (C) 
Adronie Alford (C) 
Alex Karmel (C) 

SANDS END 
 
Steve Hamilton (C) 
Ali de Lisle (C) 
Jane Law (C) 
 

AVONMORE & 
BROOK GREEN 
 
Helen Binmore (C) 
Joe Carlebach (C) 
Robert Iggulden (C) 
 

NORTH END 
 
 
Daryl Brown (L) 
Georgie Cooney (C) 
Tom Crofts (C) 

SHEPHERDS BUSH 
GREEN 
 
Iain Coleman (L) 
Andrew Jones (L) 
Mercy Umeh (L) 

COLLEGE PARK & 
OLD OAK 
 
Elaine Chumnery (L) 
Wesley Harcourt (L) 
 

PALACE RIVERSIDE 
 
 
Marcus Ginn (C) 
Donald Johnson (C) 
 

TOWN 
 
 
Oliver Craig (C) 
Stephen Greenhalgh (C) 
Greg Smith (C) 
 

FULHAM BROADWAY 
 
 
Victoria Brocklebank-
Fowler (C) 
Rachel Ford (C) 
Matt Thorley (C) 
 

PARSONS GREEN AND 
WALHAM 
 
Nicholas Botterill (C) 
Mark Loveday (C) 
Frances Stainton (C) 

WORMHOLT AND  
WHITE CITY 
 
Colin Aherne (L) 
Jean Campbell (L) 
Dame Sally Powell (L) 

FULHAM REACH 
 
Gavin Donovan (C) 
Peter Graham (C) 
Andrew Johnson (C) 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 



 
putting residents first 

SUMMONS 

Councillors of the London Borough of 
Hammersmith & Fulham 

are requested to attend the 
Budget Meeting of the Council on 
Wednesday 23 February 2011 
at Hammersmith Town Hall, W6 

 
The Council will meet at 7.00pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14 February 2011 
Town Hall Geoff Alltimes 
Hammersmith W6 Chief Executive 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Full Council 
Agenda 

 
23 February 2011 

 
 
Item  Pages 
1.  MINUTES  

 
726 - 747 

 To approve and sign as an accurate record the Minutes of the Special 
and Ordinary Council Meetings held on 26 January 2011. 
 

 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.  MAYOR'S/CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

 If a Councillor has any prejudicial or personal interest in a particular 
report he/she should declare the existence and nature of the interest at 
the commencement of the consideration of the item or as soon as it 
becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken, unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration, unless the disability 
has been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 

 There are no public questions to consider. 
 

 

6.  ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

 

6.1  REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX LEVELS 2011/12  
 
This report sets out proposals in respect of the revenue budget for the 
Council for 2011/12 including Council Tax levels, and deals with the 
precept from the Greater London Authority (GLA), together with 
ancillary issues. 
 

748 - 807 



6.2  CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2011/12 TO 2015/16  
 
This report sets out proposals in respect of the capital programme, 
together with ancillary issues. 

808 - 835 

6.3  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REPORT  
 
The report provides information on the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2011/12 including interest rate projections 
and borrowing and investment activity reports for the period April to 
December 2011. 
 
The report seeks approval for borrowing limits and authorisation for the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services to arrange the Council’s 
cashflow, borrowing and investments in the year 2011/12.  
 

836 - 862 

6.4  REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION - CHANGES TO 
OFFICER SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND MINOR 
AMENDMENTS  
 
The Council at its meeting on 26 May 2010 agreed revisions to the 
Constitution and re-adopted the document for the 2010/11 Municipal 
Year.   
 
This report proposes some in year amendments to reflect changes to 
Cabinet portfolio responsibilities and changes to the Schemes of 
Delegation as a result of the creation of a new Housing and 
Regeneration department. 
 

863 - 870 

6.5  COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCES SCHEME: REVISION  
 
This report performs the statutory annual review of Councillors’ 
allowances for the 2011/12 financial year, and takes into account the 
recommendations made in the Independent Remunerator’s report to 
London Councils (May 2010).  
 

871 - 880 

7.  SPECIAL MOTIONS  
 

 

 There are no special motions to consider. 
 

 

8.  INFORMATION REPORTS - TO NOTE (IF ANY)  
 

 

 There are no information reports to note.  
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. 

   
 
 

 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
(SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING) 

 
 
 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2011 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 726



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
. 

   

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 

The Mayor Councillor Adronie Alford 
Deputy Mayor Councillor Frances Stainton 

 
Councillors: 
 
 
Colin Aherne 
Helen Binmore 
Nicholas Botterill 
Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler 
Daryl Brown 
Jean Campbell 
Joe Carlebach 
Alex Chalk 
Elaine Chumnery 
Iain Coleman 
Georgie Cooney 
Oliver Craig 
Tom Crofts 
 

Charlie Dewhirst 
Belinda Donovan 
Gavin Donovan 
Rachel Ford 
Marcus Ginn 
Peter Graham 
Stephen Greenhalgh 
Steve Hamilton 
Wesley Harcourt 
Lisa Homan 
Lucy Ivimy 
Andrew Johnson 
Donald Johnson 
 

Andrew Jones 
Alex Karmel 
Jane Law 
Mark Loveday 
PJ Murphy 
Caroline Needham 
Harry Phibbs 
Sally Powell 
Greg Smith 
Matt Thorley 
Peter Tobias 
Mercy Umeh 
 

 
32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Michael Adam, Michael 
Cartwright, Stephen Cowan, Robert Iggulden, Ali de Lisle and Rory Vaughan. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

34. MAYOR'S/CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
The Mayor announced with sadness the recent death of former Councillor Ken 
Martindale. 
 
Councillor Colin Aherne paid tribute to Mr Ken Martindale. 
 
The Council observed a minute of silence in his memory. 
 

Page 727



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The Mayor congratulated the Deputy Lieutenant Wing Commander Mike Dudgeon 
on his promotion to Vice Lord Lieutenant and expressed Members’ thanks for his 
support to the borough during his time as Deputy Lieutenant. 
 
The new Deputy Lieutenant Mrs Sandy Cahill was welcomed and wished every 
success in her new role. 
 
The outgoing Deputy Lieutenant Wing Commander Mike Dudgeon was presented 
with the Borough Shield by the Mayor.  In response, he thanked the Council for its 
support during his tenure. 
 
The Mayor congratulated all the residents who received various honours in the 
New Year’s Day Honours list and offered the Council’s congratulations to Angela 
Clarke MBE who was present in the meeting. 
 
Mr Graeme Findlay, a member of the Residents Services Department, was  
commended for his recent service to his country.  Graeme served for 6 months last 
year in Afghanistan, as a Sapper in 217 Field Squadron, 33 Engineer Regiment.  
The Mayor presented Graeme with the Mayor’s Honour Award.   
 
Graeme gave a brief thank you speech in response. 
 
The Mayor’s Announcements were circulated and tabled at the meeting.  (Copy 
attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes). 
 

35. HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH - THE ROYAL YEOMANRY  
 
7.12pm - The report and recommendations were moved for adoption by the 
Leader, Councillor Stephen Greenhalgh.  Speeches on the report were made by 
Councillors Greenhalgh and Alex Karmel (for the Administration) and Lisa Homan 
(for the Opposition). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That pursuant to Section 249 (5) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 
by the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009) the 
Council confer the Honorary Freedom of the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham on The Royal Yeomanry in recognition of their gallant and outstanding 
military service to the Country. 
 
 
 
The Mayor presented a scroll to Lieutenant Colonel Newton Astbury, the 
Commanding Officer of the Royal Yeomanry on behalf of the Regiment.  The 
Commanding Officer made a speech thanking the Council for the honour bestowed 
on the Regiment. 

 
* * * * *   CONCLUSION OF BUSINESS    * * * * * 

 
 

 

Page 728



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 7.20 pm 

 
 
 
 

Mayor   
 
 
 

Page 729



Appendix 1 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY 
THE MAYOR 

 
1. I am sure everyone shares my sadness to hear of the recent death of a 

former Councillor Kenneth (Ken) Martindale on Wednesday 5th January 
2011 in London. Mr Kenneth Martindale, was elected as a Councillor 
representing Wormholt Ward from May 1986 until 1990.  
 
I invite you all to stand for one minute’s silence in his memory. 
 

2. I would like to congratulate our Deputy Lieutenant Wing Commander 
Mike Dudgeon on his promotion to Vice Lord Lieutenant and express 
our sincere thanks to him for his support to this borough during the time 
he has been our Deputy Lieutenant.  
 
I also want to welcome our new Deputy Lieutenant Mrs Sandy Cahill 
and wish her every success in her new role. We very much look 
forward to working with her. 
 

3. I would like to congratulate residents of our borough  who received  
various honours in the New Years Day Honours list 2011. Colin Gibbs 
OBE for his work as a senior lawyer in  the counter terrorism division of 
the Crown Prosecution Service, Peter Kyle OBE, Chief Executive of the 
Globe Theatre, Margaret Owen OBE,  Widows for Peace through 
Democracy, Jeff Vickers MBE for his work in the photographic industry 
and Angela Clarke MBE for her services to the local community. 
 

4. I would also like to commend Graeme Findlay for his recent service to 
his country. Graeme served for 6 months last year in Afghanistan, as a 
Sapper in 217 Field Squadron, 33 Engineer Regiment.  I am pleased to 
announce that Graeme will be the first recipient of the Mayor's Honour 
Award.  
 

5. On 28th October 2010, I attended a Halloween Fun Day event, Lyric 
Square, W6. 
 

6. On 28th October, I attended an event at Phoenix School, The Curve, 
W12. 
 

7. On 1st November, I attended the funeral of a former Councillor and 
Past Mayor, Mr Fred Inniss, West London Crematorium, Kensal Green, 
NW10. 
 

8. On 1st November, I attended Mrs Cynthia Hatcher Art Exhibition, 
Wimbledon Library Gallery, Wimbledon. 
 

9. On 3rd November, I attended the Hammersmith Society AGM, Holy 
Trinity Parish Hall, Brook Green, W14. 
 

Page 730



10. On 4th November, accompanied by my Consort, I attended a tour of 
Lambeth Palace. 
 

11. On 4th November, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended an 
Exhibition, Italian Cultural Institute, Belgrave Square, SW1. 
 

12. On 5th November, accompanied by my Mayoress and Consort, I 
attended and counted down H&F Fireworks Display, Bishops Park, 
SW6. 
 

13. On 10th November, I attended the official opening and blessing of the 
Olivier Centre, Lady Margaret School, SW6. 
 

14. On 10th November, I attended Bishop Creighton House AGM, Lillie 
Road SW6. 
 

15. On 10th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended the 
Bhavan Cultural Institute Diwali Banquet, The Millennium Hotel, SW1. 
 

16. On 11th November, I attended a Remembrance Day Service, St. John’s 
Church, Walham Green, SW6. 
 

17. On 11th November, I attended Fulham Society Artists and Potters 
event, Fulham Library, SW6. 
 

18. On 12th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended the GLA 
Annual Service of Remembrance, City Hall, SE1. 
 

19. On 12th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended a Charity 
Dinner, House of Commons, Westminster, SW1. 
 

20. On 13th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended the Lord 
Mayor's Show, Mansion House, EC4. 
 

21. On 13th November, accompanied by my Consort, I attended the Mayor 
of Ealing’s Charity Dinner, Karahi Palace, Cavendish Parade, TW4. 
 

22. On 14th November, accompanied by both my Mayoresses and Consort, 
I was honoured to take the salute at the Remembrance Day Parade 
and Service, Fulham. 
 

23. On 17th November, I attended the launch of the renewal proposal 2011 
- 2016 for HammersmithLondon (BID), which Councillor Greg Smith 
also attended, The Walt Disney Company, Queen Caroline Street, W6.  
 

24. On 18th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended the 
reception to mark the start of the 2011 Boat Race Season, Thames 
Rowing Club, Putney Embankment SW15. 
 

25. On 21st November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended Sir 
William Powell's Almshouses rededication ceremony, which the Bishop 
of Kensington gave the blessing, Sir William Powell's Almshouses, 
Church Gate, SW6. 
 

Page 731



26. On 22nd November, I attended with Councillor Alex Karmel a tour of 
Hammersmith Fire Station, Shepherds Bush Road, W6. 
 

27. On 24th November, I visited Henry Compton School, Kingwood Road, 
SW6. 
 

28. On 24th November, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended a 
Regiment Cocktail Party, Horseferry Road SW1. 
 

29. On 26th November, I was delighted to switch on Fulham Broadway 
Shopping Centre ‘Christmas Light’, Fulham Broadway, SW6.  
 

30. On 26th November, I attended the Youth Volunteers Award Ceremony, 
Assembly Hall, Hammersmith Town Hall.   
 

31. On 27th November, accompanied by my Consort, I attended the Mayor 
of Wandsworth Charity Police Ball and Dinner, British Genius, 
Battersea Park. 
 

32. On 28th November, I attended Albanian Independence Day celebration, 
Assembly Hall, Hammersmith Town Hall. 
 

33. On 28th November, I attended St Saviours Church ‘Start of Advent’ 
service, Cobbold Road, W12.  
 

34. On 29th November, accompanied by my Mayoress and Councillor Alex 
Karmel, I attended a tour of Fulham Fire Station, Fulham Road, SW6. 
 

35. On 30th November, I attended Nazareth House Pensioners Party, 
Hammersmith Road, W6.  
 

36. On 1st December, I attended the Jack Petchey’s "Speak Out" 
Challenge Regional Final for Hammersmith and Fulham, Hurlingham 
and Chelsea School, SW6. 
 

37. On 1st December, I attended the HAFTRA Christmas Party Quiz Night, 
Aspen Gardens, W6. 
 

38. On 2nd December, accompanied by my Mayoress, I was honoured to 
greet and welcome HRH The Duchess of Cornwall to the Borough. 
HRH The Duchess of Cornwall was guest of honour, Chelsea Harbour, 
SW10. 
 

39. On 4th December, I attended the Foodbank Third Collection charity 
event, Sainsbury's, Townmead Road, SW6. 
 

40. On 4th December, I attended and officially opened the Parsons Green 
Fair, Parson Green, SW6. 
 

41. On 4th December, I attended the Maggie’s Centre Christmas Fair, 
Charing Cross Hospital, W6. 
 

42. On 7th December, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended 
Larmenier and Sacred Heart School ‘Christmas Celebrations’, Brook 

Page 732



Green, W14. 
 

43. On 8th December, I attended Hammersmith United Charities Christmas 
Dinner, John Betts House. 
 

44. On 9th December, I attended Carols by Candlelight, Normand Park, 
SW6. 
 

45. On 10th December, I attended Mrs Phyllis Rae’s 100th Birthday 
celebration,  Rugby Mansions, Bishop Kings Road, W14. 
 

46. On 10th December, I attended Westfield London ‘Schools’ Competition’ 
event, Westfield London, W12. 
 

47. On 10th December, I attended St Augustine's School ‘Christmas Fair’, 
St Augustine's School, Disbrowe Road, W6. 
 

48. On 10th December, I attended and presented certificates at the London 
In Bloom Awards ceremony, Mayor’s Parlour, Hammersmith Town Hall. 
 

49. On 11th December, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended 
St Paul's Church Carols by Candlelight Service, Hammersmith, W6. 
 

50. On 13th December, I attended HMP Wormwood Scrubs ‘Carol Service’ 
The Chapel, Wormwood Scrubs, Du Cane Road, W12. 
 

51. On 14th December, I attended the Pan London Boroughs’ Citizenship 
Ceremony, City Hall, SE1. 
 

52. On 14th December, accompanied by the Deputy Mayor and my 
Mayoress, I attended a Community Carol Service, All Saints Church, 
Fulham, SW6. 
 

53. On 15th December, I attended Elgin Resource Centre ‘Art Exhibition’, 
Elgin Close, W12.  
 

54. On 15th December, I attended Lygon House ‘Christmas Tree Party’, 
Fulham Palace Road, SW6. 
 

55. On 16th December, I was delighted to attend Westfield London 
‘Schools’ Competition’ event and present cheques to the winning 
schools, Westfield London, W12. 
 

56. On 16th December, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended 
the Mayor of Redbridge charity service, The Chapel, Snaresbrook 
Crown Court, Redbridge. 
 

57. On 17th December, accompanied by the Deputy Mayor and both 
Mayoresses, I was delighted to attend and take the salute at London 
International Horse Show 2010, Olympia, W14. 
 

58. On 19th December, I attended a Community Carol Service, St Andrews 
Church, Star Road, W14. 
 

Page 733



59. On 21st December, I attended London Oratory School ‘Carol Service’, 
Brompton Oratory Church, Old Brompton Road, SW7. 
 

60. On 22nd December, I attended a Citizenship Ceremony during which, I 
presented each citizen with their official certificate, Council Chamber, 
Fulham Town Hall. 
 

61. On 22nd December, I visited Farm Lane Nursing Home and Past 
Mayor, William C Smith, Farm Lane, SW6. 
 

62. On 25th December, I was delighted to attend the H&F Pensioners 
Christmas Day lunch, Assembly Hall, Hammersmith Town Hall. 
 

63. On 1st January 2011, I attended the New Year's Day Parade, One 
Whitehall Place SW1. Albert & Friends, RLNI, Creative Kidz Stage 
School and Mayhew Animal Home represented our borough in aid of 
the Mayor’s chosen charity. 
 

64. On 2nd January, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended the 
Lord Mayor of Westminster’s reception, Westminster City Hall, SW1. 
 

65. On 2nd January, accompanied by both my Mayoresses, I attended the 
New Year's Day Parade Concert, Cadogan Hall, SW1. 
 

66. On 7th January, accompanied by my Mayoress, I was delighted to host 
a small reception and attend the performance of 'Salad Days’ in aid of 
my chosen charity the RNLI; other London borough Mayors also 
attended, Riverside Studios, W6. 
 

67. On 12th January, I attended a Citizenship Ceremony during which, I 
presented each citizen with their official certificate, Council Chamber, 
Fulham Town Hall. 
 

68. On 12th January, accompanied by my Consort, I attended the Opening 
of The Posk Exhibition, The Polish Centre, King Street, W6. 
 

69. On 13th January, I attended the London Government Dinner, Mansion 
House, EC4. 
 

70. On 16th January, I attended the Annual Chinese Church in London 
celebration, Assembly Hall, Hammersmith Town Hall, W6. 
 

71. On 17th January, I attended the BBCoutreach Community event, TV 
Centre Wood Lane, W12.  
 

72. On 20th January, I was delighted to attend Fulham Primary School 
Special  Assembly, Halford Road, SW6. 
 

73. On 20th January, I was honoured to attend the Metropolitan Police 
Commendation Ceremony and present a plaque to our retiring Borough 
Commander Kevin Hurley, which Councillor Greg Smith also attended, 
Small Hall, Hammersmith Town Hall, W6. 
 

Page 734



74. On 22nd January, I officially opened the Adult Community Learning 
Centre (ACLC) at Canberra Primary School, Australia Road, White 
City, W12. 
 

75. On 22nd January, I attended a match between Fulham Football Club vs. 
Stoke City Football Club, Stevenage Road, SW6. 
 

76. On 22nd January, accompanied by my Mayoress, I attended the Mayor 
of Greenwich Charity Gala Concert, The Old Library, Charlton House, 
SE7. 
 

77. On 24th January, accompanied by the Deputy Mayor and both 
Mayoresses, I was delighted to attend the 100th Year celebration of the 
White City Japan-British Exhibition 1910, Embassy of Japan, Piccadilly. 
 

78. On 25th January, I attended the Holocaust Memorial Day Ceremony, 
City Hall, City Hall, Queens Walk, SE1. 
 

79. On 26th January, I attended the funeral service of Mr Ken Martindale a 
former Councillor, Our Lady of Fatima RC Church, Commonwealth 
Avenue, W12.  
 

80. On 26th January, I hosted a reception for the Royal Yeomanry, to 
celebrate their achievements and to wish them well for their 
forthcoming tour of Afghanistan.  
      
 
 

Page 735



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. 

   
 
 

 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
(ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING) 

 
 
 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2011 
 
 

Page 736



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
. 

   

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 

The Mayor Councillor Adronie Alford 
Deputy Mayor Councillor Frances Stainton 

 
Councillors: 
 
 
Colin Aherne 
Helen Binmore 
Nicholas Botterill 
Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler 
Daryl Brown 
Jean Campbell 
Joe Carlebach 
Alex Chalk 
Elaine Chumnery 
Iain Coleman 
Georgie Cooney 
Oliver Craig 
Tom Crofts 
 

Charlie Dewhirst 
Belinda Donovan 
Gavin Donovan 
Rachel Ford 
Marcus Ginn 
Peter Graham 
Stephen Greenhalgh 
Steve Hamilton 
Wesley Harcourt 
Lisa Homan 
Lucy Ivimy 
Andrew Johnson 
Donald Johnson 
 

Andrew Jones 
Alex Karmel 
Jane Law 
Mark Loveday 
PJ Murphy 
Caroline Needham 
Harry Phibbs 
Sally Powell 
Greg Smith 
Matt Thorley 
Peter Tobias 
Mercy Umeh 
Rory Vaughan 
 

 
36. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the Council Meeting held on 27 October 2010 were confirmed and 
signed as an accurate record. 
 

37. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Michael Adam, Michael 
Cartwright, Stephen Cowan, Robert Iggulden and Ali de Lisle. 
 
 

38. MAYOR'S/CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
The announcements were made during the Special Council meeting. 
 

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Page 737



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

40. PETITIONS  
 

40.1 Irish Cultural Centre  
 
7.31pm - The Council received a petition opposing the Council’s proposal to 
consider disposing of the Irish Cultural Centre and requests it to reconsider the 
future of this building and its people.  It also requested the Council to help to 
preserve their excellent Cultural Programme, the broad spectrum of support and 
services it provides, and to maintain a centre for both the Irish in London, and 
the large number of users from all other backgrounds.  The petition organiser, 
Mr Jim O’Hara addressed the Council on the petition. 
 
Mr O’Hara responded to questions from Councillors Caroline Needham, Andrew 
Jones, Sally Powell, Daryl Brown, Stephen Greenhalgh and Joe Carlebach  
 
Councillor Joe Carlebach moved the report’s recommendation that officers 
undertake research into the matter and refer their findings to Cabinet on 7 
February 2011 for consideration, be agreed by the Council. 
 
Under Standing Order 13.2(b), Councillor Lisa Homan moved an amendment to 
the report to “Delete all after the first word and insert  “the Council urge the Cabinet 
to take the action requested in the petition”.  Councillor P J Murphy seconded the 
motion. 
 
Speeches on the amendment were made by Councillors Lisa Homan, P J Murphy 
and Daryl Brown (for the Opposition) and Councillor Georgie Cooney (for the 
Administration).  
 
The amended motion was put to the vote and a roll-call was requested: 
 
AGAINST FOR ABSTENTIONS 
Binmore 
Botterill 
Brocklebank-Fowler 
Carlebach 
Chalk 
Cooney 
Craig 
Crofts 
Dewhirst 
B Donovan 
Ford 
Ginn 
Graham 
Hamilton 
Ivimy 
A Johnson 
D Johnson 
Karmel 
Law 
Loveday 

Aherne 
Brown 
Campbell 
Chumnery 
Coleman 
Harcourt 
Homan 
Jones 
Murphy 
Needham 
Powell 
Umeh 

Alford 

Page 738



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Phibbs 
Smith  
Stainton 
Thorley 
Tobias 
 
 

AGAINST 25 
FOR 12 
ABSTENTIONS 1 

 
The motion was declared LOST. 
 
Councillor Botterill made a speech winding up the debate before the substantive 
motion was put to the vote. 
 
 

FOR 26 
AGAINST 12 
ABSTENTIONS 1 

 
 
The recommendation was declared CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That officers undertake research into the matter and refer their findings to Cabinet 
on 7 February 2011 for consideration. 
 

41. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 
There were none. 
 

42. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

42.1 Council Tax Base and Collection Rate 2011/12  
 
8.25pm - The report and recommendations were moved for adoption by the Deputy 
Leader, Councillor Nicholas Botterill. 
 
The report and recommendations were put to the vote: 
 

FOR  24 
AGAINST  0 
ABSTENTIONS  11 

 
The report and recommendations were declared CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 

Page 739



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the following recommendations for the 2011-2012 financial year be approved: 
 
(1)  the estimated numbers of properties for each Valuation Band, as set out in 

the report be approved; 
 
(2) an estimated Collection rate of 97.5% be approved; and 
 
(3)  the Council Tax Base of 79,799 Band “D” equivalent properties be approved. 
 

42.2 Treasury Management Mid Year review  
 
8.26pm - The report and recommendations were moved for adoption by the Deputy 
Leader, Councillor Nicholas Botterill. 
 
The report and recommendations were put to the vote: 
 

FOR  25 
AGAINST  0 
ABSTENTIONS  10 

 
The report and recommendation were declared CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Council’s debt, borrowing and investment activity up to the 30 September 
2010 be noted. 
 

42.3 New Byelaws for Pleasure Grounds, Public Walks and Open Spaces  
 
8.27pm - The report and recommendations were moved for adoption by the Deputy 
Leader, Councillor Nicholas Botterill. 
 
The report and recommendations were put to the vote: 
 

FOR  Unanimous  
AGAINST  0 
ABSTENTIONS  0 

 
The report and recommendations were declared CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 740



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

RESOLVED: 
 
 
(1) That the new model Byelaws (as set out in Appendix 1 to the report) be 

approved; and 
 
(2) That the Assistant Director (Legal and Democratic Services) be authorised to 

apply to the Secretary of State for the Department of Communities and Local 
Government for provisional approval of the proposed byelaws. 

 
 

43. SPECIAL MOTIONS  
 
Under Standing Order 15(e)(iii), Councillor Loveday proposed a motion that 
Special Motion 5 take precedence over Special Motions 3 and 4, which was 
agreed.  
 

43.1 Special Motion 1 - Community Based Budgeting  
 
8.27pm – Under Standing Order 14 (ii), Councillor Loveday proposed a motion that 
Special Motion 1 be withdrawn.  This was agreed. 
 

43.2 Special Motion 2 - H&F Homes  
 
8.28pm – Councillor Lucy Ivimy moved, seconded by Councillor Andrew Johnson, 
the special motion standing in their names: 
 
“This Council welcomes the clearly expressed preference of Council tenants that 
H&F Homes be returned to direct Council control and resolves to put this into 
effect.” 
 
Speeches on the special motion were made by Councillors Lucy Ivimy and Andrew 
Johnson (for the Administration). 
 
Under Standing Order 15(e) (vi), Councillor Caroline Needham moved, seconded 
by Councillor Lisa Homan, an amendment to the motion as follows: 
 
Delete all after "This Council" and replace with “regrets that this Council refused to 
carry out a one resident one vote referendum and instead chose to use a 
consultation where three of the five questions asked counted as a residents’ 
endorsement of the Conservative Administration’s plans to bring the housing 
management service back in house. 
 
We call on the Council to give residents genuine influence on how their homes are 
managed on an estate or area basis which includes the choice to terminate 
housing management contracts if they are receiving a poor service.” 
 
Speeches on the amendment were made by Councillors Caroline Needham, Lisa 
Homan and Andrew Jones (for the Opposition) and Councillors Nicholas Botterill 
and Andrew Johnson (for the Administration) before it was put to the vote: 
 

Page 741



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

FOR   12 
AGAINST  26 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared LOST.  
 
A speech on the substantive motion was then made by Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
(for the Administration). 
 
Councillor Lucy Ivimy (for the Administration) made a speech winding up the 
debate before the substantive motion was put to the vote:  
 
 

FOR   27 
AGAINST  12 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared CARRIED. 
 
8.53 pm – RESOLVED: 
 
That this Council welcomes the clearly expressed preference of Council tenants 
that H&F Homes be returned to direct Council control and resolves to put this into 
effect.  
 

43.3 Special Motion 5 - Blomfontein Road All Weather Football Pitch  
 
8.54 pm – Councillor Iain Coleman moved, seconded by Councillor Andrew Jones, 
the special motion standing in their names: 
 
“This Council recognises that the decrepit conditions of the all-weather football 
pitch at Blomfontein Road represents a very real danger in terms of health and 
safety to anyone using it. The Council therefore resolves to expedite the 
refurbishment of the services and maintenance of this facility without any further 
delay. 
 
The Council further resolves that this facility, which is located in the most deprived 
area of the borough, shall remain free of charge for the benefit of all local 
residents.” 
 
Speeches on the special motion were made by Councillors Iain Coleman and 
Andrew Jones (for the Opposition). 
 
Under Standing Order 15(e) (vi), Councillor Greg Smith moved, seconded by 
Councillor Mark Loveday, an amendment to the motion as follows: 
 
Delete all and insert: 
This Council: 
1. Recognises that the all-weather football pitch on South Africa Road needs 

improving. 

Page 742



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

2. Notes the tender process currently taking place for improving the facilities at 
South Africa Road. 

3. Looks forward to the new sports facilities (with free community use) opening 
in January 2012. 

 
Speeches on the amendment were made by Councillors Greg Smith and Stephen 
Greenhalgh (for the Administration) and Councillor Lisa Homan (for the Opposition) 
before it was put to the vote: 
 

FOR   Unanimous 
AGAINST  0 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared CARRIED. 
 
9.10 pm – RESOLVED: 
 
This Council: 
1. Recognises that the all-weather football pitch on South Africa Road needs 

improving. 
2. Notes the tender process currently taking place for improving the facilities at 

South Africa Road. 
3. Looks forward to the new sports facilities (with free community use) opening 

in January 2012. 
 

43.4 Special Motion 3 - Old Oak HS2/Crossrail Station  
 
9.11pm – Councillor Mark Loveday moved, seconded by Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh, the special motion standing in their names: 
 
“This Council welcomes: 
 
1. The work of the coalition of local authorities, Park Royal Partnership, Mayor 

for London and others that has supported the case for a major new High 
Speed Rail/Crossrail interchange at Old Oak Common. 

2. The government’s commitment to the “High Speed 2” railway scheme with a 
major London rail hub at Old Oak Common. 

3. The opportunity to regenerate the railway and industrial land at Old Oak 
Common, including the potential for over 10,000 new homes, 5,000 new 
jobs and major transport and community benefits. 

 
 
This Council: 
 
1. Supports the regeneration of the railway and industrial land within the Park 

Royal Opportunity Area around the proposed HS2/Crossrail interchange. 
2. Pledges itself to working with HS2 Ltd, site owners, government and the 

Mayor for London to deliver sustainable benefits for residents in one of the 
most disadvantaged parts of London. 

Page 743



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

3. Commits itself to protect and enhance the natural amenities of Wormwood 
Scrubs within the redevelopment of Old Oak Common.” 

 
Speeches on the special motion were made by Councillors Mark Loveday and 
Stephen Greenhalgh (for the Administration). 
 
Under Standing Order 15(e) (vi), Councillor Wesley Harcourt moved, seconded by 
Councillor Elaine Chumnery, an amendment to the motion as follows: 
 
Add a new final paragraph. 
 
4. “This Council pledges to involve the current residents and ward councillors 

in its development planning and building a consensus for its plan that will 
include affordable housing that will meet the needs of those people on the 
housing waiting list.” 

 
Speeches on the amendment were made by Councillors Wesley Harcourt and 
Elaine Chumnery (for the Opposition) and Councillors Nicholas Botterill and Mark 
Loveday (for the Administration) before it was put to the vote: 
 

FOR   Unanimous 
AGAINST  0 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared CARRIED. 
 
 
9.34 pm – RESOLVED: 
 
That the Council welcomes: 
1. The work of the coalition of local authorities, Park Royal Partnership, Mayor 

for London and others that has supported the case for a major new High 
Speed Rail/Crossrail interchange at Old Oak Common. 

4. The government’s commitment to the “High Speed 2” railway scheme with a 
major London rail hub at Old Oak Common. 

5. The opportunity to regenerate the railway and industrial land at Old Oak 
Common, including the potential for over 10,000 new homes, 5,000 new 
jobs and major transport and community benefits. 

 
That the Council: 
 
1. Supports the regeneration of the railway and industrial land within the Park 

Royal Opportunity Area around the proposed HS2/Crossrail interchange. 
2. Pledges itself to working with HS2 Ltd, site owners, government and the 

Mayor for London to deliver sustainable benefits for residents in one of the 
most disadvantaged parts of London. 

3. Commits itself to protect and enhance the natural amenities of Wormwood 
Scrubs within the redevelopment of Old Oak Common. 

4. Pledges to involve the current residents and ward councillors in its 
development planning and building a consensus for its plan that will include 

Page 744



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

affordable housing that will meet the needs of those people on the housing 
waiting list. 

 
43.5 Special Motion 4 - Local Housing Allowance  

 
9.35pm – Councillor Peter Graham moved, seconded by Councillor Andrew 
Johnson, the special motion standing in their names: 
 
“This Council: 
 
(1) Endorses the statement that “Housing Benefit will be reformed to ensure that 

we do not subsidise people to live in the private sector on rents that other 
ordinary working families could not afford”: (A Future Fair For All: The Labour 
Party Manifesto 2010). 

(2) Notes: 
•  that new rules will be implemented from April 2011 for those who receive 

Housing Benefit in the form of Local Housing Allowance; 
•  that social housing tenants, and anyone who started receiving payments 

for a property prior to April 2008, will not be affected by the new Local 
Housing Allowance rules, and; 

•  the wider changes to the benefits system from 2013 onwards; 
(3) Resolves: 

•  to assist households whose rent becomes unaffordable to negotiate lower 
rents with their landlords and; 

•  when renegotiation of rents is not feasible, to make discretionary 
payments to those with special circumstances and; 

•  to assist other households in finding affordable properties as near as 
possible to the tenants’ preferred location.” 

 
Speeches on the special motion were made by Councillors Peter Graham and 
Andrew Johnson (for the Administration). 
 
Under Standing Order 15(e) (vi), Councillor Lisa Homan, seconded by Councillor 
Caroline Needham, moved an amendment to the motion as follows: 
 
Delete all after "This Council" and replace with: 
 
“regrets the simplistic and inaccurate caricature the Tory led government is 
peddling to sell its housing benefits and LHA cuts and instead recognise the 
assessment of Shelter, the leading independent housing and homeless charity, 
that “The vast majority of HB claimants are either pensioners, those with 
disabilities, people on low incomes, and only one in eight people who receive HB is 
unemployed”. 
 

Page 745



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The Council is concerned about the possibility of unprecedented levels of 
homelessness these cuts will cause and notes that the Conservative 
Administration claims only 1,300 Hammersmith and Fulham households will be 
affected in some way but this contradicts with the Department of Work and 
Pensions assessment that 2,670 Hammersmith and Fulham household will be 
affected by these cuts.  The Council urges the Conservative Administrative to take 
an objective approach to managing this issue and not to downplay the numbers of 
people affected. 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 
• To assist households whose rent becomes unaffordable to negotiate lower 

rents with their landlord 
• Use the governments discretionary payment funding to help those families 

affected 
• Take the Conservative led government’s advice that any arrears because of 

a loss of HB/LHA should be treated as beyond the tenant’s control and that 
those households facing the loss of their home should be treated as 
“unintentionally homeless”. 

 
Speeches on the amendment were made by Councillors Lisa Homan, Caroline 
Needham, P J Murphy and Andrew Jones (for the Opposition) and Councillors 
Lucy Ivimy, Andrew Johnson and Mark Loveday (for the Administration) before it 
was put to the vote: 
 

FOR   11 
AGAINST  27 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared LOST. 
 
Speeches on the substantive motion were then made by Councillor Marcus Ginn  
and Mark Loveday (for the Administration). 
 
Councillor Peter Graham (for the Administration) made a speech winding up the 
debate before the substantive motion was put to the vote:  
 
 

FOR   27 
AGAINST  11 
ABSTENTIONS 0 

 
The motion was declared CARRIED. 
 
10.24 pm – RESOLVED: 
 
That the Council: 
 
(1) Endorses the statement that “Housing Benefit will be reformed to ensure 

that we do not subsidise people to live in the private sector on rents that 

Page 746



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

other ordinary working families could not afford”: (A Future Fair For All: The 
Labour Party Manifesto 2010). 

(2) Notes: 
•  that new rules will be implemented from April 2011 for those who receive 

Housing Benefit in the form of Local Housing Allowance; 
•  that social housing tenants, and anyone who started receiving payments 

for a property prior to April 2008, will not be affected by the new Local 
Housing Allowance rules, and; 

•  the wider changes to the benefits system from 2013 onwards; 
(3) Agrees: 

•  to assist households whose rent becomes unaffordable to negotiate lower 
rents with their landlords and; 

•  when renegotiation of rents is not feasible, to make discretionary 
payments to those with special circumstances and; 

•  to assist other households in finding affordable properties as near as 
possible to the tenants’ preferred location. 

44. INFORMATION REPORTS - TO NOTE (IF ANY)  
 
There were no information reports to this meeting of the Council.  
 
 

* * * * *   CONCLUSION OF BUSINESS    * * * * * 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 10.27 pm 

 
 

Mayor   
 
 
 

Page 747



  

 

Report to Council 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

 

LEADER 
Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh 

REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 
LEVELS 2011/12 
 
This report sets out proposals in respect of the 
revenue budget for the Council for 2011/12 
including Council Tax levels, and deals with the 
precept from the Greater London Authority 
(GLA), together with ancillary issues. 
 

Wards 
 
All 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
All Departments 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
1. To note the Council Tax freeze  for the 

Hammersmith & Fulham element for 
2011/12.  For planning purposes, there 
will be no change for 2012/13 and 
2013/14. 

 
2. The Council Tax be set for 2011/12 for 

each category of dwelling, as calculated 
in accordance with Sections 30 to 47 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, as outlined below and in full in 
Appendix A: 

 
(a) The element of Council Tax 

charged for Hammersmith & 
Fulham Council will be £811.78 per 
Band D property in 2011/12. 

 
(b) The element of Council Tax 

charged by the Greater London 
Authority will be £309.82 per Band 
D property in 2011/12. 

 
(c) The overall Council Tax to be set 

will be £1,121.60 per Band D 
property in 2011/12. 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 748



  

Category of 
Dwelling 

A B C D E F G H 

Ratio 6/9 
£ 

7/9 
£ 

8/9 
£ 

1 
£ 

11/9 
£ 

13/9 
£ 

15/9 
£ 

18/9 
£ 

a) H& F 541.19 631.38 721.58 811.78 992.18 1,172.57 1,352.97 1,623.56 
b)GLA  206.55 240.97 275.40 309.82 378.67 447.52 516.37 619.64 
c)Total  747.74 872.35 996.98 1,121.60 1,370.85 1,620.09 1,869.34 2,243.20 
 
 3. The Council’s own total net expenditure 

budget for 2011/12  is set as £189.289m 
 
4. That fees and charges are approved as 

set out in paragraph 4.4. 
 
5. That the Director of Finance and 

Corporate Services’ budget projections to 
2013/14 be noted. 

 
6. That the Director of Finance and 

Corporate Services’ statements under 
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 
2003 regarding adequacy of reserves and 
robustness of estimates be noted (section 
13). 

 
7. That the Director of Finance and 

Corporate Services be authorised to 
collect and recover National Non-
Domestic Rate and Council Tax in 
accordance with the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 (as amended), the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and the 
Council Schemes of Delegation. 

 
8. That all Chief Officers be required to 

report monthly on their projected financial 
position compared to their revenue 
estimates (as part of the Corporate 
Monitoring Report). 

 
9. That all Chief Officers be authorised to 

implement their service spending plans 
for 2011/12 in accordance with the 
recommendations within this report and 

Page 749



  

the Council's Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations and relevant Schemes of 
Delegation and having due regard to the 
Council’s general equality duties. 

 
10.Members attention is drawn to S106 of the 

Local Government Finance Act 1992 which 
requires any Member who is two months 
or more in arrears on their Council Tax to 
declare their position and not to vote on 
any issue that could affect the calculation 
of the budget or Council Tax. 

 
 

 
 

Page 750



  

1 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is obliged by legislation to set a balanced budget.  It also has 

responsibility to set the Council Tax every year in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1992. 

 
1.2 The calculation of the Council Tax is made up from the following elements: 

• the recommended net Council budget for 2011/12 (sections 2 to 6); 
• the Aggregate External Support estimated by the Council (section 7); 
• the Council Tax base set at Council on 26th January 2011 (section 8); 
• the precept notified by the Greater London Authority (section 9). 
 

1.3 The requisite calculation for the Council’s share of the Council Tax is set out in 
Appendix A. 

 
2 BUDGET OVERVIEW  
 
2.1 Last year Britain’s fiscal deficit was the largest in its peacetime history – the state 

borrowed one pound for every four that it spent. The Coalition Government came 
to power in May 2010 with a policy of accelerating the response to the deficit in the 
public finances. In June in-year savings of £6.2bn were announced.  Local 
government’s share was £1.16bn of which Hammersmith and Fulham’s revenue 
grant reduction, excluding schools, amounted to £2.3m. The Local Government 
Finance Settlement (LGFS) announced on 13th December 2010 confirmed that the 
Coalition Government aim to tackle this deficit (£81bn) over the next four years. 
For local government, excluding schools, this means an average funding reduction 
of 8.5% in 2011/12 and 28.5% by 2014/15. For Hammersmith and Fulham, as a 
grant ‘floor’ authority the funding reduction is even greater. Formula Grant will fall 
by 11.3% in 2011/12 and by a further 7.4% the year after.  

 
2.2 The LGFS 2010 did not just set financial targets. Radical changes were 

announced regarding the local government finance system with 90 specific grant 
funding streams reduced to just 9. Only 1 ring-fenced grant remains – the 
dedicated schools grant. These changes not only require the council to account for 
such resources in a different way but also represent a shift in power away from 
central government. A greater proportion of resources can now be allocated in line 
with local priorities. 

 
2.3 The budget proposals now presented address these twin challenges. The Council 

is playing its part in tackling the fiscal deficit whilst focusing available resources on 
key local priorities. Front-line services and council tax payers are protected as far 
as possible (a council tax freeze is proposed for 2011/12, following a 3% 
reduction each year over the last 4 years) with a continued emphasis on value 
for money. A number of new cross-cutting transformational projects are to be 
taken forward both within the Council and with other partners – such as 

Page 751



  

collaborative working with the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and City 
of Westminster.  

    
2.4 The scale of the financial challenge facing the Council is summarised in Appendix 

B. Savings of nearly £27m are required to balance the budget in 2011/12 
(12% of the Base Budget). This savings requirement increases to £64.2m by 
2013/14 (29% of the Base Budget).  

 
2.5 It is against this demanding background that the Council’s revenue budget 

proposals are now presented to Council for approval.   
 
3 THE BUDGET REQUIREMENT 

 
 

3.1 The Director of Finance and Corporate Service’s medium term projection of the 
Council budget requirement to 2013/14 is set out in Appendix B and summarised 
in Table 1 for 2011/12.  
 
Table 1: The Budget Requirement 
 

 £000s 
2010/11 Original Budget  184,345 
Add: Grant Funded Expenditure now Mainstreamed (para 4.1 refers) 39,059 
Less: Adjustment made for Economic Slowdown (850) 
2010/11 Adjusted Budget 222,554 
  
Plus  
Inflation (para 4.3 refers) 2,721 
Growth  11,797 
Unallocated core revenue grant (para 4.1 refers) 2,409 
Less  
Efficiency Savings and Income Generation (26,709) 
Net Drawdown from Earmarked Reserves (para  4.5 refers)  (3,342) 
Gross Council Budget 2011/12 209,430 
  
Less  
Core Revenue Grants (unringfenced) (20,141) 
Budget Requirement 189,289 
  
Funded From:  
Formula Grant (para 7.1 refers) (124,510) 
Council Tax  (section 8 refers) (64,779) 
 (189,289) 
 
 

Page 752



  

3.2 The relevant Service Directors and Cabinet Members, in conjunction with the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services have considered the detail of the 
individual estimates. Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services is required to include in budget reports 
a statement of her view of the robustness of the estimates for 2011/12 included in 
the report. This statement is set out section 13. 

 
4 Budget Assumptions  
   
4.1 Grant Expenditure Now Mainstreamed. The Local Government Finance 

Settlement has provided for a significant devolution of financial control to councils. 
The number of separate core grants has reduced from over 90 to just 9 with just 1 
ringfenced grant, dedicated schools grant – which is excluded from the Council’s 
budget requirement, remaining in 2011/12.  A new public health grant will also be 
ringfenced but the timing and amount of this is not yet confirmed. The transition 
from the old system to the new system is quite complex.  

 
• Some grants have been rolled into formula grant. 
• Some grants have been rolled into the new core revenue grants. 
• Some funding streams have stopped or appear to have increased. 
• The position of some grants is not yet clear. 
 

4.2 The latest known position is set out in Appendix F. Excluding the ring-fenced 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), overall grant funding is estimated to have 
reduced by £23m from 2010/11 to 2011/12 – of which £7m is Specific and Area 
Based Grant funding (ABG) .  Expenditure of £39m, which was previously funded 
through Area Based Grant (ABG), or from one of the new unringfenced core 
revenue grants, is now under local control and is mainstreamed within the budget 
requirement.  

 
4.3 Inflation. In order to contain growth, no inflation has been applied except where 

there is a contract in place.  A pay freeze is expected and no inflation has been 
built into the 2011/12 salary budgets. It has also been decided not to hold an 
inflation contingency for future pay awards but to increase the general contingency 
instead.  This is because the uncertainty around the future economy makes it 
impossible to predict how financial pressures will manifest.  The only certainty is 
that there will be pressures. Current inflation is above the long-term government 
target and sensitivity analysis has been undertaken to identify the potential impact 
should this be on-going. This is identified as a risk in Appendix E 

 
4.4 Fees and Charges. The budget has been prepared on the basis of an average 

2% increase in fees and charges.  Exceptions to the average 2% inflationary uplift 
are detailed in Appendix G.  

 
 
 

Page 753



  

4.5 Pensions. The funding position of the pension fund is measured by the Council's 
actuary every three years and the Council has now received the draft actuarial 
valuation results for 31st March 2010.  The funding level has increased from 70% 
to 74% over the three year period from 31st March 2007 to 31st March 2010 and 
this has enabled the Council to maintain its current employer contribution rate of 
24.7% for the next three years without  need for further increases.  The valuation 
report is currently still in draft and will not be signed off by the actuary until 31st 
March 2011, as it is possible that the government may announce changes to the 
local government pension scheme which could affect the valuation.  Any changes 
would most likely improve the position on the pension fund further. 

 
4.6 Net Drawdown from Earmarked Reserves. At the close of 2009/10 the Council 

had earmarked reserves of £32m. It is now proposed that £3.3m be drawn down 
as part of the 2011/12 budget. This relates to a reserve set aside for the transition 
from the Area Based Grant (ABG) regime. This is no longer required following the 
abolition of ABG. £1.97m will also be drawn down, from a planned underspend 
and other balances, to meet Adult Social Care Spend pressures. It is intended that 
use of this funding be one-off with spend pressures addressed as part of next 
years budget process. 

 
5 GROWTH 

 
5.1 In the course of the budget process departments have identified areas where 

additional resources are required.  Additional requirements are detailed in 
Appendix C and summarised in Table 2 below for 2011/12. 

 
Table 2: Growth Proposals 
 

  £000s 
 Children’s Services 150 
 Community Services 2,837 
 Environment Services 0 
 Finance and Corporate Services 547 
 Regeneration and Housing 2,313 
 Residents Services 1,600 
 Corporate Items (includes post Spending Review growth) 4,350 
 Total Growth 11,797 

.   
5.2 Table 3 summarises why budget growth is required 
 

Table 3: Reasons for Budget Growth 
 £’000s 
Council Priorities 1,950 
Government 3,753 
Other Public Bodies    2,350 
Demographic and Cost Pressures 1,719 

Page 754



  

Redundancy costs 1,500 
Other 525 
Total Growth 11,797 

 
5.3 The main Council priority supported is £1.6m for the on-going provision of 

extended beat policing in the three town centres (this is subject to an appropriate 
agreement being reached with the Metropolitan Police that achieves adequate 
value for money). This funding was previously met from earmarked reserves.  

 
5.4 £4.1m of growth is directly attributable to government policy. The main increase 

(£1.96m) relates to the proposed reduction in the cap on rent levels supported by 
housing benefit. This reduces the income receivable by the council regarding those 
properties it has rented/leased from landlords to house homeless persons.  

 
5.5 £2.5m of growth relates to other public bodies. A significant element relates 

(£0.6m) to the freedom pass. There are a number of reasons for such growth 
including a move towards new usage data, changes in government funding and 
cost increases from the transport operators.  

 
5.6 The unprecedented level of savings that the Council is required to deliver will 

inevitably result in an increased number of redundancies. Whilst action will be 
taken to keep these to a minimum the Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
considers it prudent to increase the existing provision, £1.2m, by a further £1.5m.  

 
5.7 The financial environment in which the Council operates has become more 

challenging.  Departments have identified a number of risks for future years 
(Appendix E).  These reflect the unprecedented level of savings required to 
address the fiscal deficit.  

 
6 SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION 

 
6.1 Over £64m of savings are required to balance the budget over the next 3 years. In 

bringing forward proposals to meet this challenge the Council has: 
• Looked to protect front-line services. 
• Continued to focus on asset rationalisation to reduce accommodation costs 

and deliver debt reduction savings. 
• Built on previous practice of seeking to deliver the best possible service at 

the lowest possible cost. Effective budget management is essential. 
• Considered thoroughly what benefits can be obtained from 

commercialisation and competition. 
• Recognised that more cross-cutting action is necessary. A number of 

council wide transformation projects, such as Smart Working, World Class 
Financial Management and a Business Support Review, have been put in 
place to deliver savings. 

• Taken forward working collaboratively with others. In the past couple of 
years progress was made regarding integration with the PCT (for which 

Page 755



  

different arrangements now apply). New collaborative working proposals 
are now proposed with City of Westminster and Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea with discussions on-going. Other shared service 
solutions will be taken forward as and when appropriate. 

 
6.2 The saving proposals put forward are detailed in Appendix D with the 2011/12 

position summarised in Table 1. 
 

Table 4: Savings Proposals 
 

  £000s 
Children’s Services 6,515 
Community Services 6,103 
Environment Services 4,802 
Finance and Corporate Services 3,876 
Housing and Regeneration 923 
Residents Services 3,791 
Corporate Items 700 
Total Savings 26,709 

 
6.3 A categorisation of the savings is shown in Table 5.  Posts will need to be deleted 

and the latest estimate of the reduction in employee numbers is identified.  Job 
losses through redundancy will be kept to a minimum by focusing on vacant posts, 
controlling recruitment, improving redeployment procedures and releasing agency 
staff but significant numbers of redundancies are unavoidable. Some savings fit 
within more than one category – for the purposes of this analysis they are 
categorised according to the main element.  

 
Table 5:  Analysis of the 2011/12 Savings  
 
Type of Saving  £’000s 
Efficiencies (4,354) 
Staffing / Productivity (4,801) 
Commissioning (856) 
Procurement/Market Testing (2,841) 
Commercialisation / Income (3,996) 
Family Support Services Restructuring (3,260) 
Transformation Projects (1,936) 
Alternative Funding Regimes / Miscellaneous (1,383) 
Reconfiguration/Rationalisation of Services (911) 
Voluntary Sector Grants (500) 
Debt Reduction (700) 
Buildings (665) 
Sharing Services with Royal Borough of Kensington & 
Chelsea and City of Westminster 

(506) 
Total (26,709) 

Page 756



  

  
Job Reductions (Full-Time Equivalents) (339) 
 
 
 

7. EXTERNAL FUNDING 
 

7.1 Formula Grant. The Government announced a new 2-year Local Government 
Finance Settlement starting in 2011/12.  The Council will receive Formula Grant of 
£124.5m – a decrease of £15.9m from the comparable 2010/11 allocation.  A 
comparison against the London and National Position is set out in Table 6.  

 
Table 6: Formula Grant Decreases 
 
 2011/12 2012/13 
Hammersmith and Fulham -11.3% -7.4% 
Inner London -11.2% -7.4% 
Outer London -11.3% -7.9% 
National Average -9.9% -7.3% 

 
7.2 Hammersmith and Fulham will be a ‘floor’ authority for each year of the settlement. 

In a change from previous years authorities with social services responsibilities 
have been placed in 4 different ‘floor’ bands. Those authorities, including this 
council, that are most dependant on formula grant (i.e. have the lowest share of 
their budget requirement funded from council tax) have been placed in Band 1.  
Hammersmith and Fulham is in Band 1 – formula grant accounts for 66% of the 
net budget requirement in 2010/11.  In comparison, formula grant accounts for 
18% of the budget requirement for Richmond LB.  Given this low dependency, 
Richmond LB is in Band 4.  The impact on the respective Bands is set out in Table 
7.   

 
Table 7: Floor Bands  

 
Floor band 

 
2011/12 
floor 

2012/13 
floor 

Band 1 (most dependent) -11.3% -7.4% 
Band 2  -12.3% -8.4% 
Band 3 -13.3% -9.4% 
Band 4 (least dependent) -14.3% -10.4% 

   
 
7.3 A consultation paper was issued in the summer on potential changes to the 

2011/12 formula grant system. The options put forward largely updated and fine-
tuned the existing system. The exception was the use of new data for the Area 
Cost Adjustment (ACA) – this recognises the higher cost of labour in certain parts 
of the country – which would disadvantage London. The changes to the ACA have 

Page 757



  

been accepted and Hammersmith and Fulham’s notional formula grant figure is 
now £30m below the actual grant (previously the figure was £24m below). Were 
the ‘floor’ arrangements not in place this authority would be £30m worse-off. 
Unless radical changes are made to the formula grant system this authority will be 
at the ‘floor’ for the foreseeable future.    

 
7.4 The Council continues to press for long term change. The coalition agreement set 

out plans to undertake a Local Government Resource Review. This is expected to 
commence in January 2011. Ministers have also indicated that they consider the 
current formula grant system to lack both clarity and common sense.  

 
7.5 Core Revenue Grants (unringfenced). Details of the new unringfenced core 

revenue grants are set out in Table 8. The amount of grant funding was not 
confirmed until the Local Government Finance Settlement was published and 
further work is required to fully understand these funding streams. Out of the total 
grant allocation of £20.1m it is currently proposed that £2.4m be held in a 
contingency. This will allow the Council more time to properly consider how use of 
this funding is prioritised. 

 
Table 8: Core Revenue Grants (unringfenced) 
 

Grant Amount Notes 
 £’000s  

Early Intervention Grant 9,429 This is a new grant that is intended to 
give local areas the freedom and flexibility 
to invest in early intervention. It is pulled 
together from a number of old specific 
grants (such as Sure Start) and ABG. 

Learning Disabilities Grant 3,962 This is replacement funding. It reimburses 
the Council with budgets that have 
transferred from the PCT. 

New Homes Bonus 909 
(estimated) 

This is new. It rewards Councils where 
new homes are built by match funding the 
Council Tax for six years. 

Council Tax Freeze Grant 1,619 This is new. It rewards Councils, like this 
authority, that freeze their 2011/12 
council tax levels. The grant is equivalent 
to a 2.5% increase in 2011/12 council tax.  

Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Administration 
Grant 

2,288 This grant continues from previous years 
but is reduced from 2010/11 by £0.151m. 

Preventing Homelessness 1,775 This continues from previous years but is 
£0.5m higher than in 2010/11.  

Lead Flood Authority 159 This is new and intended to fund the new 
roles for the council under the Floods and 
Water Management Act 2010 

Page 758



  

Total 20,141  
 
Note: Confirmation is still awaited on the allocation for the PFI grant. 
 

7.6 Core Revenue Grants (ringfenced). Funding for schools continues to be 
provided through ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant. The 2011/12 allocation for 
Hammersmith and Fulham will not be known until June 2012. Significant changes 
have been made to the funding formula with the inclusion of a new pupil premium 
for disadvantaged children. The direct government funding of this service requires 
the Council to exclude it from its budget requirement.  
 

7.7 In summary major changes have been made to the grant regime. Overall external 
funding, excluding Dedicated Schools Grant, is estimated to have reduced by 
£23m from 2010/11 to 2011/12.  
 

 
8 COUNCIL TAX BASE 
 
8.1 The Council on 26th January 2011 has formally agreed a Tax Base of 79,799 

equivalent Band D properties for 2011/12.   Therefore the Council's element of the 
Council Tax can be calculated as follows: 
 
 
 Total Budget Requirement  = 189,289-124,510    =   £811.78 
              Tax Base   79,799 

 
8.2 This represents no change from the 2010/11 charge. 

 
9. PRECEPTOR’S COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENTS 
 
9.1 The Greater London Authority's precept of £24.723m (agreed on 23rd February 

2011) also has to be funded from Council Tax.  The following table analyses the 
total amount to be funded and the resulting overall Band D Council Tax level. 
 
 
     Preceptors Budget Requirement     =     £24.723m     =     £309.82 
                      Tax Base         79,799 

 
9.2 For a third year this represents no change from the 2008/09 Council Tax level.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 759



  

10 OVERALL COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENTS 2011/12 AND 2012/13 
 
10.1 It is proposed to freeze Hammersmith and Fulham’s element of the Council Tax in 

2011/12 in order to provide a balanced budget in year with £10m-£17m in current 
reserves (see section 13). The overall amount to be funded from the Council Tax 
is calculated as follows: 

 
 
 
 

Table 9 
 
  

 £000s 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 189,289 
  
Greater London Authority  24,723 

  
Less  

  
External Support (124,510) 
  
  

  
Total Requirement for Council Tax 89,502 

  
 
 
10.2 In accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council is 

required to calculate and approve a Council Tax for its own budgetary purposes 
(section 8) and then add the separate Council Tax requirements for each of the 
preceptors (section 9). 

 
10.3 It must then set the overall Council Tax for the Borough.  These calculations have 

to be carried out for each of the valuation bands A to H, and are set out in the 
recommendations at the front of the report.  The amount per Band D equivalent 
property is calculated as follows: 
 
 
      Total Budget Requirement      =      £89.502m        =        £1,121.60 
                  Tax Base   79,799 

 
10.4 The Band D charge is unchanged from 2010/11 for the Hammersmith and Fulham 

element and the Greater London Authority.  
 

Page 760



  

10.5 The robust forward financial plans set out in the Council’s MTFS has enabled an 
indicative Council Tax figure to be provided for 2012/13. It is planned that it remain 
at the 2011/12 level of £811.78. For 2013/14 planning purposes, the Director of 
Finance and Corporate Services has again assumed no change to the 2010/11 
Council Tax level.  

 
10.6 The current Band D Council Tax charge is the 4th lowest in London and the current 

freeze follows 4 successive 3% decreases. Table 10 sets out the changes in the 
Band D charge for the Hammersmith and Fulham element of Council Tax since 
2002/03. The proposed Band D charge for 2011/12 is the lowest charge since that 
approved for 2002/03.   

 
 

Table 10 
 
 Band D  

Hammersmith 
and Fulham 
Element 

Change Change 

 £ £ % 
2002/03 772.41 0 0 
2003/04 848.49 +76.08 +9.85 
2004/05 890.07 +41.58 +4.90 
2005/06 903.42 +13.35 +1.50 
2006/07 916.97 +13.55 +1.50 
2007/08 889.45 -27.52 -3.00 
2008/09 862.77 -26.68 -3.00 
2009/10 836.89 -25.88 -3.00 
2010/11  811.78 -25.11 -3.00 
2011/12  811.78 0 0 
2012/13 (for planning purposes) 811.78 0 0 
2013/14 (for planning purposes 811.78 0 0 
 

10.7 Council Tax in Hammersmith & Fulham has reduced by 11.5% from 2006/07 to 
2010/11. This compares to a London average increase of 8% over the same 
period.  This represents a £500 cash saving for Hammersmith & Fulham residents 
against the average Borough increase from 2006/07 to 2010/11. 
 

11 CONSULTATION WITH NON DOMESTIC RATEPAYERS 
 
11.1 In accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council is 

required to consult with Non Domestic Ratepayers on the budget proposals.  The 
consultation can have no effect on the Business Rate, which is set by the 
Government. 

 

Page 761



  

11.2 As with previous years, we have discharged this responsibility by writing to the 
twenty largest payers and the local Chamber of Commerce together with a copy of 
this report.    

 
 
12 COMMENTS OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
12.1 As part of the Scrutiny process each department’s estimates have been reviewed 

by a relevant Scrutiny Committee. There are no comments to report back.    
 
13 COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

The Robustness of the Budget Estimates 
 
13.1 The relevant Service Directors and Cabinet Members, in conjunction with the 

Director of Finance and Corporate Services, have considered the detail of the 
individual estimates. Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services is required to include in budget reports 
a statement of her view of the robustness of the estimates for 2011/12 included in 
the report.  

 
13.2 Budget estimates are exactly that, estimates of spending and income at a point in 

time. This statement about the robustness of estimates cannot give a guaranteed 
assurance about the budget, but gives Members reasonable assurances that the 
budget has been based on the best available information and assumptions. For 
the reasons set out below the Director of Finance and Corporate Services is 
satisfied with the accuracy and robustness of the estimates included in this report : 

 
• The budget proposals have been developed following guidance from the 

Director of Finance and Corporate Services and have been through a robust 
process of development and challenge. 

• Contract inflation is provided for. 
• Adequate allowance has been made for pension costs 
• Service managers have made reasonable assumptions about growth 

pressures. 
• Mechanisms are in place to monitor sensitive areas of expenditure and the 

delivery of savings. 
• Key risks have been identified and considered. 
• Prudent assumptions have been made about interest rates and the budget 

proposals are joined up with the requirements of the prudential code and 
Treasury Management Strategy. 

• The revenue effects of the capital programme have been reflected in the 
budget. 

• The recommended increases in fees and charges are in line with the 
assumptions in the budget. 

Page 762



  

• The provision for redundancy costs has increased to meet future 
restructuring and downsizing.  

• The use of budget monitoring in 2010 -11 in order to re-align budgets where 
required 

• A review via the Council Executive Management Board of proposed savings 
and their achievability 

• A Member review and challenge of each department’s proposals for the 
budget. 

 
 
 
Risk, Revenue Balances and Earmarked Reserves 
 

13.3 Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services is required to include in budget reports a statement of her view 
of the adequacy of the balances and reserves the budget provides for. The level of 
balances is examined each year along with the level of reserves in light of the risks 
facing the Authority in the medium term.   

 
General Fund Balances 
 

13.4 The Council’s general balance stood at £15m as at 1st April 2010 and it is currently 
projected that they will increase by £0.1m the current financial year.  This will leave 
approximately £15.1m in general balance at year end, which represents 8.2% of 
the current budget requirement.   

 
13.5 The Council’s budget requirement for 2011/12 is in the order of £189.3m. Within a 

budget of this magnitude there are inevitably areas of risk and uncertainty and this 
is particularly true for 2011/12 when a significant reduction is being made in the 
level of funding available to the council.  The key financial risks that currently face 
the Council have been identified and quantified. They are set out in Appendix E 
and amount to £10.8m. The Council has in place rigorous budget monitoring 
arrangements and a policy of restoring balances once used.  

 
13.6 Given the unprecedented scale of change in local government funding, the 

Director of Finance and Corporate Services considers that a wider than normal 
range needs to be specified for the optimal level of balances. She is therefore 
recommending that reserves need to be maintained within the range £10m - 
£17m.  This compares to a range of £8m-£9m in 2006/07.  The optimal level of 
£10m-£17m is projected to be broadly met over the next 3 years and is, in the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Service’s view, sufficient to allow for the risks 
identified and to support effective medium term financial planning.    

 
 
 
 

Page 763



  

Earmarked Reserves 
 

13.7 The Council also holds a number of earmarked reserves to deal with anticipated 
risks and liabilities, and to allow for future investment in priority areas. Reviews are 
undertaken of the need for, and the adequacy of, each earmarked reserve as part 
of the budget process and again when the accounts are closed. These are formally 
reported to the Audit and Pensions Committee in June and September of each 
year.   

 
14 COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES) 
 
14.1 The Council is obliged to set the Council Tax and a balanced budget for the 

forthcoming financial year in accordance with the provisions set out in the body of 
the report. 

 
14.2 In addition to the statutory provisions the Council must also comply with general 

public law requirements and in particular it must take into account all relevant 
matters, ignore irrelevant matters and act reasonably and for the public good when 
setting the Council Tax and budget. In implementing the budget proposals 
appropriate consultation will be carried out where required and due regard given to 
the Council’s equality duties. 

 
14.3 The recommendations contained in the report have been prepared in line with 

these requirements. 
 
14.4 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, which came into force on 

18 November 2003, requires the Director of Finance to report on the robustness of 
the estimates made for the purposes of budget calculations and the adequacy of 
the proposed financial reserves.  The Council must take these matters into 
account when making decisions about the budget calculations. 

 
 

Page 764



  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 
File/Copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Revenue Budget 2011/12 Andrew Lord 
Ext. 2531 

Finance Department 
Room 5 
Town Hall 

2. Formula Grant Papers 
2011/12 

Andrew Lord 
Ext. 2531 

Finance Department 
Room 5 
Town Hall 

3. Finance and Corporate 
Services Budget Papers  

Dave Lansdowne 
Ext. 2549 

Finance Department 
Room 4 
Town Hall 

4. Community Services 
Budget Papers  

Mark Jones 
Ext. 5006 

Community Services 
Department 
77 Glenthorne Road 

5. Children’s Services 
Budget Papers 

Dave McNamara 
Ext 3404 

Children’s Services 
Department 
Cambridge House 

6. Housing and 
Regeneration Budget 
Papers 

Kathleen Corbett 
Ext. 3031 

Housing and 
Regeneration 
Department 
77 Glenthorne Road 

7. Residents Services 
Budget Papers 

Kathleen Corbett 
Ext. 3031 

Residents Services 
Department 
77 Glenthorne Road 

8. Environment Services 
Budget Papers 

Dave McNamara 
Ext. 3404 

Environment 
Department 
Town Hall Extension 

Page 765



  

APPENDIX A 
 
 
The Requisite Calculations for Hammersmith & Fulham (as set out in Sections 36 to 36 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992) 
 
  

 
£000s 

(a) being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 
for the items set out in section 32 (2)(a) to (e) of the Act. 
 

624,888 

(b) being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 
for the items set out in Section 32 (3)(a) to (c) of the Act. 
 

(435,599) 

(c) being the amount by which the aggregate at (a) above exceeds 
the aggregate at (b) above, calculated by the Council in 
accordance with Section 32 (4) of the Act, as its budget 
requirement for the year. 
 

189,289 

(d) being the aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates will 
be payable for the year into its General Fund in respect of 
redistributed non-domestic rates, revenue support grant, or 
additional grant, (in accordance with section 33 (1) decreased by 
the amount of the sums which the Council estimates will be 
transferred in the year from its Collection Fund to its General 
Fund in accordance with Section 97 (3) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 (i.e. Council Tax Deficit). 

(124,510) 

 (i.e. Aggregate External Support plus 
       Council Tax adjustments). 
 

 

(e) being the amount at (c) above less the amounts at (d) above, 
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 33 (1) of the 
Act 
 

64,779 

(f) being the amount at (c) above less the amount at (d)  
above all divided by the amount in Section 8 of the  
report, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 33 
(1) of the Act, as the Basic Amount of its Council Tax (Band D) 
for the year i.e. 

811.78 

 £(c)k - £(d)k 
Amount Section 9 

 
 

Page 766



  

 
(g) Valuation Bands – Hammersmith & Fulham Council: 
 

Band A Band B Band C Band D 
541.19 631.38 721.58 811.78 
Band E Band F Band G Band H 
992.18 1,172.57 1,352.97 1,623.56 

 
being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at (f) above by the number which, in 
proportion set out in section 5 (1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a 
particular valuation band divided by the number which that proportion is applicable to 
dwellings listed in band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36 (1) 
of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of dwellings 
listed in the different valuation bands. 
 
 
(h) Valuation Bands – Greater London Authority 
 
That it be noted that for the year 2009-10, the following amounts in precepts issued to 
the Council in respect of the Greater London Authority, its functional and predecessor 
bodies, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for 
each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 
 

Band A Band B Band C Band D 
206.55 240.97 275.40 309.82 
Band E Band F Band G Band H 
378.67 447.52 516.37 619.64 

 
 
 
(i) That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at (g) and (h) 
above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30 (2) of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts of Council Tax for the year 2009-10 for 
each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 
 

Band A Band B Band C Band D 
747.74 872.35 996.98 1,121.60 
Band E Band F Band G Band H 
1,370.85 1,620.09 1,869.34 2,243.20 

 
 
 
 

Page 767



Appendix B

Medium Term Budget Requirement

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000 £'000

2010/11 Council Budget 184,345

Less: Adjustment for Economic Slowdown (850)

Add: Rolling-in of previously grant funded expenditure 39,059

2011/12 Net General Fund Base Budget 222,554 222,554 222,554

Contract and Income Inflation 2,721 6,338 9,080

Growth 11,797 13,568 16,762

Departmental Efficiencies  (26,709) (50,073) (64,180)

Additional General Contingency 0 5,104 10,208
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
(Unallocated Grant Funding)

2,409 2,409 2,409

Total Expenditure 212,772 199,900 196,833

Reduction in Drawdown from Earmarked Reserves               
(Economic Slowdown)

850 850 850

Draw Down from Earmarked Reserve                          
(Community Services)

(1,975) 0 0

Drawdown from Earmarked Reserves (ABG transition) (2,217) 0 0

Gross Budget Requirement 209,430 200,750 197,683

Less:

Council Tax Freeze/New Homes Bonus Grant 2,528 3,437 4,346

Core Revenue Grants 17,613 17,613 17,085

Revenue Grants 20,141 21,050 21,431

Net Budget Requirement 189,289 179,700 176,252

Funded by:

Formula Grant 124,510 114,921 111,473

Council Tax 64,779 64,779 64,779

189,289 179,700 176,252

Risks 10,848 18,159 27,032

Page 768



G
ro

w
th

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

G
ro

w
th

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

S
ch

oo
ls

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t (

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g)
15

0
30

0
45

0

To
ta

l G
ro

w
th

15
0

30
0

45
0

E
xi

st
in

g
 G

ro
w

th
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

pa
ck

ag
es

0
20

5
41

0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
P

la
ce

m
en

t p
ac

ka
ge

s 
an

d 
di

re
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
84

0
84

0
84

0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 -

 N
ew

 C
on

tin
ui

ng
 C

ar
e 

P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 N

H
S

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
70

3
70

3
70

3

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

es
0

33
5

33
5

To
ta

l E
xi

st
in

g
 G

ro
w

th
1,

54
3

2,
08

3
2,

28
8

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

al
l a

ge
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

ar
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

pa
ck

ag
es

0
30

0
1,

20
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
Lo

ss
 o

f I
LF

 F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
s 

(F
un

de
d 

fr
om

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
e 

in
 2

01
1/

12
)

36
6

36
6

36
6

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
C

ha
rg

in
g 

In
co

m
e 

B
ud

ge
t-

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t h

as
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
of

 £
40

0k
 a

nd
 h

as
 

de
ci

de
d 

in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
he

ad
 o

f l
eg

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

le
ad

 c
ab

in
et

 m
em

be
r 

no
t t

o 
co

ns
ul

t o
n 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 H

C
C

 S
ch

em
e.

  (
F

un
de

d 
fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

)
40

0
40

0
40

0

Q
ua

lit
y,

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
Lo

ss
 o

f S
up

po
rt

in
g 

pe
op

le
 fu

nd
in

g-
 w

ith
 th

e 
on

go
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
gr

an
t, 

th
e 

re
du

ce
d 

le
ve

l o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 n

ow
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. (
F

un
de

d 
fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

)
36

3
36

3
36

3

R
es

ou
rc

es
Lo

ss
 o

f r
em

ov
al

 in
co

m
e 

fr
om

 s
to

ra
ge

 o
f c

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 
be

lo
ng

in
gs

: H
&

F
 H

om
es

 a
re

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

w
he

re
 te

na
nt

s 
be

lo
ng

in
gs

 a
re

 s
to

re
d 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
th

em
 to

 te
na

nt
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

n 
in

co
m

e 
lo

ss
 to

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

s 
se

rv
ic

e.
 (

F
un

de
d 

fr
om

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
e 

in
 2

01
1/

12
)

16
5

16
4

16
4

To
ta

l N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

1,
29

4
1,

59
3

2,
49

3

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 769



G
ro

w
th

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

E
xi

st
in

g
 G

ro
w

th
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 B

rie
fin

gs
 a

fte
r 

M
ay

 E
le

ct
io

ns
-1

5
-1

5
-1

5

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

F
re

ed
om

 P
as

se
s-

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t b
as

is
 w

hi
ch

 s
hi

fts
 c

os
ts

 fr
om

 O
ut

er
 to

 In
ne

r 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 c
os

t i
nc

re
as

e
58

6
91

2
1,

25
1

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

A
dm

in
 G

ra
nt

 In
co

m
e 

(t
bc

)
85

85
85

Lo
ca

l E
le

ct
io

ns
M

ay
 2

01
0 

E
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
ne

w
 E

le
ct

or
al

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

B
ill

-2
50

-2
50

-2
50

To
ta

l G
ro

w
th

40
6

73
2

1,
07

1

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

H
B

 A
dm

in
 G

ra
nt

 In
co

m
e 

(5
%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 g
ra

nt
 p

er
 a

nn
um

)
66

27
4

46
2

Lo
ca

l E
le

ct
io

ns
A

nn
ua

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

lo
ca

l e
le

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

 
br

ie
fin

gs
75

75
75

To
ta

l G
ro

w
th

14
1

34
9

53
7

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

H
ou

si
ng

C
ap

 o
n 

H
B

 s
ub

si
dy

 (
LH

A
) 

fo
r 

H
A

LS
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
1,

18
7

1,
18

7
1,

98
5

H
ou

si
ng

C
ap

 o
n 

H
B

 s
ub

si
dy

 (
LH

A
) 

fo
r 

P
S

L 
pr

op
er

tie
s

16
16

54
7

H
ou

si
ng

C
ap

 o
n 

H
B

 s
ub

si
dy

 (
LH

A
) 

fo
r 

H
A

LD
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
76

0
76

0
76

0

H
ou

si
ng

C
ap

 o
n 

H
B

 s
ub

si
dy

 (
LH

A
) 

fo
r 

P
R

S
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
E

xp
iry

 o
f S

tr
at

eg
ic

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
35

0
35

0
35

0

To
ta

l N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

2,
31

3
2,

31
3

3,
64

2

G
ro

w
th

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Ti
tl

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
E

nh
an

ce
d 

be
at

 p
ol

ic
in

g 
- 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t b

ei
ng

 r
ea

ch
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
P

ol
ic

e 
th

at
 a

ch
ie

ve
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

1,
60

0
1,

60
0

1,
60

0

To
ta

l G
ro

w
th

1,
60

0
1,

60
0

1,
60

0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
&

 H
ou

si
ng

F
in

an
ce

 &
 C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 770



G
ro

w
th

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

G
ro

w
th

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

N
N

D
R

N
et

 g
ro

w
th

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

fa
ll 

in
 m

ul
tip

lie
r

43
1

43
1

43
1

W
R

W
A

 L
ev

y
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 le
vy

 p
ay

ab
le

 to
 W

es
te

rn
 R

iv
er

si
de

 W
as

te
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(la
nd

fil
l t

ax
)

85
0

85
0

85
0

O
ffi

ce
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
R

en
ta

l a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

rg
es

 in
cr

ea
se

s
15

0
30

0
30

0

P
en

si
on

s
A

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

en
si

on
s 

F
un

d 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

21
1

21
1

21
1

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

Im
pa

ct
 o

f l
eg

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

n 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l f

ee
s

75
0

75
0

75
0

R
ed

un
da

nc
y 

C
os

ts
A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

do
w

ns
iz

in
g 

an
d 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

To
ta

l G
ro

w
th

3,
89

2
4,

04
2

4,
04

2

G
ro

w
th

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

H
B

 A
dm

in
 G

ra
nt

 In
co

m
e 

35
13

3
21

6
B

ui
ld

in
g 

&
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

C
ar

bo
n 

T
ra

di
ng

 S
ch

em
e 

26
4

26
4

26
4

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

N
ew

 F
lo

od
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s
15

9
15

9
15

9

45
8

55
6

63
9

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xi

st
in

g 
G

ro
w

th
6,

74
1

7,
90

7
8,

60
1

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

5,
05

6
5,

66
1

8,
16

1

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

11
,7

97
13

,5
68

16
,7

62

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 a
nd

 F
ul

ha
m

 -
 S

um
m

ar
y

G
ro

w
th

 p
os

t S
pe

nd
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w
 2

01
0

C
or

po
ra

te

Page 771



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s
C

hi
ld

re
n,

 Y
ou

th
 &

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

co
st

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

os
ts

)
(2

7)
(2

7)
(2

7)
0

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

 &
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

 le
as

e 
co

st
s

(1
1)

(1
1)

(1
1)

0

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

 &
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

E
xt

en
de

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 -

 e
nd

 o
f m

at
ch

 fu
nd

in
g 

tim
e 

lim
ite

d 
gr

an
ts

(1
20

)
(1

20
)

(1
20

)
0

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

 &
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

E
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 fr
om

 r
ep

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f e
xt

en
de

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ffe
r

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

(2
00

)
0

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
ch

oo
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t -

 R
ed

uc
in

g 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
ve

rh
ea

ds
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 2
 p

rin
ci

pa
l a

dv
is

er
 p

os
ts

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 A
D

 c
os

ts
 o

f 3
0%

 d
ue

 to
 s

ha
re

d 
ro

le
 in

 m
er

ge
r.

 8
 fu

rt
he

r 
po

st
s 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d 
by

 S
ep

t 2
01

1
(5

0)
(2

50
)

(2
50

)
(1

0)

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
ha

rin
g 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 W
C

C
 / 

R
B

K
C

0
(1

50
)

(5
00

)
T

B
C

S
ch

oo
l R

es
ou

rc
es

B
S

F
 C

or
e 

F
un

di
ng

 &
 S

ch
oo

ls
 R

es
ou

rc
in

g
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

en
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 B
S

F
 a

nd
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ap
ita

l p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

m
er

ge
r 

w
or

k 
(1

75
)

(2
25

)
(2

75
)

(4
)

S
ch

oo
l R

es
ou

rc
es

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 T
ra

de
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
to

 a
 'M

ut
ua

l'/
S

oc
ia

l E
nt

er
pr

is
e

E
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 a
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

.
(5

0)
(1

00
)

(2
00

)
0

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
os

si
bl

e 
st

re
tc

h 
re

la
te

d 
to

 m
er

ge
r 

- 
T

ra
de

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s

M
or

e 
w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

se
 m

er
ge

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
st

re
tc

h 
of

 £
17

5k
 o

n 
tr

ad
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
if 

R
B

K
C

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
 s

ee
m

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

.
0

(5
0)

(1
50

)
0

S
ch

oo
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

&
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

E
nd

 o
f i

ne
qu

ita
bl

e 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 g

ra
nt

s
(8

)
(8

)
(8

)
0

S
ch

oo
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

&
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

S
pe

ci
al

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 (
S

E
N

) 
st

af
fin

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
0

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

H
&

F
 A

dv
ic

e 
C

en
tr

e 
- 

S
ta

ffi
ng

 E
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

(3
1)

(3
1)

(3
1)

0

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

  P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

[F
S

C
P

], 
C

on
ta

ct
 a

nd
  A

se
ss

m
en

t [
C

&
A

], 
an

d 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

st
af

fin
g 

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 
(7

00
)

(1
,0

00
)

(1
,0

00
)

(1
2)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

M
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 w
or

ke
rs

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 in

 th
e 

ho
m

e 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
,  

an
d 

re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

te
am

s.
 

(5
0)

(1
25

)
(2

00
)

0

Page 772



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

of
 C

&
A

 a
nd

 F
S

&
C

P
 w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

fe
w

er
 h

an
do

ve
rs

 a
nd

 y
ie

ld
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 w
ith

ou
t i

m
pa

ct
 

on
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

fe
w

er
 'h

an
do

ve
rs

' o
f c

as
es

, i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
.

0
(1

75
)

(1
75

)
(3

)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

M
un

ro
 R

ev
ie

w
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
 e

fic
ie

nc
ie

s,
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

st
af

fin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
(2

50
)

(5
)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

S
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/ 

se
ni

or
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t -

 d
el

ay
er

in
g 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ie

rs
. 

(8
0)

(1
95

)
(4

00
)

(6
)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

M
er

gi
ng

 th
e 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
[L

A
C

] a
nd

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
 [Y

P
S

] t
o 

cr
ea

te
 o

ne
 0

 -
 1

8 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 
ca

re
, r

ed
uc

in
g 

ha
nd

ov
er

s 
of

 c
as

es
, s

o 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

qu
al

ity
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n,
 th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s.

0
(1

25
)

(2
50

)
(5

)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 c
ar

e 
w

ith
 b

et
te

r 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 [s

ee
 L

oc
al

ity
 te

am
s]

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
tim

el
y 

pe
rm

an
en

t p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 [A
do

pt
io

n/
S

pe
ci

al
 G

ua
rd

ia
ns

hi
p/

R
es

id
en

ce
]; 

th
er

eb
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 p
la

ce
m

en
t c

os
ts

 
(3

20
)

(6
40

)
(9

60
)

0

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

os
ts

 r
ed

uc
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

er
e 

be
in

g 
fe

w
er

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 c
ar

e
(6

0)
(1

20
)

(1
80

)
0

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

In
de

pe
nd

en
t R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
co

st
s 

be
in

g 
re

du
ce

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
re

 b
ei

ng
 fe

w
er

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 c
ar

e
(5

0)
(1

)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

R
ep

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l c
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

at
 D

al
lin

g 
R

oa
d,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
pt

io
ns

.
(4

00
)

(4
00

)
(4

00
)

(1
7)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

S
av

in
gs

 in
 fo

st
er

 c
ar

e 
co

st
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

re
 b

ei
ng

 fe
w

er
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e,

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t p

os
si

bl
e 

re
pr

ov
is

io
n 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 3

 B
or

ou
gh

 w
or

ki
ng

0
(5

0)
(3

00
)

(6
)

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

R
ed

uc
ed

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
n 

le
av

in
g 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 th

er
e 

be
in

g 
fe

w
er

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 c
ar

e
(4

0)
(1

00
)

(1
60

)
0

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

M
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

fr
om

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t F

os
te

rin
g 

A
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
P

riv
at

e 
&

 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 R
es

id
en

tia
l C

ar
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

liv
er

in
g 

be
tte

r 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
ce

m
en

ts
.

(1
50

)
(3

75
)

(6
75

)
0

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

R
ef

oc
us

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tr

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 S
ur

e 
S

ta
rt

 m
od

el
, t

ar
ge

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

.

W
ith

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 C
en

tr
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t f

un
di

ng
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 to
 b

e 
re

sh
ap

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

 to
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
m

os
t i

n 
ne

ed
 o

f i
t. 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 to

 b
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 fr

om
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
an

d 
to

 b
e 

ru
n 

on
 a

 'h
ub

' a
nd

 
's

po
ke

' m
od

el
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

be
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
an

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
ba

si
s 

in
 th

e 
's

po
ke

s'
. F

ur
th

er
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
to

 b
e 

ha
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
/C

LC
H

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 c
hi

ld
 h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 S
ur

e 
S

ta
rt

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
en

tr
es

.

(1
,3

21
)

(1
,3

21
)

(1
,3

21
)

(4
3)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 -
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

or
e 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 te

am
s 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
  f

un
ct

io
ns

 fo
r 

pr
iv

at
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

m
in

de
rs

(3
38

)
(3

38
)

(3
38

)
(9

)

Page 773



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

yo
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

es
 fr

om
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
[b

as
ed

 o
n 

re
su

lt 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e]

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
co

st
 th

er
ea

fte
r.

(2
97

)
(2

97
)

(2
97

)
(6

)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

E
xt

en
de

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
- 

en
di

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

 c
lu

st
er

s,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g
(2

90
)

(2
90

)
(2

90
)

(3
)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
- 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

re
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 w
ith

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 s
ou

gh
t.

(1
40

)
(1

40
)

(1
40

)
0

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

- 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
po

st
s

(4
17

)
(4

17
)

(4
17

)
(3

)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

 -
 r

ec
om

m
is

si
on

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

of
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f t

ar
ge

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 L

oc
al

ity
 T

ea
m

s
(1

75
)

(1
75

)
(1

75
)

(8
)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
en

tr
al

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 li
te

ra
cy

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ta

ff 
 -

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 2
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 v
ac

an
t p

os
ts

,w
ith

 c
es

sa
tio

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
.

(1
16

)
(1

16
)

(1
16

)
(2

)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

 R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
D

M
T

 [a
s 

D
M

T
 r

ed
uc

ed
 in

 s
iz

e]
 a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

la
nn

in
g 

&
 S

up
po

rt
 T

ea
m

 
(1

73
)

(1
73

)
(1

73
)

(4
)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

of
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

S
up

po
rt

 F
un

ct
io

n 
- 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
te

ac
hi

ng
 fo

r 
T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 a
bs

or
be

d 
in

to
 L

oc
al

ity
 te

am
s.

 
T

ra
ve

lle
r 

H
om

e 
Li

ai
so

n 
ro

le
 r

et
ai

ne
d.

(5
8)

(5
8)

(5
8)

(1
)

T
ie

rs
 2

 &
 3

P
la

yi
ng

 fo
r 

S
uc

ce
ss

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

- 
C

es
sa

tio
n 

of
 li

te
ra

cy
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

as
ed

 a
t f

oo
tb

al
l c

lu
bs

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
en

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 g

ra
nt

(7
5)

(7
5)

(7
5)

(4
)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

S
lic

ke
r 

B
us

in
es

s 
- 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
3 

B
or

ou
gh

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s
(2

12
)

(4
76

)
(5

93
)

0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

av
in

gs
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

y 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e.
(1

39
)

(1
85

)
(2

78
)

0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

In
co

m
e 

G
en

er
at

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
vi

a 
T

ra
de

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 S
ch

oo
ls

 (
e.

g.
 G

ov
er

no
r's

 C
le

rk
in

g)
 p

rio
r 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f n
ew

 d
el

iv
er

y 
m

od
el

 
fo

r 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s
(7

5)
(1

75
)

(1
75

)
0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

  S
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
m

an
ag

er
 

an
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
(1

41
)

(3
91

)
(6

17
)

0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

R
ol

e 
of

 th
e 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
- 

Li
nk

ed
 to

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l m
er

ge
r 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 W
C

C
 a

nd
 R

B
K

C
(3

6)
(7

00
)

(7
00

)
0

T
o

ta
l

(6
,5

15
)

(9
,8

44
)

(1
2,

57
5)

(1
51

)

Page 774



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
A

p
p

ly
in

g
 P

ri
va

te
 F

in
an

ce
 In

it
ia

ti
ve

 s
u

b
si

d
y 

fr
om

 n
ur

si
ng

 h
om

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

(1
65

)
(1

65
)

(1
65

)
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
M

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
(5

0)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
T

ra
n

sf
er

 o
f 

O
cc

u
p

at
io

n
al

 T
h

er
ap

is
t 

co
st

s 
to

 th
e 

H
R

A
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
gu

id
el

in
es

.
(5

0)
(5

0)
(5

0)
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

h
o

m
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

o
u

t 
o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
 le

ar
n

in
g

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

(4
00

)
(7

00
)

(1
,0

00
)

0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

h
o

m
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

o
u

t 
o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

(1
00

)
(2

00
)

(3
00

)
(9

)

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
S

o
ci

al
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e-
en

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

:-
 S

ta
ffi

ng
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 to

 b
e 

re
al

is
ed

 b
y 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
m

ix
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 o

f s
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

an
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

ta
ff 

to
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
 o

n 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

k 
ta

sk
s 

an
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

s 
a 

di
st

in
ct

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
up

po
rt

.
(6

00
)

(6
00

)
(6

00
)

(1
5)

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
P

er
so

n
al

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
s.

 U
se

 c
re

at
iv

e 
ca

re
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 in

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

no
n 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
lo

w
er

 c
os

t s
ol

ut
io

ns
 th

an
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

 c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

es
.

(3
00

)
(3

00
)

(3
00

)
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 in
te

n
si

ve
 h

o
m

e 
su

p
p

o
rt

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 e
xt

ra
 c

ar
e 

sh
el

te
re

d
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 w

it
h

 n
u

rs
in

g
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 n

ur
si

ng
 

ho
m

es
0

0
(3

,0
00

)
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 C
ri

te
ri

a
0

(4
00

)
(4

00
)

0

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t

H
o

m
e 

C
ar

e 
p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
th

ro
u

g
h

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

.  
A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 W
LA

 h
om

ec
ar

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
 c

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
 T

hi
s 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ca

n 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

tim
e 

on
 a

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 b

as
is

(5
79

)
(5

79
)

(5
79

)
0

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t

H
o

m
e 

C
ar

e 
- 

S
m

ar
te

r 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t.

  A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 W

LA
 h

om
ec

ar
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
an

ag
ed

 to
 

se
cu

re
 lo

w
er

 a
ve

ra
ge

 h
ou

rly
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ho
m

ec
ar

e 
m

ar
ke

t r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 th
es

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l s
av

in
gs

. 
(5

78
)

(5
78

)
(5

78
)

0

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t

R
ep

ri
o

ri
ti

sa
ti

o
n

 o
f 

3r
d

 S
ec

to
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

F
u

n
d

s.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l i

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 3
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

w
ith

 a
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t f

un
d 

an
d 

fa
st

 tr
ac

k 
bu

dg
et

. 
(5

00
)

(5
55

)
(7

05
)

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

P
ro

te
ct

in
g

 f
ro

n
tl

in
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
o

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
eo

p
le

 b
y 

m
ak

in
g

 s
av

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 in

n
o

va
ti

o
n

, s
o

 m
o

re
 p

eo
p

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

p
p

o
rt

ed
 t

o
 li

ve
 lo

n
g

er
 in

 t
h

ei
r 

h
o

m
es

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
et

te
r 

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

.

Page 775



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
&

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

S
ta

ff
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 a
nd

 h
ea

dc
ou

nt
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 in
 Q

ua
lit

y,
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
&

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t, 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
, E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

S
up

po
rt

, a
nd

 S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 
(4

15
)

(6
75

)
(8

77
)

(1
6)

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 G

ra
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 (
L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l L
ev

y)
 -

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
(3

05
)

(5
00

)
(5

00
)

0

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
In

cr
ea

se
d

 r
en

ta
l i

n
co

m
e 

fr
o

m
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
(7

5)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
0

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t

F
o

rm
al

is
e 

jo
in

t 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 -

 T
he

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

jo
in

t f
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
tr

ea
m

lin
in

g 
of

 
w

or
k 

ov
er

 a
 tw

o 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d.
(3

4)
(3

4)
(3

4)
(1

)

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 o

f 
A

d
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
(4

)

R
es

ou
rc

es
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

se
lf

 f
in

an
ci

n
g

 a
nd

 b
e 

ph
as

ed
 in

 o
ve

r 
tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

w
ith

 B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
ts

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
ha

rg
ed

 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
(1

20
)

(1
80

)
(1

80
)

(3
)

R
es

ou
rc

es
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n

 o
f 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 C
h

ar
g

es
(3

00
)

(3
00

)
(3

00
)

0

R
es

ou
rc

es
M

ax
im

is
in

g
 r

ev
en

u
e 

fr
o

m
 n

ew
 a

n
d

 e
xi

st
in

g
 C

ar
el

in
e 

p
ro

d
u

ct
s 

- 
M

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
ia

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(2

00
)

(4
00

)
(4

00
)

0

R
es

ou
rc

es
F

u
rt

h
er

 p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 M

ea
ls

 o
n

 W
h

ee
ls

 c
o

st
s.

  T
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

s 
ex

pl
or

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

m
od

el
s 

of
 m

ea
ls

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 to

 
re

du
ce

 c
os

ts
, a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
ch

ar
ge

 c
an

 b
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
w

ith
ou

t r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
pe

op
le

.
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

0

R
es

ou
rc

es
C

o
n

so
lid

at
in

g
 b

u
d

g
et

 c
o

n
tr

o
l e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 -
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
09

/1
0 

ou
ttu

rn
 p

os
iti

on
, t

he
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t h
as

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
its

 c
os

t 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
its

 a
dj

us
tin

g 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 in
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f a
re

as
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

s.
 

(3
20

)
(3

20
)

(3
20

)
0

R
es

ou
rc

es
W

o
rl

d
 C

la
ss

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
(W

C
F

M
):

 A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

ils
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 it

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ce

 fu
nc

tio
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
by

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
si

ng
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

ro
ce

ss
es

 w
ith

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 2
0%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

(9
8)

(2
64

)
(2

64
)

(6
)

R
es

ou
rc

es
P

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
in

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 3

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s 
In

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

, a
n

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
N

H
S

0
0

(1
,5

00
)

0

C
ro

ss
 C

ut
tin

g
P

la
n

n
ed

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 f

ro
m

 A
re

a 
B

as
ed

 G
ra

n
t 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
(7

14
)

(2
,4

24
)

(2
,8

15
)

0

�
�
��
�

��
�	


�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�

Page 776



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s
B

ui
ld

in
g 

&
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

A
dv

er
tis

in
g 

In
co

m
e

(3
75

)
(3

75
)

(3
75

)
0

B
ui

ld
in

g 
&

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
C

iv
ic

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

S
av

in
gs

(5
00

)
(5

00
)

(5
00

)
0

B
ui

ld
in

g 
&

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

C
T

 L
et

tin
g 

of
 H

T
H

X
(2

00
)

0
0

0

B
ui

ld
in

g 
&

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
H

T
H

X
 L

E
D

 li
gh

tin
g

(3
3)

(3
3)

(3
3)

0

B
ui

ld
in

g 
&

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
S

av
in

gs
 

0
(5

00
)

(5
00

)
0

F
in

an
ce

 &
 R

es
ou

rc
es

O
th

er
 S

up
po

rt
 C

os
ts

 -
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
S

up
pl

ie
s 

an
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

dg
et

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

0

F
in

an
ce

 &
 R

es
ou

rc
es

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 d
ec

en
tr

al
is

ed
 M

at
er

ni
ty

 &
 R

ed
un

da
nc

y 
pa

ym
en

ts
(1

6)
(1

6)
(1

6)
0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

F
oo

tb
al

l  
- 

th
e 

th
re

e 
fo

ot
ba

ll 
cl

ub
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
tr

af
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
m

at
ch

es
 a

t t
he

ir 
gr

ou
nd

s.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

re
le

as
ed

 o
ne

 c
ou

nc
il 

po
st

 a
s 

w
e 

no
w

 d
o 

no
t n

ee
d 

to
 s

up
er

vi
se

 th
is

 w
or

k.
 

0
0

0
(1

)

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

A
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

on
tr

ac
t c

os
ts

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f  

th
e 

sh
ift

 w
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
V

eh
ic

le
 S

er
vi

ce
(4

8)
(9

8)
(6

2)
0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

C
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 5

%
 

0
(7

0)
0

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

F
oo

tw
ay

 P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
 3

3%
0

(1
50

)
0

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

R
at

io
na

lis
e 

ou
t o

f h
ou

rs
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 o

ne
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ha
re

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
tw

o 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s

(1
5)

(1
5)

(1
5)

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

R
ed

uc
e 

gu
lly

 c
le

an
si

ng
 c

yc
le

. I
m

pr
ov

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
ha

s 
un

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

(4
0)

(4
0)

(4
0)

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

 R
ed

uc
e 

ro
ad

 m
ar

ki
ng

 r
el

in
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

on
 lo

ca
l r

oa
ds

(2
5)

(2
5)

(2
5)

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 tw
o 

st
af

f p
os

ts
( 

to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 y

ea
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
no

n 
fe

e 
ea

rn
in

g 
po

st
s)

 
(8

0)
(8

0)
(8

0)
(2

)

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 u
si

ng
 d

iff
er

en
t m

at
er

ia
l (

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s)

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

(2
00

)
0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ge
nc

y
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

S
el

f-
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 C
O

LA
S

 c
on

tr
ac

t (
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 w
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
on

 a
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
ba

si
s)

  
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

F
ur

th
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f  

po
st

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ra

tio
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
an

d 
he

nc
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

fe
w

er
 p

os
ts

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0

Page 777



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
in

 F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

de
liv

er
y 

in
 2

01
1-

12
.

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

(2
00

)
0

P
ar

ki
ng

A
ut

om
at

ic
 N

um
be

r 
P

la
te

 R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

re
du

ct
io

n
0

(1
,0

00
)

(1
,0

00
)

0

P
ar

ki
ng

C
as

hl
es

s 
P

ar
ki

ng
 -

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, e
ne

rg
y 

+ 
ca

sh
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
0

(1
,0

00
)

(1
,0

00
)

0

P
ar

ki
ng

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ac

k 
O

ffi
ce

 -
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

on
go

in
g 

C
ap

ita
l A

m
bi

tio
n 

fu
nd

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
 R

B
K

&
C

0
(5

00
)

(5
00

)
0

P
ar

ki
ng

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 R

es
id

en
t p

ar
ki

ng
 p

er
m

it 
ch

ar
ge

s
(4

00
)

(4
00

)
(4

00
)

0

P
ar

ki
ng

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 P

ay
 a

nd
 D

is
pl

ay
 c

ha
rg

es
(1

,5
00

)
(1

,7
50

)
(2

,0
00

)
0

P
la

nn
in

g
E

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 a

ttr
ac

te
d 

fo
r 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

os
t

(1
00

)
0

0
0

P
la

nn
in

g
A

ss
um

ed
 P

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 S

av
in

gs
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t  
+ 

 o
th

er
 r

el
at

ed
 in

iti
at

iv
es

(3
0)

(6
0)

(6
0)

(2
)

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
R

ef
in

em
en

t o
f r

is
k-

ba
sd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

gi
m

e
(5

0)
(5

0)
(5

0)
(1

)

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
(3

5)
(3

5)
(3

5)
(1

)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
na

l t
ea

m
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
cr

os
s 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
S

lic
ke

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
  u

se
 o

f c
us

to
m

er
 c

ha
nn

el
s.

  
(7

00
)

(1
,4

85
)

(1
,8

68
)

0

T
o

ta
l

(4
,8

02
)

(8
,8

37
)

(9
,2

14
)

(7
)

Page 778



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

F
in

an
ce

 &
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
st

re
am

s 
ar

ou
nd

 n
ew

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

: w
eb

 a
dv

er
ts

 o
n 

H
&

F
 N

ew
s 

w
eb

si
te

; l
am

p 
po

st
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
an

d 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

gu
id

es
(5

)
(1

0)
(1

0)
0

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

rin
t s

er
vi

ce
0

(5
0)

(1
00

)
(1

.0
)

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

w
eb

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

is
at

io
n 

(5
0)

(1
00

)
(1

50
)

0

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

B
us

in
es

s 
su

pp
or

t r
ev

ie
w

(4
0)

(4
0)

(4
0)

(1
.0

)

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

G
ra

ph
ic

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(3

8)
(3

8)
(3

8)
(1

.0
)

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
se

ar
ch

 r
ev

ie
w

(5
2)

(5
2)

(5
2)

(1
.0

)

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

R
ed

uc
ed

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ci
ng

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 e
g 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

on
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l t

ra
in

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

0

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
lic

ke
r 

B
us

in
es

s:
 B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

 R
ev

ie
w

(1
68

)
(1

68
)

(1
68

)
0

F
in

an
ce

 
D

eb
t M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 R
es

tr
uc

tu
rin

g
(1

00
)

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

0

F
in

an
ce

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
F

un
d

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

(2
00

)
0

F
in

an
ce

 
R

ec
ha

rg
e 

ha
lf 

of
 D

D
F

 p
os

t t
o 

R
B

K
C

(7
0)

(7
0)

(7
0)

(0
.5

)

F
in

an
ce

 
A

ud
it 

C
on

tr
ac

t -
 lo

w
er

 c
ha

rg
es

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0

F
in

an
ce

 
O

th
er

 A
ud

it/
C

A
F

S
 s

av
in

gs
(7

5)
(7

5)
(7

5)
(2

.0
)

F
in

an
ce

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 F
ee

 r
ed

uc
tio

n
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

Im
pr

ov
ed

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

(1
50

)
(1

50
)

(1
50

)
0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

(3
0)

(3
0)

(3
0)

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 r

el
oc

at
ed

 c
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tr
e 

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

R
el

oc
at

io
n/

 O
ut

 s
ou

rc
in

g 
 o

f s
om

e 
H

 &
F

 D
ire

ct
 S

er
vi

ce
s

(8
0)

(8
0)

(8
0)

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
pe

tty
 c

as
h 

pa
ym

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pa
yr

ol
l s

ys
te

m
 u

si
ng

 T
re

nt
 S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
.

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 c

re
di

t c
ar

d 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
fe

es
(7

3)
(7

3)
(7

3)
0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

C
as

hi
er

s 
 S

er
vi

ce
  -

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

to
 u

se
 o

th
er

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f p

ay
m

en
t

(1
20

)
(1

20
)

(1
20

)
(3

.0
)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

B
us

in
es

s 
R

at
es

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 r

at
e 

re
lie

f
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

0

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

m
or

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 o

n-
lin

e
(5

0)
(1

00
)

(1
50

)
(4

.0
)

Page 779



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

F
in

an
ce

 &
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

C
lo

se
 fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 c
as

hi
er

s 
(n

ee
ds

 p
ol

ic
y 

ch
an

ge
 in

 P
ar

ki
ng

) 
0

(1
80

)
(1

80
)

(5
.0

)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

E
nd

 to
 r

ec
es

si
on

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

sc
al

in
g 

ba
ck

 o
f d

em
an

d 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 s
av

in
gs

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e

(5
0)

(5
0)

(2
00

)
(5

.0
)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

B
lu

e 
B

ad
ge

s/
 F

re
ed

om
 p

as
se

s 
- 

m
ov

e 
to

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 o

nl
y 

(3
0)

(3
0)

(3
0)

(1
.0

)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

R
ed

uc
e 

be
ne

fit
 ta

ke
 u

p 
w

or
k

(3
0)

(3
0)

(3
0)

(1
.0

)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

R
ed

uc
e 

ca
sh

ie
rs

 o
pe

ni
ng

 h
ou

rs
 (

fr
om

 M
o 

9-
5,

 T
u 

8-
5,

 W
e 

9-
5,

 T
h 

8-
7,

 F
r 

9-
5 

to
 M

o-
F

r 
9-

5)
(4

2)
(4

2)
(4

2)
(1

.0
)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

R
ed

uc
e 

po
st

 in
 fu

nd
ed

 D
ire

ct
 L

et
tin

gs
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

5)
(1

5)
(1

5)
(0

.5
)

H
&

F
 D

ire
ct

B
al

iff
's

 F
ee

s
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 s

el
f-

se
rv

ic
e

(1
4)

(1
4)

(1
4)

0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
ta

ff 
ov

er
he

ad
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 m
at

er
ni

ty
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 n

um
be

rs
(1

50
)

(1
50

)
(1

50
)

0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

R
e-

te
nd

er
 o

f P
en

si
on

s 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
(f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
ag

re
em

en
t)

 £
50

k 
sa

vi
ng

 to
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d

0
0

0
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

T
re

nt
 le

as
in

g 
bu

dg
et

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
os

t o
f a

dd
ed

 y
ea

rs
(1

50
)

(2
00

)
(2

50
)

0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

S
al

ar
ie

s
(1

10
)

(1
10

)
(1

10
)

0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
S

ch
em

e
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Lo

w
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 L
on

do
n 

C
ou

nc
ils

(5
8)

(5
8)

(5
8)

0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 L

oc
um

 s
ta

ff
(5

0)
(5

0)
(5

0)
(1

.0
)

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
sa

la
rie

s
(2

3)
(2

3)
(2

3)
0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
ad

m
in

, e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 fu

rn
itu

re
(2

5)
(2

5)
(2

5)
0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Le

ga
l -

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
ff 

to
 b

e 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

fo
r 

po
st

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
ag

en
cy

 s
ta

ff 
0

(4
8)

(4
8)

0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
re

du
ce

 p
rin

tin
g 

co
st

s 
by

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

ge
nd

as
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 p

rin
te

d;
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

te
rn

et
 a

nd
 in

tr
an

et
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
su

bm
it 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

vi
a 

th
e 

in
tr

an
et

(1
0)

(1
0)

(1
0)

0

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 s
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

 tr
ai

ne
e 

po
st

 to
 a

llo
w

 b
et

te
r 

su
cc

es
si

on
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

av
oi

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
ge

nc
y 

st
af

f t
o 

co
ve

r 
va

ca
nt

 p
os

ts
(4

)
(4

)
(4

)
0

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t &
 IT

 S
tr

at
eg

y
C

os
t C

on
ta

in
m

en
t

(1
5)

(4
2)

(4
2)

0

Page 780



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

F
in

an
ce

 &
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t &
 IT

 S
tr

at
eg

y
R

ed
uc

ed
 H

F
B

P
 c

os
ts

(3
00

)
(5

00
)

(5
00

)
0

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t &
 IT

 S
tr

at
eg

y
O

ffi
ce

 D
ep

ot
 S

ta
tio

ne
ry

 R
eb

at
e

(2
0)

(2
0)

(2
0)

0

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t &
 IT

 S
tr

at
eg

y
S

ta
ffi

ng
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 in

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t. 
 F

irs
t p

ha
se

 o
f m

ar
ke

t t
es

tin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 
(6

0)
(6

0)
(6

0)
(1

.0
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 F
C

S
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

m
er

ge
r 

of
 F

in
an

ce
 &

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e'
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

(1
22

)
(1

22
)

(1
22

)
(1

.0
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
S

pa
ns

 &
 ti

er
s 

re
vi

ew
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
du

ci
ng

 A
D

 n
um

be
rs

(2
00

)
(4

00
)

(6
00

)
(3

.0
)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

S
lic

ke
r 

B
us

in
es

s 
- 

W
C

F
M

(1
70

)
(1

70
)

(1
70

)
(3

.0
)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

B
ill

in
g 

&
 P

ay
m

en
ts

(1
7)

(1
7)

(1
7)

0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

C
us

to
m

er
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

A
dv

er
tis

in
g 

&
 S

po
ns

or
sh

ip
(1

75
)

(1
75

)
(1

75
)

0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

C
on

tr
ac

t
(6

0)
(6

0)
(6

0)
0

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 H

&
F

 N
ew

s
(1

50
)

(1
50

)
(1

50
)

(2
.0

)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

R
ol

e 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

- 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 H
&

F
 a

nd
 R

B
K

&
C

 L
eg

al
 T

ea
m

s
(5

0)
(1

00
)

(1
50

)
(2

.0
)

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
or

tfo
lio

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
0

(4
7)

(2
97

)
0

T
o

ta
l

(3
,8

76
)

(4
,9

33
)

(5
,7

83
)

(4
0)

Page 781



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
 &

 H
o

u
si

n
g

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

F
in

an
ce

S
lic

ke
r 

B
us

in
es

s:
 W

or
ld

 C
la

ss
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

(3
2)

(6
5)

(6
5)

(1
)

H
ou

si
ng

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 V

F
M

 A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

 F
un

ct
io

ns
0

(7
83

)
(1

,0
23

)
(4

0)

H
ou

si
ng

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

(3
4)

(3
4)

(3
4)

0

H
ou

si
ng

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
to

ra
ge

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 c

os
ts

(2
0)

(2
0)

(2
0)

0

H
ou

si
ng

V
F

M
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 in
 in

te
rp

re
tin

g 
co

st
s

(1
0)

(1
0)

(1
0)

0

H
ou

si
ng

R
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

G
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g
(2

66
)

(2
66

)
(2

66
)

(4
)

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

fu
nc

tio
n:

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fr

om
 H

R
A

(4
26

)
(4

26
)

(4
26

)
0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
T

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
to

 W
es

t L
on

do
n 

B
us

in
es

s
(1

4)
(1

4)
(1

4)
0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
V

F
M

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 in

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

co
st

s
(2

1)
(2

1)
(2

1)
0

T
o

ta
l

(9
23

)
(1

,7
39

)
(1

,9
79

)
(4

5)

Page 782



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s
20

11
/1

2

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ev
ie

w
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 s
tr

ee
t c

le
an

si
ng

 c
os

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

S
er

co
 c

on
tr

ac
t

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

(1
00

)
0.

0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
In

cr
ea

se
 b

ul
ky

 w
as

te
 c

ha
rg

es
 a

bo
ve

 5
%

 w
ith

 th
e 

m
in

im
um

 c
ha

rg
e 

be
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 £
15

 to
 £

20
 fo

r 
up

 to
 5

 it
em

s 
(r

at
he

r 
th

an
 th

e 
of

fe
r 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 3
)

(2
0)

(2
0)

(2
0)

0.
0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
G

ra
ffi

ti 
an

d 
cl

in
ic

al
 w

as
te

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 r

ev
ie

w
(3

0)
(3

0)
(3

0)
(1

.0
)

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

at
io

na
lis

in
g 

C
on

tr
ac

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

(3
5)

(3
5)

(3
5)

(1
.0

)

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
E

ye
s 

an
d 

E
ar

s 
- 

R
S

D
 (

ra
tio

na
lis

in
g 

ou
r 

on
-s

tr
ee

t e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
nd

 w
ar

de
n 

te
am

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f l

oc
ki

ng
 / 

un
lo

ck
in

g 
pa

rk
s)

(3
00

)
(3

95
)

(3
95

)
(8

.0
)

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
M

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 S
tr

ay
 d

og
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
(1

0)
(1

0)
(1

0)
0.

0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
B

rin
g 

N
I1

95
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
-h

ou
se

(1
0)

(1
0)

(1
0)

0.
0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 
re

tu
rn

 o
f s

ho
pp

in
g 

tr
ol

le
ys

 a
nd

 s
et

 u
p 

an
 A

 B
oa

rd
s 

an
nu

al
 li

ce
nc

e 
fe

e 
(1

0)
(1

0)
(1

0)
0.

0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
P

re
m

iu
m

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0.
0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
om

m
er

ci
al

 W
as

te
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, f
ee

s,
 c

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
fit

ab
ili

ty
(1

10
)

(1
10

)
(1

10
)

0.
0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

P
itc

hi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 a
s 

an
 in

co
m

e 
gr

ow
th

 s
tr

ea
m

(1
5)

(1
5)

(1
5)

0.
0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

E
xp

lo
re

 n
ew

 m
ar

ke
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ow

in
g 

ce
m

et
er

ie
s 

bu
si

ne
ss

, m
em

or
ab

ili
a,

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
fo

r 
a 

gr
av

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

lia
is

on
 w

ith
 v

et
er

in
ar

y 
ho

sp
ita

ls
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
su

pp
lie

r 
fo

r 
pe

t c
re

m
at

or
iu

m
 s

er
vi

ce
s

(4
5)

(4
5)

(4
5)

0.
0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

U
ni

ve
rs

al
 p

ro
du

ct
 o

ffe
rin

g 
en

co
m

pa
ss

in
g 

E
N

V
/R

S
D

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 la
rg

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
s 

(7
5)

(7
5)

(7
5)

0.
0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

G
ro

w
th

 in
 th

e 
sa

le
s 

of
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l w

itn
es

s 
&

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 w

ar
de

ns
 s

er
vi

ce
(1

5)
(1

5)
(1

5)
0.

0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

C
on

su
lta

nc
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s
(4

5)
(4

5)
(4

5)
0.

0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

S
po

ns
or

sh
ip

(2
0)

(1
15

)
(1

15
)

0.
0

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 In
co

m
e

G
ro

w
th

 in
 d

iv
is

io
na

l i
nc

om
e 

st
re

am
s 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 s

til
l p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f f
ee

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
in

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 w
e 

ar
e 

st
ill

 u
nd

er
pr

ic
ed

 r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t

(2
17

)
(2

17
)

(2
17

)
0.

0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
M

ov
e 

fr
om

 4
 to

 2
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
D

s 
ov

er
 2

 y
ea

rs
 

(1
20

)
(1

20
)

(2
40

)
(1

.0
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
M

ov
e 

fr
om

 9
 to

 7
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 o

ve
r 

2 
ye

ar
s

(1
30

)
(1

30
)

(1
30

)
(2

.0
)

Page 783



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 -

 C
re

at
e 

ad
m

in
 h

ub
s 

in
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
ro

un
d 

bi
lli

ng
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 a

dm
in

/r
ep

or
t 

w
rit

in
g.

 M
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

ct
iv

ity
 to

 th
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e
(2

10
)

(2
10

)
(2

10
)

(6
.0

)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
C

ro
ss

 C
ut

tin
g 

C
on

tr
ac

t R
en

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
(1

5)
(2

1)
(2

1)
0.

0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
R

ed
uc

e 
fr

om
 7

 to
 6

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

. T
he

re
 is

 a
lre

ad
y 

an
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
f £

12
0k

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
fr

om
 9

 to
 7

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
fr

om
 2

01
1/

12
(6

5)
(6

5)
(6

5)
(1

.0
)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f G

M
 c

on
tr

ac
t

(1
55

)
(2

83
)

(2
83

)
0.

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

F
ur

th
er

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

is
e 

ev
en

ts
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e
(1

30
)

(1
30

)
(1

30
)

(3
.0

)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

T
en

ni
s 

de
liv

er
y 

re
vi

ew
 

(5
5)

(5
5)

(5
5)

(2
.0

)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

te
am

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

(1
50

)
(1

50
)

(1
50

)
(3

.0
)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
em

ov
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
at

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
(2

.5
)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
at

io
na

lis
e 

A
rc

hi
ve

s 
S

er
vi

ce
(8

8)
(8

8)
(8

8)
(2

.0
)

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
at

io
na

lis
e 

bo
w

lin
g 

gr
ee

ns
(2

2)
(2

2)
(2

2)
0.

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

F
ut

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 li

br
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

e
(3

10
)

(3
10

)
(3

10
)

0.
0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 F
ul

ha
m

 P
al

ac
e

(5
0)

(1
00

)
(1

50
)

0.
0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 A
W

P
 le

as
e 

in
co

m
e

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

0.
0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

N
et

 p
re

m
is

es
 s

av
in

g 
on

 tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

P
as

sm
or

e 
E

dw
ar

ds
 L

ib
ra

ry
 to

 th
e 

B
us

h 
T

he
at

re
(3

2)
(3

2)
(3

2)
0.

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
ed

es
ig

n 
la

yo
ut

 o
f C

em
et

er
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

to
 r

el
ea

se
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 b
ur

ia
l s

pa
ce

 fo
r 

sa
le

(1
14

)
(1

14
)

(1
14

)
0.

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

£4
00

k 
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

av
in

g 
on

 L
ei

su
re

 c
on

tr
ac

t r
ev

ie
w

 fr
om

 2
01

2/
13

 -
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

om
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 a
nd

 
re

su
lti

ng
 p

ar
t y

ea
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

av
in

g.
 D

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 w
ith

 C
H

S
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
y 

im
pa

ct
 fo

r 
P

ho
en

ix
 

S
ch

oo
l.

(1
00

)
(4

00
)

(4
00

)
0.

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

A
dd

iti
on

 to
 p

la
nn

ed
 2

01
1/

12
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 o

n 
gr

ou
nd

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

on
tr

ac
t. 

(1
7)

(1
7)

(1
7)

0.
0

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 A
D

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 p

os
t f

ro
m

 1
 to

 0
.5

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 W

or
ld

 C
la

ss
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

W
C

F
M

) 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

A
s 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l f
in

an
ce

 te
am

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 m
or

e 
ce

nt
ra

lis
ed

 te
am

s,
 th

e 
ro

le
 o

f d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l A
D

s 
w

ill
 

be
 r

ed
uc

ed
(6

0)
(6

0)
(6

0)
(0

.5
)

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 te

am
 p

os
t a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
m

an
ag

er
 s

el
f s

er
vi

ce
, t

he
re

fo
re

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
ro

le
(4

3)
(4

3)
(4

3)
(1

.0
)

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

F
in

an
ce

 te
am

 R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

as
 p

ar
t o

f W
or

ld
 C

la
ss

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
W

C
F

M
) 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

(1
13

)
(1

13
)

(1
13

)
(3

.0
)

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
av

in
gs

 O
ut

 o
f H

ou
rs

 r
ev

ie
w

(9
9)

(9
9)

(9
9)

(3
.0

)

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
of

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

- 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 S

LA
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ch
ar

ge
s

(4
0)

(4
0)

(4
0)

0.
0

Page 784



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ed
uc

e 
IT

 s
to

ra
ge

 c
os

ts
 b

el
ow

 e
xi

st
in

g 
S

LA
 T

ar
ge

t
(4

3)
(4

3)
(4

3)
0.

0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 S

ec
ur

ity
  c

os
ts

(4
0)

(1
40

)
(1

40
)

0.
0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
S

N
D

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 r

ev
ie

w
(1

0)
(1

0)
(1

0)
0.

0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
P

ol
ic

in
g 

M
od

el
 p

ol
ic

in
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 h
ou

rs
(1

20
)

(1
20

)
(1

20
)

0.
0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
O

ut
so

ur
ci

ng
 th

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 F

M
 m

ar
ke

t t
es

tin
g 

ex
er

ci
se

0
(1

20
)

(1
55

)
0.

0

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
T

ar
ge

te
d 

15
%

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
fo

rm
er

 A
B

G
 b

ud
ge

ts
(1

08
)

(1
08

)
(1

08
)

(1
.0

)

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
In

cr
ea

se
 2

4/
7 

P
ol

ic
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

 fr
om

 £
12

0k
 to

 £
27

5k
 th

ro
ug

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

m
od

el
lin

g
(1

55
)

(1
55

)
(1

55
)

(1
.0

)

T
o

ta
l 

(3
,7

91
)

(4
,6

85
)

(4
,8

90
)

(4
2)

Page 785



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
A

pp
en

di
x 

D

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 It
em

s

D
iv

is
io

n
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
av

in
g

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

£0
00

s
£0

00
s

£0
00

s

C
ap

ita
l D

eb
t R

ed
uc

tio
n

D
eb

t R
ed

uc
tio

n 
S

tr
at

eg
y

(7
00

)
(1

,4
00

)
(3

,3
80

)
0

P
en

si
on

s 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

0
(8

00
)

(8
00

)
0

C
ro

ss
-C

ut
tin

g
F

ur
th

er
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 fr
om

 o
ut

so
ur

ci
ng

 a
nd

 n
ew

 w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

0
(8

,2
11

)
(1

0,
29

2)
0

T
o

ta
l 

(7
00

)
(1

0,
41

1)
(1

4,
47

2)
0

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
 a

n
d

 F
u

lh
am

 -
 S

u
m

m
ar

y

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 

F
T

E
s

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

(2
6,

70
9)

(5
0,

07
3)

(6
4,

18
0)

(3
39

)

Page 786



R
is

ks
A

pp
en

di
x 

E

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
ll 

D
iv

is
io

ns
.

T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 n

ew
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 h
ig

h 
de

gr
ee

 o
f o

pe
ra

tio
na

l d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 to

 
de

liv
er

.  
2,

36
0

3,
45

5
7,

00
5

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y-

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
by

 5
 m

in
ui

te
 th

ro
ug

h 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
fo

r 
al

l h
om

e 
ca

re
 

ho
ur

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d.

29
0

29
0

29
0

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
Lo

ss
 o

f I
LF

 F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
s

0
18

3
36

6

A
ll 

D
iv

is
io

ns
.

T
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 b

ud
ge

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
sh

or
tfa

lls
 a

dd
ed

 a
s 

gr
ow

th
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 m
ea

n 
ht

he
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t h

as
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

sh
or

tfa
ll 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
s 

gr
ow

th
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

fo
un

d.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 
ris

k 
th

at
 th

is
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
0

1,
29

3
1,

29
3

T
o

ta
l

2,
65

0
5,

22
1

8,
95

4

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 787



R
is

ks
A

pp
en

di
x 

E

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

In
su

ra
nc

e
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 p
re

m
iu

m
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

ce
nt

 h
ig

h 
va

lu
e 

cl
ai

m
s

20
0

20
0

20
0

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

S
ub

si
dy

 G
ra

nt
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d
40

0
40

0
40

0

T
o

ta
l

20
0

20
0

20
0

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

F
in

an
ce

Lo
ss

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 c

os
ts

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 S
ki

lls
 S

er
vi

ce
, c

lo
se

do
w

n 
of

 N
ew

 
D

ea
l f

or
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 a

nd
 e

xp
iry

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Jo

bs
 F

un
d 

sc
he

m
es

80
80

80

F
in

an
ce

Lo
ss

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

os
ts

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 S
ki

lls
 S

er
vi

ce
 to

 F
ur

th
er

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
C

ol
le

ge
26

0
26

0
26

0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
S

ho
rt

fa
ll 

in
 r

en
ta

l i
nc

om
e 

on
 n

ew
 b

us
in

es
s 

st
ar

te
r 

un
its

70
70

70

T
o

ta
l

41
0

41
0

41
0

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

C
le

an
er

 G
re

en
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
om

m
er

ci
al

 W
as

te
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, f
ee

s,
 c

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
fit

ab
ili

ty
11

0
11

0
11

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

£4
00

k 
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

av
in

g 
on

 L
ei

su
re

 c
on

tr
ac

t r
ev

ie
w

 fr
om

 2
01

2/
13

 -
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

om
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
20

11
/1

2 
an

d 
re

su
lti

ng
 p

ar
t y

ea
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

av
in

g.
 D

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 w
ith

 C
H

S
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
y 

im
pa

ct
 fo

r 
P

ho
en

ix
 S

ch
oo

l.
10

0
40

0
40

0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

R
at

io
na

lis
e 

A
rc

hi
ve

s 
S

er
vi

ce
88

88
88

T
o

ta
l

29
8

59
8

59
8

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
&

 H
ou

si
ng

Page 788



R
is

ks
A

pp
en

di
x 

E

T
it

le
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

T
ra

de
 R

ef
us

e
T

ra
de

 R
ef

us
e 

T
ra

ns
iti

on
 

70
0

0
0

P
ay

 
P

ay
 A

w
ar

d 
at

 2
%

0
3,

00
0

6,
00

0

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

25
0

25
0

25
0

In
fla

tio
n

C
on

tr
ac

t i
nf

la
tio

n 
2%

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

ss
um

ed
2,

14
0

4,
28

0
6,

42
0

C
or

po
ra

te
P

ot
en

tia
l n

on
-d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

av
in

gs
2,

70
0

2,
70

0
2,

70
0

C
or

po
ra

te
D

eb
t R

ed
uc

tio
n 

- 
do

w
nt

ur
n/

de
la

y 
in

 fo
re

ca
st

 c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s.

  I
nt

er
es

t r
at

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
50

0
50

0
50

0

C
or

po
ra

te
C

os
ts

 in
cu

rr
ed

 in
 a

ss
et

 d
is

po
sa

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0

T
o

ta
l

7,
29

0
11

,7
30

16
,8

70

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

10
,8

48
18

,1
59

27
,0

32

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 a
nd

 F
ul

ha
m

 -
 S

um
m

ar
y

C
or

po
ra

te

Page 789



A
pp

en
di

x 
F

R
ev

en
u

e 
G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 2

01
1/

12

F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
tr

ea
m

20
10

/1
1 

A
w

ar
d

M
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 

E
xi

st
in

g
 G

ra
n

ts
/ 

O
th

er
 C

h
an

g
es

20
10

/1
1 

C
o

m
p

ar
ab

le
  

A
w

ar
d

20
11

/1
2 

A
ct

u
al

 
A

w
ar

d
C

h
an

g
e 

in
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
o

m
m

en
t

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

12
0,

92
2

19
,4

51
14

0,
37

3
12

4,
51

0
(1

5,
86

3)

A
re

a 
B

as
ed

 G
ra

n
t

22
,6

68
(1

8,
63

0)
4,

03
8

0
(4

,0
38

)

C
o

re
 R

ev
en

u
e 

G
ra

n
ts

- 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l P

F
I G

ra
nt

1,
09

4
0

1,
09

4
T

B
C

0
T

o 
be

 c
on

fir
m

ed
- 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 A
dm

in
 

2,
43

9
0

2,
43

9
2,

28
8

(1
51

)
- 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 F
re

ez
e 

G
ra

nt
0

0
0

1,
61

9
1,

61
9

- 
E

ar
ly

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

G
ra

nt
0

10
,8

25
10

,8
25

9,
42

9
(1

,3
96

)
- 

Le
ad

 F
lo

od
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

G
ra

nt
0

0
0

15
9

15
9

- 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

3,
86

8
0

3,
86

8
3,

96
2

94
- 

N
ew

 H
om

es
 B

on
us

 G
ra

nt
0

0
0

90
9

90
9

- 
P

re
ve

nt
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

G
ra

nt
1,

23
3

0
1,

23
3

1,
77

5
54

2
N

ew
 C

o
re

 R
ev

en
u

e 
G

ra
n

ts
 T

o
ta

l
8,

63
4

10
,8

25
19

,4
59

20
,1

41
1,

77
6

S
p

ec
if

ic
 G

ra
n

ts
- 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
G

ra
nt

s
17

,2
04

(1
5,

19
1)

2,
01

3
0

(2
,0

13
)

- 
N

on
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

G
ra

nt
s

10
,7

88
(9

,0
40

)
1,

74
8

0
(1

,7
48

)
- 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
F

un
di

ng
1,

43
4

(3
98

)
1,

03
6

0
(1

,0
36

)
S

p
ec

if
ic

 G
ra

n
ts

 T
o

ta
l

29
,4

26
(2

4,
62

9)
4,

79
7

0
(4

,7
97

)

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

18
1,

65
0

(1
2,

98
3)

16
8,

66
7

14
4,

65
1

(2
2,

92
2)

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 S

ch
oo

ls
 G

ra
nt

 
93

,4
34

15
,1

91
10

8,
62

5
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

o 
be

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 in

 J
un

e 
20

12

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 F
u

n
d

in
g

27
5,

08
4

2,
20

8 
¹

27
7,

29
2

14
4,

65
1

(2
2,

92
2)

N
o

te
s

¹ 
T

he
 n

et
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f £
2.

20
8m

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

ne
w

 fu
nd

in
g 

st
re

am
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f f

or
m

ul
a 

gr
an

t. 
 T

he
 la

rg
es

t e
le

m
en

t i
s 

£1
.4

8m
 fo

r 
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es

² 
T

he
re

 e
xi

st
s 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 g
ra

nt
s 

w
ho

se
 s

ta
tu

s 
an

d/
or

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 r

em
ai

n 
un

cl
ea

r 
fo

r 
20

11
/1

2.
  T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
re

am
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

, U
A

S
C

 
(U

nd
er

 1
8)

 a
nd

 U
A

S
C

 (
Le

av
in

g 
C

ar
e)

.  
In

 to
ta

l, 
th

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
£4

.7
8m

 in
 2

01
0/

11
.

Page 790



Appendix G

Children's Services
Fees & Charges

2010/11
&

2011/12

Review January 2011

Page 791



Fees and Charges: Exemptions to 2% Uplift Appendix 6

Children's Services

Fee Description by Division
2010/11 Charge 

(£)
2011/12 Charge 

(£)
Proposed Uplift 

(%)
Reason for uplift/comments 

��������	
���
Play Service - Out of Hours School 
Care (Full Fee) per day 8.10 8.10 0

Leader has agreed no uplift.

Play Service - Out of Hours School 
Care (Concession) per day 5.50 5.50 0

Leader has agreed no uplift.

�
����
���������
����������
������������

��

Community Hall Hire  - 1 room per hour 4.28 4.37 2.00

Community Hall Hire  - 1 hall per hour. 15.30 15.61 2.00
Private Hall Hire  - 1 room per hour. 21.73 22.16 2.00
Private Hall Hire  - 1 hall per hour 41.57 42.40 2.00

���

�����������
School Meals- Primary (Pupils) 2.40 2.42 0.92 Charges increased in line with contract.
School Meals- Secondary (Pupils) 1.80 1.82 0.92 Charges increased in line with contract.
School Meals- Primary (Adults) 2.95 2.98 0.92 Charges increased in line with contract.
School Meals- Secondary (Adults) 3.21 3.24 0.92 Charges increased in line with contract.

�
��������
��

CLC 1

Full day
412.00 435.00 5.58

Fees have not been increased since 2008 and 
benchmarking revealed existing charges were lower than 
comparable venues.

Half day 206.00 220.00 6.80 As Above 
CLC 2
Full day 412.00 435.00 5.58 As Above 
Half day 206.00 220.00 6.80 As Above 
CLC 3
Full day 467.00 490.00 4.93 As Above 
Half day 234.00 245.00 4.70 As Above 
Conference per day 290.00 305.00 5.17 As Above 
Curriculum Support/Training per day 626.00 660.00 5.43 As Above 
Technical Support per day 626.00 660.00 5.43 As Above 
IT Consultancy per day 626.00 660.00 5.43 As Above 

�
����������

Education Staff

Meeting Room

75.00

Existing charges to apply until at least July 11.  Review of 
charges will be undertaken following the School 
Improvement and Standards Division restructure and 
outcome of 3 borough working discussions.

Boardroom 150.00 As above 
Training Suite 175.00 As above 
Conference Room 225.00 As above 

LBHF EX EDU

Meeting Room 100.00 As above 
Boardroom 200.00 As above 

Training Suite 225.00 As above 

Conference Room 275.00 As above 

External Users
Meeting Room 100.00 As above 
Boardroom 200.00 As above 
Training Suite 375.00 As above 
Conference Room 500.00 As above 

Page 792



Appendix G

Community Services
Fees & Charges

2010/11
&

2011/12

Review January 2011

Page 793



Community Services

Fee Description by Division
2010/11 Charge 

(£)
2011/12 Charge 

(£)
Proposed Uplift 

(%)
Reason for uplift 

Meal Service 

Meals Service 3.85 4.10 6%

For the Meals on Wheels service the price per meal is 
proposed to increase from £3.85 to £4.10 in 2011/12. Some 
other Boroughs currently charge up to £5.99 per meal.  
Hammersmith & Fulham has kept its price lower by making 
efficiencies in the costs of delivery.

Home Care Charging

Home Care Charge 10.72 12.00 12%

The Cabinet has previously mandated officers to increase the 
contribution per hour for home care up to £12.40.  It is 
proposed in this budget to increase the contribution in 
2011/12 from £10.72 per hour to £12.00. This is inline with the 
actual cost of home care provision. 

Removals
ADDITIONAL STAFFING
Monday - Friday - per man hour 21.68 21.68 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Saturday - per man hour 22.54 22.54 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Out of hours - per man hour 22.54 22.54 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Saturday after 1430hrs 30.09 30.09 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Waiting time per hour 38.71 38.71 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Late notice of cancellation 
(within 24hrs)

38.71 38.71 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Cancellation from store 60.28 60.28 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Packing service - per man hour 21.68 21.68 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Packing cases - each 3.77 3.77 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Client access to store per hour 56.10 56.10 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive
STORAGE COSTS

0-300 cubic ft per day 2.14 2.35 10%
Retaining trading account position due to fall in volume of 
containers

351-550 cubic ft per day 4.39 4.83 10%
Retaining trading account position due to fall in volume of 
containers

Over551 cubic ft per day extra - 
per cubic ft

0.01 0.01 10%
Retaining trading account position due to fall in volume of 
containers

Packing crate charge per week 0.71 0.71 0% Uplift would otherwise make service uncompetitive

Dump charge per container 
(Housing)

46.61 46.61 0% Uplift would otherwise make service uncompetitive

ALL OTHER REMOVALS
Monday-Friday 0800hrs-1500hrs 
Van x 2 staff

43.35 43.35 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Extra staff - per man hour 21.68 21.68 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Saturdays - per man hour 32.44 32.44 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Sundays - per man hour 43.35 43.35 0% Uplift would otherwise make the service uncompetitive

Page 794



Appendix G

Environment Services
Fees & Charges

2010/11
&

2011/12

Review January 2011

Page 795



Environment Services

Division/Service Fee Description 2010/11 Charge (£)
2011/12 Charge 

(£)
Proposed Uplift 

(%)
Reason for uplift 

Building Control Exempt Building Works Consent 100 New charge

Building Control
Retrieval of archived Files and Records, & 
Investigation and Retrieval of Microfiche data 

88 New charge

Building Control

Resurrection of ‘old’ jobs where no 
completion inspection had been requested or 
carried out, and for subsequent issuing of 
completion letters 

88 New charge

Valuers
Third Party fees charged for valuation 
services

469 500 6.61% Fee comparable to market level

Licensing
Renewal application for Sex Establishment 
(Shops & Cinemas)

16,688 8,696
Introduced a lower renewal fee (50% 
REDUCTION ON FEE FOR NEW APPLICATION)

Licensing
Renewal application for Sex Establishment 
(Sex Encounter Premises)

8,696 4%
Introduced a lower renewal fee (50% 
REDUCTION ON FEE FOR NEW APPLICATION)

Pest Control For each additional visit required - Rats 26.38 25.00 -5.2%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control For each additional visit required - Mice 26.38 25.00 -5.2%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control 1 visit for wasps 43.40 45.83 5.6%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control
2 visit for bedbug treatments; maximum of 
two bedrooms (additional rooms £25 each)

142.13 145.83 2.6%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control Up to 3 visits for coackroaches 97.87 100.00 2.2%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control
For each additional visit required for 
coackroaches

48.51 50.00 3.1%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control Commercial Charge
£81 for up to 1 hour, £41 
per 30 minutes there after 
(exe VAT)

£83 for up to 1 
hour, £41 per 30 
minutes there after 
(exe VAT)

2.5%
Fees recalculated to take into account 20% VAT 
rate. Charges rounded up or down, to make the 
pricing structure simpler

Pest Control
Includes squirrels, common clothes moths, 
etc. 

0 POA New charge

Pest Control Missed Appointment 0.00 21.00 New charge

Private Housing HMO Licence Fee
£1,020 plus £15 per 
habitable room

£1,060 plus £16 
per habitable room

4.0% Inflation + inspection costs for compliance

Private Housing Enforcement Notices under Housing Act 2004 380.00 395.00 4.0% Inflation + inspection costs for compliance

Environmental Quality Demolition Notice S80 Building Act 0.00 150.00
New charge to account for officer and processing 
time

Planning
Pre-application advice - A) Very Minor (by 
letter)

£25 for householders / £50 
for others

£51 for all 104% / 2% To ensure all officer time is recovered

Planning
Pre-application advice - A) Very Minor (first 
meeting)

£50 for householders / 
£100 for others

£100 for all 100% / 0% To ensure all officer time is recovered

Planning
Pre-application advice - advice on conditions 
(by letter)

A) - FREE;  B/C) £50; D/E) 
Charge will be negotiated 
based on officer charge 
out rates.  

A) - £51; B/C) £51; 
D/E) Charge will 
be negotiated 
based on officer 
charge out rates.  

New Charge/2% To ensure all officer time is recovered

Planning
Pre-application advice - advice on conditions 
(first meeting)

A) - £25 for householders, 
£50 for others                            
B/C) £100                         
D/E) Charge will be 
negotiated based on 
officer charge out rates. 

£51 for all 104% / 2% To ensure all officer time is recovered

Page 796



Appendix G

Regeneration & Housing Services
Fees & Charges

2010/11
&

2011/12

Review January 2011

Page 797



Regeneration & Housing

Fee Description by division
2010/11 Charge 

(£)
2011/12 Charge 

(£)
Proposed Uplift 

(%)
Reason for uplift 

��������	�
�������
���

��������	�
�������
����������������
 �����
 �����
 ���� ����
�������
����������������������������
���
��
����������������
�������


��������	�
�������
��������� ��������
�������!"

#$%�&���
����&�'�����
#�&�

#$#�(���
����&�
)�
������#�&�

���������
���*����
���
������������
������������ )�
������#�&�"�������+����&�'�����#�&�,������	�������
����
������
���
����������-���������
���.��
����'������
�� �.'"�������.'������
��

����������
�����
����
���!�������
,�������
�������*��������������������
���������
�/�����������
�����*��������
�$�0��*��.'����
�12��
����
��3�
�������
����*�1(������4����������������5�����	�������
���������6������������7��!���'���
�
 6�7'"�������
����*�189(����������6�7'
�

�������������
������������
�

����������6�:�6������	�����;+����� #89�$%��
����&�'�����

#�&�
#8#�<$��
����&�
)�
������#�&� ���������
���*����
���
������������
������������ )�
������#�&�"�������+����&�'�����#�&�,������	�������

����
������
���
����������-���������
���.��
����'������
�� �.'"�������.'������
��

����������
�����
����
���!�������
,�������
�������*��������������������
���������
�/������
�*����
������.'�����
�����*���������������
���������
�

6�:�6�'������������� 4���
������
��������
���
������
���������������������*������������*��
��������
���
���������
�
���*�6:6���������
�
������������
�����
�

���������������������������'������������������������ $�#� $�%& 2�(�

���������������������������#�'����
 &&�9( &#�#< 2�(�

���������������������������8�'����
� &2�<� &(�29 2�(�

���������������������������2�'����
� &9�8( &<�&8 2�(�

Page 798



Appendix G

Residents Services
Fees & Charges

2010/11
&

2011/12

Review January 2011

Page 799



Cleaner & Greener Neighbourhoods Fees & Charges 2010/11 - 2011/12

Description
2010/11 From 1st 

April 2010
2011/12 From 1st 

April 2011
% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge (E.g. benchmarking with 
other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

TRANSPORT
Transport Workshops - External Charges

Parts Cost + 10.5% Cost + 10.5% Variable Fees & charges change in year as the cost of buying these commodoties changes

Fuel - Diesel / Petrol Cost + 10.5% Cost + 10.5% Variable Fees & charges change in year as the cost of buying these commodoties changes

Ad Hoc Vehicle Hire Cost + 10.5% Cost + 10.5% Variable Fees & charges change in year as the cost of buying these commodoties changes

Management and Administration Charge
Based on 

Insurance Cost 
only + 10.5%

Based on 
Insurance Cost 

only + 10.5%
Variable Fees & charges change in year as the cost of buying these commodoties changes

WASTE MANAGEMENT
Trade Waste Charges

Trade Waste Sacks - General Waste - cost per sack £1.20 £1.40 17% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

Trade Waste Sacks - Recycling - cost per sack £0.85 £0.85 0% Price freeze to encourage increased recycling

360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - General Waste - cost per empty £6.85 £7.65 12% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - General Waste - 2-5 bins - cost per empty £6.75 £7.55 12% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - General Waste - 6+ bins - cost per empty £6.65 £7.45 12% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - Recycling - cost per empty £4.85 £4.85 0% Price freeze to encourage increased recycling
360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - Recycling - 2-5 bins - cost per empty £4.80 £4.80 0% Price freeze to encourage increased recycling
360 Ltr Wheelie Bins - Recycling - 6+ bins - cost per empty £4.75 £4.75 0% Price freeze to encourage increased recycling

1100 Ltr Euro Bins - General Waste - cost per empty £10.00 £13.00 30% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

1100 Ltr Euro Bins - General Waste - 2-5 bins - cost per empty £9.85 £12.85 30% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

1100 Ltr Euro Bins - General Waste - 6+ bins - cost per empty £9.70 £12.70 31% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

1280 Ltr Euro Bins - Recycling - cost per empty £7.70 £8.33 8% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

1280 Ltr Euro Bins - Recycling - 2-5 bins - cost per empty £7.60 £8.23 8% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

1280 Ltr Euro Bins - Recycling - 6+ bins - cost per empty £7.50 £8.13 8% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

940 Ltr Paladins & Chamberlains - General Waste Only £9.50 £12.50 32% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

940 Ltr Paladins & Chamberlains - 2-5 bins - General Waste Only £9.35 £12.35 32% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

940 Ltr Paladins & Chamberlains - 6+ bins - General Waste Only £9.25 £12.25 32% Align Fees & Charges with other competitiors and cover increased disposal costs

Skips & Compactors
Domestic Compactors - Internal £141.20 £141.20 0%
Domestic Compactors - External N/A £141.20 New Charge
Commercial Compactors £141.20 £350.00 148%
Commercial Skips £141.20 £200.00 42%
Household Bulky Collections - VAT Zero rated
Minimum charge for up to 5 large items £15.75 £20.00 27% Minimum charge bracket increased from 3 to 5 items
Further items charged at £5.75 per additional item New charge New charge New charge
General Bagged Household Waste - VAT Zero rated
Minimum charge for up to 10 sacks of miscellaneous waste £15.75 £20.00 27%
Further items charged at £2.00 per additional sack New charge New charge New charge
Household Derived Builders Rubble - VAT Zero rated

Minimum charge for up to 10 sacks of household derived builders rubble £30.00 £30.00 0%

Further items charged at £3.00 per additional sack New charge New charge New charge
Bathroom Suites (items include bath, toilet, hand basin & shower 
stand)
First item £30.00 £30.00 0%
Further items charged at £6.00 per additional item £32.50 £36.00 11%
Household Fencing Waste
First 5 panels £30.00 £35.00 0%

Additional Panels
extra panels 

charged for at the 
unit rate of £6.04

(extra panels 
charged for at the 

rate of £7.00 per 
item)

16%

Broken down sheds £48.00 £60.00 25%
Household Fridges and Fridge Freezers etc
One fridge / freezer £15.75 N/A N/A Now charged for as standard bulky waste above
Two fridges / freezers £15.75 N/A N/A Now charged for as standard bulky waste above
Three fridges / freezers £15.75 N/A N/A Now charged for as standard bulky waste above

Trade Bulky Collections
As above but 

subject to VAT
Trade Fridges and Fridge Freezers etc
One fridge / freezer £26.25 £50.00 90%
Two fridges / freezers £31.50 £80.00 154%
Three fridges / freezers £36.75 £110.00 199%

STREET TRADING CHARGES - all inclusive of VAT
2010/11 From 1st 

April 2010
2011/12 From 1st 

April 2011
% Change from 
1st April 2010

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

Permanent Trader £55.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Temporary Trader £55.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Annual Renewal £55.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Replacement Licence £55.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Variation Fee (NEW) N/A TBC TBC New charge introduction for commodity and pitch variation - tbc
Street & Market Traders - Weekly charges (PERM ONLY)

1 day per week (Standard) £20.40 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

1 day per week (Extended) £29.58 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

2 days per week(Standard) £27.54 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

2 days per week(Extended) £41.82 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

3 days per week (Standard) £42.84 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Page 800



3 days per week (Extended) £61.20 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

4 days per week (Standard) £54.06 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

4 days per week (Extended) £80.58 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

5 days per week (Standard) £68.34 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

5 days per week (Extended) £99.96 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

6 days per week (Standard) £83.64 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

6 days per week (Extended) £120.36 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

* An additional charge of £10 will be payable for trading on Friday and/or 
Saturday - NO LONGER APPLICABLE DUE TO PRICE INCREASE 
PROPOSAL.
News Vendors

Annual Charges £3,053.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Daily charges:
Temporary Licences for casual traders at street markets (per day)

Mon-Thurs (Standard) £20.40 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Mon-Thurs (Extended) N/A TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Fri/Sat (Standard) £30.60 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Fri/Sat (Extended) N/A TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

* An additional charge of £10 will be payable for trading on Friday and/or 
Saturday - NO LONGER APPLICABLE DUE TO PRICE INCREASE 
PROPOSAL.
Charges for Traders outside football grounds

Annual Charge per square metre £395.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Minimum charge of 1.5 sq m and maximum charge of 12 sq m
Charges for Specialist markets/events (NEW)

Charge per trading day £395.00 TBC TBC
Market Trading prices being reviewed to ensure full recovery of waste collection 
and disposal costs

Page 801



Safer Neighbourhoods Fees & Charges 2010/11 - 2011/12

No VAT is applied to these charges

Description
2010/11 From 1st 

April 2010
2011/12 From 1st 

April 2011

% Change from 
1st January 

2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge (E.g. benchmarking with other 
Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs)
£50 (£75 if paid 

after 10 days)
£60 (£80 if paid 

after 10 days)
20% 20% In line with neighbouring boroughs

Motorcycle recovery £25.00 £30.00 0% 20% No comparator information available

ASB investigations (charge per hour) £100.00 £100.00 0% 0% Currently little demand for service

Infectious cases from Kingston Hospital to Fulham Mortuary £450.00 £750.00 0% 67%

Return of Stray Dogs to Owners N/A £75.00 New Charge New Charge New charge in line with neighbouring boroughs

Page 802



Parks & Culture Fees & Charges 2010/11 - 2011/12

Description
2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge (E.g. benchmarking with other Councils, 
Competitor Analysis etc)

SPORTS CHARGES
Winter Pitch Bookings
FOOTBALL @ SP HP WWS
Per pitch per game (am or pm 2hrs) £60.00 £70.00 17%
Junior pitch rate   - 7-a-sides at Wormwood Scrubs N/A £45.00 New Charge
Football per hour - In Borough state Schools £27.00 £32.00 19%
Football per hour - out of borough and private Schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
**11-a-side All Weather Pitch
Per pitch per hour £60.00 £70.00 17%
 In Borough state School £27.00 £32.00 19%
Out of borough and private Schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
**5-a-side All Weather Pitch
Per pitch per hour £32.50 £35.00 8%
School  -  In borough state Schools £15.00 £17.00 13%
Out of borough and private Schools N/A £19.98 New Charge
RUGBY/GAELIC FOOTBALL/LACROSSE/HOCKEY/AUSTRALIAN 
RULES*
Per pitch per game (am or pm 2hrs) £60.00 £70.00 17%
Rugby per match @ Hurlingham - in borough state Schools £27.00 £32.00 19%
Rugby per match @ HurPk - out of borough and private schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
Summer Pitch Booking
CRICKET (10am - 5.00pm or 5.00pm -9.00pm)
Per pitch per game (day or night) £60.00 £85.00 42%
Cricket per hour - in borough state School £27.00 £32.00 19%
Cricket per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
ROUNDERS/BASEBALL @ Sp / WWS
Per pitch per game £60.00 £70.00 17%
Rounders per hour - in borough state Schools £27.00 £32.00 19%
Rounders per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
MINI BASEBALL @ WWS

 Per pitch per game N/A £50.00 New Charge New separate charge for mini baseball from April 2011 - previously charged in line with baseball

SOFTBALL @ Eel Brook
Per pitch per game £60.00 £70.00 17%
BICYCLE POLO
Per pitch per game £60.00 £70.00 17%
TOUCH/TAG RUGBY (half size of football pitch, 2 pitches = 1 
football pitch)
Per pitch per game £27.00 £32.00 19%
Tag Rugby per hour - in borough state School £27.00 £32.00 19%
Tag Rugby - out of borough and private schools N/A £37.60 New Charge
Hurlingham Park & South Park
ATHLETICS- Adult and Corporate groups
Inc. markings, changing room
Athletics per hour £35.00 £45.00 29%
Athletics Half Day (3 hours) £105.00 £130.00 24%
Athletics Full Day (6 hours) £210.00 £250.00 19%
Hurlingham Park & South Park
ATHLETICS- Adult and Corporate groups
Excl. markings, changing room
Athletics per hour N/A £35.00 New Charge New site specific charge
Athletics Half Day (3 hours) N/A £100.00 New Charge New site specific charge
Athletics Full Day (6 hours) N/A £190.00 New Charge New site specific charge
ATHLETICS  - Schools
Inc. markings, changing room
Athletics per hour £15.00 £32.00 113%
Athletics per half day £60.00 £90.00 50%
Athletics per full day £120.00 £170.00 42%
Sports Area  @ Ravenscourt, Brook Green, Lillie Road
Without markings
Athletics per hour £15.00 £20.00 33%
Athletics per half day(3 hours) N/A £55.00 New Charge Reconfigured timings
Athletics per full day (6 hours) N/A £110.00 New Charge Reconfigured timings
Athletics per hour - in borough state Schools N/A £17.00 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
Athletics per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £19.98 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
Markings to be confirmed with GM
Athletics per hour N/A £15.00 New Charge
TENNIS 
Pay and Play
Pay and Play - Adult £9.00 £9.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
Pre booked £7.00 £7.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
Pay and Play - U/18 £3.50 £3.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
Pre Booked - School £3.50 £3.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service

Lifestyle - 2 members per court per hour - 9am-4pm, Mon - Fri £3.50 £3.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service

Tennis With Floodlights
Pay and Play - Adult N/A £11.00 New Charge New floodlit service
Pre booked N/A £7.00 New Charge New floodlit service
Pay and Play - U/18 N/A £5.50 New Charge New floodlit service
Pre Booked - School N/A £5.50 New Charge New floodlit service

Lifestyle - 2 members per court per hour - 9am-4pm, Mon - Fri N/A £5.50 New Charge New floodlit service

5 games
Pre booked 5 games £35.00 £35.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
10 games
Pre booked 10 games £70.00 £70.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
Tennis Coach Licence FEE
Coaches Licence Fee (One payment) £920.00 £920.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark and imminent contracting out of service
Coaches Licence Fee (Six payments) £920.00 £960.00 4% Additional charge for payment by instalments
NETBALL
Per court per game £9.00 £10.00 11%
Floodlights £18.00 £20.00 11%
Netball per hour - in borough state School £9.00 £10.00 11%
Netball per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £11.75 New Charge
COMMUNITY ROOM @ HURLINGHAM (look at promoting party 
hire)
 Room Hire only   £46.00 £46.00 0% Price freeze due to lack of demand
 Party Hire (1hr) Room +(1hr) Sports Pitch = (2hr)  N/A £90.00 New Charge New product offering

Page 803



CHANGING ROOM @ HURLINGHAM
 Charge per booking £15.00 £16.00 7%
 For in borough state schools per booking £15.00 £16.00 7%
 Out of borough and private schools booking N/A £18.80 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
BOWLS
Adult - per person per round £2.00 £2.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
OAP/Youth - per person per round £1.00 £1.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
Lifestyle - per cardholder per round £1.00 £1.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
Adult season ticket £42.00 £42.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
OAP/Youth season ticket £21.00 £21.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
Locker rent £10.00 £10.00 0% Income retained by bowling club
TRAINING AREA & FLOODLIGHTS @ HURLINGHAM
 Training area per hour - includes Change & Com room £30.00 £32.00 7%
Training area per hour - in borough state School N/A £32.00 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
Training area per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £37.60 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges

Fulham Football Club - Grass pitch and Community Room Prices

AWP &/ Grass pitches, Com Room & Changing room -per day £225.00 £225.00 0% Market value to maintain scheme

TRAINING AREAS at LILLIE ROAD, BISHOPS PARK, SOUTH 
PARK and EEL BROOK COMMON
Football, Rugby, Gaelic Football, Australian Rules Football
 Training area per hour  N/A £32.00 New Charge
Training area per hour - in borough state School N/A £17.00 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
Training area per hour - out of borough and private schools N/A £19.98 New Charge Differentiate out of borough and private school charges
 Equipment Storage N/A £150.00 New Charge

 GROUP TRAINING INSTRUCTOR ANNUAL LICENCE FEE N/A £1,200.00 New Charge
 PERSONAL TRAINER ANNUAL LICENCE FEE N/A £350.00 New Charge
 Discounts (%) Allowed on booking price 
 6-9 blook booking  25% 20% -20%
 10 or more booking that meet criteria VAT EXEMPT 18% 20% 14% VAT increase Jan 2011 so bigger discount
SPORTS CHARGES - Linford Christie Stadium
 Athletics ALL - New fees and charges specific to Linford Christie Stadium
 *Under 16's Over 60's or Disabled 
Annual Inclusive Pass
 Adult (Member) £80.00 £90.00 13%
 Adult ( Non Member) £120.00 £140.00 17%
 *Concessionary (12 months only) (member) £30.00 £40.00 33%
 *Concessionary (12 months only) (Non Member) £40.00 £70.00 75%
 Student 12 months £40.00 £70.00 75%
 Adult 6 months (member) £43.00 £50.00 16%
 Adult 6 months (non member) £60.00 £80.00 33%
Causal Use session Price
 Adult (Member) £4.00 £4.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Adult (Non Member) £5.00 £5.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 *Concessionary (12 months only) (member) £2.00 £2.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 *Concessionary (12 months only) (Non Member) £3.00 £3.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Lifestyle Plus Member £0.50 £0.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Adult spectator/ entrance fee (events) £2.00 £2.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Use of shower facilities / changing facilities £2.00 £2.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
Track Hire
 Training (LBHF School) facilites only £24.00 £24.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Training (LBHF School) facilites  and Instructor £42.00 £42.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Training (non LBHF School) facilites only £48.00 £48.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Training (non LBHF School) facilites  and Instructor £56.00 £56.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Sports Day (LBHF School) up to 3 hrs - Facility only £140.00 £140.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Sports Day (LBHF School) up to 3 hrs - Facility and Instructor £220.00 £220.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Sports Day (non LBHF School) up to 3 hrs - Facility only £164.50 £164.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark

 Sports Day (non LBHF School) up to 3 hrs - Facility and Instructor £258.50 £258.50 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark

 Sports Days move than 3 hours £56.00 £56.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 TVH meetings £48.00 £48.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
 Additional miscellaneous fee - setting out and clearing up £56.00 £56.00 0% Price freeze in line with London benchmark
Pitches & Ancillary Hire Servies
11-a-side AWP Main (whole pitch)
 Adult £75.00 £80.00 7%
 Club £50.00 £60.00 20%
 School £37.00 £40.00 8%
Out of borough and private Schools £47.00
Contact Price for QPR-Chelsea-Chiswick Hockey
 Adult £37.00 £40.00 8%
 Junior £25.00 £27.00 8%
5-a-side AWP
 Adult & Club  - Peak £30.00 £35.00 17%
 Adult & Club - Off Peak £29.00 £20.00 -31% Differentiate between peak and off peak times to encourage more demand
 Schools £15.00 £17.00 13%
Contact Price for QPR-Chelsea-Chiswick Hockey
 Adult £19.00 £20.00 5%
 Junior £15.00 £17.00 13%

 * Off Peak rate are charged before 18H00 Mon - Fri excl W/ends 

Grass Pitches
 Centre - without Floodlighting £60.00 £70.00 17%
 Centre - without Floodlighting - School £45.00 £50.00 11%
 Centre - with Floodlighting £72.00 £80.00 11%
 Centre - with Floodlighting - School £56.00 £60.00 7%
 Rugby Training area - top & bottom (no Floodlights) £30.00 £32.00 7%
Rooms / Storage Hire
 Community Room  £24.00 £30.00 25%
 Annoncer box £24.00 £30.00 25%
 Changing Room per team (when no pitch hire) £24.00 £30.00 25%
 Stroage container per annum £1,650.00 £1,750.00 6%
 Community Room - School £12.00 £17.00 42%
 Annoncer box - School £12.00 £17.00 42%
 Changing Room per team (when no pitch hire) - School £12.00 £17.00 42%
 Stroage container per annum - School £1,100.00 £1,200.00 9%

CEMETERIES CHARGES - Exempt for VAT
2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge & Date of Last Review (E.g. benchmarking 
with other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

Resident Fees
Private Grave
Purchase and Grant (75 years) Change to 60 years £1,200.00 £1,400.00 17% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Internment/Reopening
Up to 2 interments (each) £1,047.00 £1,200.00 15% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Page 804



Per extra interment (below 7ft) £219.00 £250.00 14% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Exhumations
Standard Charge (Coffin or Casket) £1,874.00 £2,000.00 7% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Disinterment of Cremated Remains £150.00 £200.00 33% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Grave Diggers Allowance per Grave £100.00 £100.00 0% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Internment of cremated remains
Purchase and Grant £353.00 £550.00 56% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Interment £232.00 £300.00 29% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Scattering of Ashes £59.00 £75.00 27% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Search Fee

Standard  £58.00 £10.00 -83%
Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09. Not 
currently receiving any income at the 2010 prices. Change charging mechanism from 3 free 
searches then £58 to £10 per search from April 2011

Change of Ownership
Standard £83.00 £90.00 8% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Chapel
Use of chapel £58.00 £85.00 47% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Grave Maintenance
Soil or Turf £77.00 £100.00 30% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Full Maintenance £154.00 £200.00 30% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Attention only £110.00 £125.00 14% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Non Resident Fees

Private Grave

Purchase and Grant (75 years) Change to 60 years £3,693.00 £3,900.00 6% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Internment/Reopening

Up to 2 interments (each) £1,600.00 £1,750.00 9% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Per extra interment (below 7ft) £700.00 £700.00 0% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Casket (includes interment fee) £1,948.00 £2,250.00 16% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Non private grave

Grave space only £1,544.00 £1,650.00 7% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Exhumations

Standard Charge (Coffin or Casket) £1,874.00 £2,000.00 7% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Disinterment of Cremated Remains £150.00 £200.00 33% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Grave Diggers Allowance per Grave £100.00 £100.00 0% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Internment of cremated remains

Purchase and Grant £1,180.00 £1,300.00 10% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Interment £360.00 £400.00 11% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Scattering of Ashes £59.00 £75.00 27% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Search Fee

Standard  £58.00 £10.00 -83%
Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09. Not 
currently receiving any income at the 2010 prices. Change charging mechanism from 3 free 
searches then £58 to £10 per search from April 2011

Change of Ownership

Standard £83.00 £90.00 8% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Chapel

Use of chapel £70.00 £85.00 21% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Grave Maintenance
Soil or Turf £77.00 £100.00 30% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Full Maintenance £154.00 £200.00 30% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Attention only £110.00 £125.00 14% Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Non Private grave digging fee N/A £1,200.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Memorial Permit (resident) N/A £225.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Memorial Permit (non-resident) N/A £265.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Oversized coffin (residents) N/A £1,350.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Oversized coffin (non-residents) N/A £2,000.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Casket (residents) N/A £1,500.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Additional inscription (resident) N/A £75.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09
Additional inscription (non-resident) N/A £165.00 New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

Surcharge Saturdays N/A
Negotiable 
(minimum 

£1500)
New Charge Benchmarking with all London Boroughs using cemeteries in London Fees  30/10/09

HALL, PARKS & OPEN SPACES HIRE - Zero Rated VAT (Hourly 
Rates)

2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge & Date of Last Review (E.g. benchmarking 
with other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

HTH Assembly Hall & FTH Grand Hall

Weekday daytime £150.00 £180.00 20%
Weekday evenings £255.00 £255.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Friday from 6pm & Saturdays) £280.00 £280.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Sundays) £280.00 £280.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Commercial ticketed events £410.00 £410.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Bank Holiday Mondays, New Years Eve £560.00 £560.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
New Years Eve falling on a Sunday £615.00 £615.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Hourly rate after midnight add £50 £50.00 £50.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
FTH Concert Hall 
Weekday daytime (subject to GH booking) £80.00 £80.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Weekday evenings £122.00 £122.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Weekends £122.00 £122.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Flat rate supplement for the Concert hall to be added to the Grand 
hall booking

£210.00 £210.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH

HTH Small Hall 
Weekday £60.00 £60.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekday evening £80.00 £80.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Friday from 6pm & Saturdays) £122.00 £122.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Sunday) £127.00 £127.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer

HTH Committee Room 1, Courtyard Room, Council Chamber  

Weekday £66.00 £66.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekday evening £86.00 £86.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Friday from 6pm & Saturdays) £97.00 £97.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Weekend (Sunday) £102.00 £102.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
HIRE OF PARKS & OPEN SPACES FOR EVENTS - CHARGES 
PER DAY (Customer / Intended Audience)
Large event (1000+ attendance) - Commercial / Private POA POA N/A
Large event (1000+ attendance) - Commercial / Public POA POA N/A

Page 805



Large event (1000+ attendance) - Community Org / Public POA POA N/A
Large event (1000+ attendance) - Registered Charity / Public POA POA N/A
Medium event (500-999 att) - Commercial / Private POA POA N/A
Medium event (500-999 att) - Commercial / Public Paid For £825.00 £825.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Medium event (500-999 att) - Commercial / Public Free £510.00 £510.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Medium event (500-999 att) - Community Org / Public Paid For £250.00 £250.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Medium event (500-999 att) - Community Org / Public Free £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Medium event (500-999 att) - Registered Charity / Public £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small event (up to 499 att) - Commercial / Private £1,050.00 £1,050.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small event (up to 499 att) - Commercial / Public Paid For £510.00 £510.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small event (up to 499 att) - Commercial / Public Free £255.00 £255.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small event (up to 499 att) - Registered Charity / Public £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small event (up to 499 att) - Community Org / Public Free £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Promotional activity - Large scale/space - Commercial / Public POA POA -

Promotional activity - Large scale/space - Community Org / Public POA POA -

Promotional activity - Large scale/space - Registered Charity / Public POA POA -

Promotional activity - Small scale/space - Commercial / Public £255.00 £255.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer

Promotional activity - Small scale/space - Community Org / Public £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer

Promotional activity - Small scale/space - Registered Charity / Public £120.00 £120.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer

Fairground - Large scale - Commercial / Public £1,050.00 £1,050.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Fairground - Small scale - Commercial / Public £510.00 £510.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
ADD ON SUPPLEMENTS
Showcase Park / Town Centre Spaces £100.00 £100.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Large scale Infrastructure e.g. staging, toilets £200.00 £200.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Small scale Infrastructure e.g. tents, generators £100.00 £100.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Catering facilities £100.00 £100.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Sale of alcohol £100.00 £100.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer
Amplified music £100.00 £100.00 0% Intentional price freeze to maintain value for money service for customer

RBDM
2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge & Date of Last Review (E.g. benchmarking 
with other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

Civil Marriage/Civil Partnership 
Mayor’s Parlour, Fulham Town Hall (Register Office)
Mon - Thur £43.50 £60.00 38%
Fri - Sat £93.50 £93.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Walham Green Room Fulham Town Hall
Mon - Thur £143.50 £143.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Fri - Sat £193.50 £193.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Council Chamber – Fulham Town Hall
Mon - Thur £353.50 £353.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Fri £453.50 £453.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sat £503.50 £503.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sun/Bank Holidays £653.50 £653.50 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Approved Venues
Mon - Thur £323.50 £323.50 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Fri - Sat £403.50 £403.50 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Sun/Bank Holidays £503.50 £503.50 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Naming Ceremonies/Marriage Vows Renewal 
Hammersmith and Fulham Register Office, Fulham Town Hall 
(Up to 60 people)
Mon - Thur 9am to 4pm £153.00 £153.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Mon - Thur 4pm to 6pm £204.00 £204.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Fri 9pm to 4pm £178.00 £178.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Fri 4pm to 6pm £255.00 £255.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sat afternoon £255.00 £255.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sun/Bank Hols £306.00 £306.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH

Fulham Council Chamber, Fulham Town Hall (Up to 100 people)

Fri £306.00 £306.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sat £408.00 £408.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Sun/Bank Holidays £560.00 £560.00 0% Price freeze pending cabinet decision on FTH
Other Venues*
Mon - Thur 9am to 4pm £178.00 £178.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Mon - Thur 4pm to 6pm £204.00 £204.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Fri 9pm to 4pm £178.00 £178.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Fri 4pm to 6pm £204.00 £204.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Sat £306.00 £306.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Sun/Bank Holidays £357.00 £357.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with other London wedding venues
Other Fees
 Same day service for copy certificates £10.00 £10.00 0% Price freeze to remain competitive with GRO online service
Nationlaity Checking Service Fees
Adult N/A TBC TBC New service from Nov 2010 - April prices being reviewed post service implementation
Couple N/A TBC TBC New service from Nov 2010 - April prices being reviewed post service implementation
Child N/A TBC TBC New service from Nov 2010 - April prices being reviewed post service implementation
When child is the only applicant N/A TBC TBC New service from Nov 2010 - April prices being reviewed post service implementation

LIBRARIES CHARGES
2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge & Date of Last Review (E.g. benchmarking 
with other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

Adults 16-59. Concessions: Children 0-11, Teens 12-15, 
Pensioners 60+, Lifestyle Plus cardholders.
Book Overdue and Reservation Charges
Overdue Books - Per Day  Age 16-59 £0.25 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Requests not in stock- British Library £5.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Requests not in stock - SELMS partners £2.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Requests-  Age 16-59 £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Overdue Notifications Printed- all ages (No VAT Charged) £0.40 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Audio-Visual Loan and Overdue Charges
DVD Loans Feature Films 3 days Adult Age 16-59 £1.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Overdue DVDs- Age 16-59 Per Day Max £7.50 £0.75 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Language Courses/ Learning Packs-three weeks £2.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Overdue CDs- Per Day Max £7.50 (No VAT Charged) £0.25 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Box sets DVDs loans Age 16-59 (No VAT Charged) £3.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Box sets DVDs Overdues to a maximimum of 7.50 Age 16-59 (No 
VAT Charged)

£0.75 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working

Talking Book Loans N/A TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Internet Charges
Access - After First Half Hour - Per Half Hour members £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
(H&F School Children Free) £0.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A4 Print - black and white £0.10 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working

Page 806



Access- None members pay for every Half Hour £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Access- Advance 3 hour booking £2.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A4 Colour £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Fax Charges - Per Page
UK £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Europe £1.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
North America £2.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Australia £2.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Elsewhere £4.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Incoming Material £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Photocopying - Per Page
A4 black and white - self service £0.10 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A3 black and white - self service £0.20 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A4 black and white - assisted service £0.20 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A3 black and white - assisted service £0.40 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A4 colour - self service £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A3 colour - self service £1.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A4 colour - assisted £1.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
A3 colour - assisted £2.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Sale Items - guide prices - No VAT Charged
Withdrawn Library Books
Adult Fiction and Children's books £0.60 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Adult Non-Fiction £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Paperbacks £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Cassettes £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
CD's £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Videos/DVDs £0.50 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Miscellaneous Sale Items
ECO Bags £1.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Memory Sticks £9.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Premises Hire - Per Hour
Community Groups:
(Voluntary groups in H&F, Registered charities and Residents 
Associations only)
During Library Hours £15.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Outside library Hours £50.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Other Groups
During Library Hours £30.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Outside library Hours £100.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Exhibition Space - Per Day
Preparatory Day £60.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working
Exhibition Days £120.00 TBC TBC Increase to be decided following a review of common charges across 3 borough working

FULHAM PALACE HALL HIRE - Zero Rated VAT
2010/11 From 
1st April 2010

2011/12 From 
1st April 2011

% Change from 
1st April 2010

Research Done to Assess Adequacy of Charge & Date of Last Review (E.g. benchmarking 
with other Councils, Competitor Analysis etc)

Minimum Hire Charge for 1 or more rooms Friday - Saturday May - 
September

£4,000.00 £4,495.00 12%

Minimum Hire Charge for 1 or more rooms Friday - Saturday October 
- April

£3,500.00 £3,995.00 14%

The Great Hall - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-1am) £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
The Great Hall - Half Day (4 hours 9am-1pm or 6pm-1am) £750.00 £750.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
The Great Hall - Civil Wedding Ceremonies £750.00 £750.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
The Drawing Room Café, Bishop Howley's Drawing Room, Morning 
Room - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-1am)

£1,000.00 £1,000.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Terrick's Drawing Room - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-
1am)

£600.00 £600.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Terrick's Drawing Room - Half Day (4 hours 9am-1pm or 6pm-
1am)

£450.00 £450.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Terrick's Drawing Room - Civil Wedding Ceremonies £450.00 £450.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
Bishop Terrick's Dining Room - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-
1am)

£375.00 £375.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Terrick's Dining Room - Half Day (4 hours 9am-1pm or 6pm-
1am)

£275.00 £275.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Terrick's Dining Room - Civil Wedding Ceremonies £275.00 £275.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
The Chaplain's Garden Marquee - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-
1am)

£3,500.00 £3,500.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

The Chaplain's Garden Marquee - Half Day (4 hours 9am-1pm or 
6pm-1am)

POA POA -

Bishop Blomfield's Rooms - Standard Day (9am-5pm or 6pm-1am) £500.00 £500.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Bishop Blomfield's Rooms - Half Day (4 hours 9am-1pm or 6pm-
1am)

£300.00 £300.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

The East courtyard Room POA POA -
the West Courtyard Room POA POA -
The North or Main Lawn POA POA -
Exclusive use of Fulham Palace Excluding Marquee £4,000.00 £4,000.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers
Exclusive use of Fulham Palace Including Marquee £6,500.00 £6,500.00 0% Remain competitive with alternative providers

Page 807



 

Report to Council 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

 

 

LEADER 
Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME  2011/12 TO 2015/16 
 
This report sets out proposals in respect of the 
capital programme, together with ancillary issues. 

Wards: 
All 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
All Departments 
DFCS 
ADLDS 
 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 

1. To approve that the General Fund Capital 
Programme is £31.931m for 2011/12. 

 
2. To approve a Debt Reduction target of 

£53.9m by 2015/16 which will reduce 
underlying debt (Capital Financing 
Requirement to £78.8m). 

 
3. To approve that 25% of receipts 

generated for the decent neighbourhoods 
programme continue to be used to 
support general capital investment. 

 
4. To approve the following initiatives 

within the capital programme: 
• The continuation of the rolling 

programmes for Corporate 
Planned Maintenance (£2.5m), 
repairs to carriageways and 
footways (£2.1m) , private sector 
housing grants (£0.45m), Parks 
Improvements (£0.5m) and 
contributions to the Invest to Save 
Fund (£0.750m) 

• The setting aside of £0.250m in 
reserve for the DDA Programme.  

 
5. To approve, subject to agreement of the 

overall programme, prudential borrowing 
of £5.4m regarding the Schools Capital 
Strategy. 

 
6. To note and approve the level of resource 

forecast (Table 5) and indicative 
expenditure for the decent 
neighbourhoods programme as detailed 
in Appendix 1 and proposed 2011/12  
contribution to fund works to the HRA 
stock of £14.867m from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Pot for one year only. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 808



 

 

 
7. To approve the 2011/12  HRA capital 

programme as set out in Appendix 3, and 
subject to appropriate Member approval 
for un-committed schemes. 

 
8. To approve the prudential indicators as 

set out in Appendix 4 to the report. 
 
9. To approve the following annual 

Minimum Revenue Provision: (Appendix 
5). 

 
• For debt which is supported 

through Formula Grant this 
authority will calculate the 
Minimum Revenue Provision in 
accordance with current 
regulations (namely 4% of the 
Capital Financing requirement net 
of adjustment A). 

 
• For debt which has arisen through 

prudential borrowing it should be 
written down in equal instalments 
over the estimated asset life. The 
debt write-off will commence the 
year after an asset comes into use.  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 809



 

 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report sets out an updated resource forecast and a capital programme for 

2011/12 to 2015/16. Since 2006/07, the Council has put in place a debt reduction 
strategy which has enabled £36m of capital debt to be repaid by the end of 
2009/10. Annual revenue savings of £3.6m are forecast by 2011/12. The capital 
programme now put forward seeks to build on these savings whilst funding 
essential new investment and key Council priorities.    

 
1.2 The Building Schools for the Future programme was halted in 2010/11. An update 

is now given on future capital proposals for schools.  
 
1.3  The funding for the Decent Homes Programme has now come to an end. 

Proposals are now put forward regarding the on-going housing investment needs 
for 2011/12. The funding options for 2012/13 onwards will be reviewed subject to 
the outcome of Government’s announcement to replace the existing Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy system with a new system of council housing 
finance. 

 
1.4 The Council has embarked on a number of major projects such as the King Street 

Regeneration Strategy and a range of decent neighbourhood schemes. A brief 
update on these projects is set out in this report and appropriate allowance made 
within the overall capital programme.  

 
 
2. DEBT REDUCTION 
 
2.1 General Fund debt (as measured by the Capital Financing Requirement) was 

£132.7m at the start of 2010/11. As set out in Table 1 it is now forecast that such 
debt will reduce by £53.9m, to £78.8m, by 2015/16. This will largely be achieved 
by applying surplus capital receipts, which are over and above the core investment 
needs, for debt redemption. Overall revenue savings are budgeted to increase by 
£4.6m from 2011/12 to 2015/16. 

 
Table 1 – Movement in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 

 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 
 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 
Opening Capital Financing 
Requirement 127.1 117.0 92.7 84.8 81.4 
Revenue Repayment of Debt -3.5 -3.0 -1.9 -1.6 -1.5 
Repayment of receipts used for 
temporary debt redemption. 2.4 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Borrowing For Schools Investment  5.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Annual (Surplus)/Deficit in the 
Capital Programme (Table 2)  -14.4 -23.3 -6.0 -1.8 -1.2 
Closing CFR 117.0 92.7 84.8 81.4 78.8 
Net Movement from the opening 
2010/11 CFR (£132.7) -15.7 -40.0 -47.9 -51.3 -53.9 
Revenue Impact (9% of CFR – 
lagged by 1 year)  -0.50 -1.41 -3.6 -4.3 -4.6 

Page 810



 

 

 
 
 
3. THE GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

Summary  
3.1 The proposed capital programme (Appendix 2) and resource forecast is 

summarised in Table 2. The overall programme is forecast to be in surplus of 
£49.9m to the end of 2015/16. It is planned to use this surplus to repay debt. 

 
Table 2 – General Fund Capital Programme Summary 
  
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
 £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s 
Forecast Resources (Table 3) 46,377 32,857 14,967 9,100 8,500 
Capital Programme (Table 4) 31,931 9,519 9,004 7,300 7,300 
In-Year Surplus/(Deficit) 14,446 23,338 5,963 1,800 1,200 
Cumulative Balance Surplus/(Deficit) 14,446 40,925 46,888 48,688 49,888 
 
 Resources 
3.2 The general fund resource forecast is detailed in Table 3.  
 
Table 3 General Fund Resource Forecast. 
 
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

 
2015/16 

 
 £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s 
Right to Buy Receipts 500 500 500 500 500 
Planned Sales  22,876 23,725 3,875 600 0 
Decent Neighbourhood Receipts 7,956 5,413 7,888 7,000 7,000 
-Reimbursement of Decent 
Neighbourhood receipts 

(6,293) 0 0 0 0 
Scheme Specific Resources 21,338 3,219 2,704 1,000 1,000 
Total Forecast Resources 46,377 32,857 14,967 9,100 8,500 

 
3.3 Right to Buy (RTB) Receipts. Usable RTB receipts (25% of sale value) are now 

running at £0.5m (10 properties) a year and are not expected, given current 
market conditions, to increase in 2012/13 onwards. The Council continues to 
explore options that promote the shared ownership of Council dwellings. No 
income from such schemes is assumed within the resource forecast 

 
3.4 Planned Sales. The current forecast for planned asset sales is set out in Table 3.  

The actual level, and timing, of sales is subject to certain caveats. Not least they 
are dependant on the wider property market, appropriate consultation and 
planning considerations. The Council continues to review its asset holdings to 
identify potential further disposals. The target for forecast sales is ambitious.  A 
risk is identified within the Medium Term Financial Strategy that sales may slip or 
not be achieved or that significant cost of sales may be incurred.    

  
3.5 Borrowing. From 2007/08 to 2010/11 the Council undertook no new general 

borrowing as part of the debt reduction strategy. Allowance for prudential 
borrowing of £5.4m is made to support investment in schools. This is treated as a 
specific resource. 

Page 811



 

 

 
3.6 Decent Neighbourhoods Receipts. Via a number of specific Cabinet decisions, 

the Council has opted to ringfence receipts from disposals of certain asset types 
(hostels, street properties, and other regeneration sites) for regeneration or 
affordable housing purposes. These receipts have been channelled into the 
Decent Neighbourhoods fund.  Although this approach has allowed for investment 
in a number of such schemes, in general the level of receipts coming into the fund 
has outstripped the expenditure from it. This has led to a position where the fund is 
projected to be in surplus by between £2.8m and £90m over the capital 
programme period. This is subject to future decisions regarding the possible use of 
such resources. Given the imbalance in funding between this and the general 
programme the Council agreed that, from 2010/11, these receipts should be top 
sliced by 25% to contribute to general resources.  This approach continues to be 
reviewed over time to ensure that there is no material impact on the delivery of 
regeneration or affordable housing initiatives. 

 
3.7 There is a central government imposed restriction on how local authorities can use 

housing capital receipts. The Council has to determine a Capital Allowance. This 
increases as expenditure is incurred on affordable housing and regeneration 
initiatives and decreases in line with housing capital receipts. Should the Capital 
Allowance become negative then 75% of housing receipts are payable to the 
Government. The latest estimate is that the Capital Allowance will exceed £21m at 
the close of 2011/12 and the Council can accordingly make full use of the housing 
receipts. This position continues to be reviewed and may be impacted by future 
changes to the housing capital finance regime. 

 
  
3.8 Specific Funding Allocations. The specific funding resource forecast is based on 

current allocations and will be updated over the forthcoming months in accordance 
with relevant government, and other public and private, spending announcements.  

 
 Expenditure 
3.9 The Council’s Capital Programme has, in recent years, been developed through a 

combination of agreed rolling programmes, agreement of individual projects (via 
formal decision making processes), and the inclusion of specifically funded 
schemes.  The framework for an annual bidding round has not been applied in 
recent years as available resources have been prioritised to repay debt. 

 
3.10  The proposed programme for 2011/12 (Table 4) onwards provides for the 

completion of existing schemes (mainly Bishops Park) and continuation, with the 
exception of the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) programme, of the previously 
agreed rolling programmes. Over recent years an annual provision of £0.25m has 
been made for DDA works but has been infrequently used. DDA works tend now 
to be undertaken as a matter of course within new capital initiatives. It is proposed 
that any unapplied allocation brought forward from 2010/11 (up to £0.25m) be set 
aside within a reserve for use as appropriate. No further annual provision will be 
made. This position will continue to be reviewed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 812



 

 

 
 
    

Table 4 – 2011/12 t0 2015/16 Capital Programme 
 
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
Mainstream £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Completion of Existing Schemes  4,293 0 0 0 0 
Continuation of Rolling Programmes:      
- Carriageways 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 
- Footways 750 750 750 750 750 
- Planned Maintenance 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 
- Private Sector Housing Grants 450 450 450 450 450 
-Contributions to Invest To Save 750 750 750 750 750 
-Parks Development 500 500 500 500 500 
      
Scheme Specific Schemes 21,338 3,219 2,704 1,000 1,000 
Total 31,931 9,519 9,004 7,300 7,300 
 
3.11 Schools Capital Programme - The scheme specific resources include an 

allowance of £5.4m for prudential borrowing to support capital investment in 
schools and new capital grant awards for schools investment of £7.6m for 
2011/12. Following the abandonment of the Building Schools for the Future 
programme the Government announced that a review would be taken of future 
education capital funding. This is expected to be complete in early 2011. The 
future schools capital programme for the Council will be determined once the 
outcome of the Government review is known.  

 
3.12 White City Health and Care Centre - The centre will be both a flagship joint 
 health and social care service centre operated in conjunction with H&F PCT, 
 and a major housing development delivering on the Council’s priority to 
 increase home ownership in the borough. It is also expected to play a 
 significant role in regenerating the physical environment in the north of the 
 borough. 

 
3.13 The Council side of the project will be delivered via a LIFT Co arrangement, a 
 health finance vehicle with similarities to a PFI deal, where the Council will take a 
 lease- plus interest in the building for a period of 25 years. The cost of the  lease 
 plus agreement will be met by freeing up various satellite premises as teams 
 move  into the new centre. The Collaborative Care Centre is based  on the old 
 Janet  Adegoke Leisure Centre site, incorporating the Children’s Services site at 
 Sawley Road. The Council awaits the outcome of a PFI credits bid of £4.5m to 
 fund its ongoing running costs.  
 
3.14 The planning permission, subject to the completion of a section 106 Legal 
 agreement, is for 175 residential units above the collaborative care centre, 
 comprising of 105 market units and 70 affordable. The 70 affordable units  will be 
 a mixture of bed sizes from studio accommodation through to family sized 
 dwellings. The affordable housing will be low cost home ownership tenures 
 affordable to residents in the borough on low to moderate incomes. 
 
 
 

Page 813



 

 

 
4.     DECENT NEIGHBOURHOODS – EXPENDITURE AND RESOURCE FORECAST  
 
4.1 The Council continues to set aside housing capital receipts regarding it’s 

objectives for regeneration and creating sustainable communities. The current 
regeneration receipts forecast, and expenditure plan, is set out in Appendix 1 and 
summarised in table 5.  

 
 Table 5 Decent Neighbourhoods - Resource/Expenditure Forecast. 
 
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

 
2015/16 

 £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s 
Balance b/fwd (928)     
Expenditure 3,934 36 0 0 0 
Resources (32,547) (18,238) (23,663) (21,000) (21,000) 
In Year (Surplus) – based on 
approved schemes 

(29,541) (18,202) (23,663) (21,000) (21,000) 
Capital Investment in maintaining 
existing housing stock. (1 year only) 

14,867 0 0 0 0 
Other Schemes Under Consideration 11,861 (5,000) 1,500 0 0 
Revised In Year  (Surplus) (2,813) (23,202) (22,163) (21,000) (21,000) 
      
Cumulative (Surplus) (2,813) (26,015) (48,178) (69,178) (90,178) 
 
4.2 The programme is forecast to be in surplus by £90m by 2015/16. The expensive 

voids policy is still in place and the resources forecast is likely to increase as more 
properties come through for disposal although this is likely to be offset in future 
years by new initiatives that emerge. 

 
4.3 The resources forecast include the sale of expensive to repair void properties. 

Allowance has been made for the top-slice of 25% of future receipts to support 
general investment needs. The current forecast is based on the identification of 50 
new properties for sale in 2011/12 – increasing to 80 by 2014/15. 

 
4.4  A key priority for the Council is to ensure adequate on-going investment in the 

Council housing stock following the completion of the decent homes programme. 
Section 5 sets out the current Housing Capital Expenditure and Resource forecast. 
A drawdown of £14.9m is being proposed for 2011/12 only.   

 
4.5 The resources available for the decent neighbourhoods programme continue to be 

separately identified and their use is subject to Member approval.  
 
 
5. REGENERATION INITIATIVES 
 
5.1 The Council is currently progressing a number of major projects that are likely to 

impact on the capital programme over the next five years. An update is provided in 
this section on current progress. As these projects are progressed appropriate 
amendments will be made to Capital and Revenue Estimates subject to Member 
approval.    

 

Page 814



 

 

5.2 King Street Regeneration. The Council is currently taking forward proposals for 
this scheme which includes a major change to the existing Civic Accommodation 
provision in Hammersmith. At present a developer has been appointed to take 
forward this scheme and a planning application submitted. It is hoped that the 
strategy can be delivered at net nil cost to the Council but this position, particularly 
in the light of the current economic conditions, will need to be kept under review.  

 
5.3 Earls Court. The Council is in discussions with other landowners (Transport for 

London and Capital & Counties) regarding the potential redevelopment of Earls 
Court after 2012. This is intended to bring substantial benefits to the wider area, 
including more and better quality homes, new jobs and improved open spaces. 
The plans could include the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estate and a key 
concern for the Council is that any scheme must provide new homes for these 
1,650 residents in the same area as they are living. To date the Council has 
approved expenditure of £0.650m regarding planning and transport studies. This 
has been funded from section 106 (planning) and developer contributions.  

 
5.4 White City/Shepherds Bush Market. White City is a major development area 

with potential for up to 5,000 new homes being built. Most of those are being 
earmarked for land east of Wood Lane with detailed proposals likely to emerge in 
the next few years. The Council has also set out a new vision to protect 
Shepherds Bush Market. This includes the relocation of the Bush Theatre to the 
old Shepherds Bush library for which capital resources (funded from section 106 
resources) of £1m have been identified to secure the release of a restrictive 
covenant from the church commissioners. The Council has also agreed an option 
for the potential future sale, at market value, of the old laundry site at Pennard 
Road, to developers, Orion Shepherd Bush Market Limited. This is subject to the 
developer assembling the rest of the land needed to come up with a viable 
scheme for redeveloping the market that ultimately gets planning consent and is in 
accordance with the Council's planning brief. 

 
5.5 A Housing Company. The Council is exploring options for establishing two 

housing companies, a development company that would provide new housing, 
including housing for sale, and a company with charitable aims that would 
subsequently hold any rented or intermediate housing (such as shared 
ownership). The Council has identified a number of sites in its ownership which 
could, if developed, represent a significant opportunity to develop new homes 
through innovative delivery arrangements.   

 
 
6. HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME   
 
6.1 The latest capital resource forecast for the Housing Capital Programme is set out 

in table 6 below (see Appendix 3 for details), together with the proposed Housing 
Revenue Account Capital Programme.  

 
6.2 The HRA resource forecast indicates a deficit of £12m from 2012/13 onwards.  

The HRA capital programme post-2011/12 will be subject to the changes to the 
HRA subsidy trailed in the Sustainable Communities Bill. 

 
 
 
 

Page 815



 

 

 
 

Table 6 HRA Capital resource forecast 
 

 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
 £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s 
Proposed HRA Capital Programme 43,179 29,335 29,105 28,858 28,858 
Resources:      
Major Repairs Allowance 12,648 12,921 13,037 13,321 13,321 
Receipts 5,103 0 0 0 0 
Expensive Voids Contributions 
(Proposed – 1 year only) 

14,867 0 0 0 0 
Leasehold Contributions 7,880 4,414 4,068 3,537 3,537 
Total mainstream resources 40,498 17,335 17,105 16,858 16,858 
Specific Funding 2,681 0 0 0 0 
Total Resources 43,179 17,335 17,105 16,858 16,858 
      
In-Year (Surplus) / Deficit 0 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit  0 12,000 24,000 36,000 48,000 
 
6.3  The funding for the decent homes programme came to an end in 2010/11.  The 

 proposed future programme maintains the condition and fitness for purpose of 
 the stock including ensuring homes are maintained at a decent standard and 
 remain in a condition suitable for letting, addresses our statutory and health and 
 safety obligations, improves energy efficiency, addresses residual backlog works 
 which were outside the scope of the decent homes programme and meets 
 resident priorities such as security and environmental improvements.  As 
 previously noted mainstream resources are insufficient to cover the program and 
 a draw down has been made from the Decent Neighbourhoods pot of £14.9m in 
 2011/12.  

 
6.4 The Housing Capital programme indicates that it will be in deficit of £48m by 
 2015/16. Options will be explored to balance the programme from 2012/13 
 onwards once the proposals for the new Housing Subsidy regime are known.  
 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 
7.1 Debt reduction is a key element of the Council’s revenue budget strategy. The 

proposals set out in this report will provide for annual revenue savings of £7.7m 
to have been delivered from 2006/07 to 2015/16. The future delivery of these 
savings is heavily reliant on meeting the target for asset sales and progress 
against target will need to be closely monitored.  The costs of sale, including 
security and relocation, also need to be tightly controlled to avoid additional 
capital and revenue spend pressures. 

 
7.2 The Council’s mainstream capital programme is now largely restricted to core 

rolling programmes but it is looking to regenerate a number of priority areas 
through a number of initiatives. These may have a major impact, both in terms of 
expenditure and resources, on the capital forecast over the next five years. 
Amendments will be made in line with Member approval.   

 

Page 816



 

 

7.3 In accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
local authorities are required to maintain a number of prudential indicators. These 
are set out in Appendix 4. The indicator used to reflect the underlying need of an 
authority to borrow for a capital purpose is the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR). The General Fund CFR is estimated to be £127.1m at the start of 
2011/12. The proposals set out in this report are estimated to reduce it to £78.8m 
by 2015/16. This net reduction has been taken account of within the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy. No allowance is made yet for any borrowing 
should a decision be taken to proceed with a housing company. 

 
7.4 Each year local authorities are required to set aside some of their revenues as 

provision for debt repayment. This is commonly termed the minimum revenue 
provision (MRP). Before the start of each financial year Full Council is required to 
approve a statement of its policy on making MRP in respect of that financial year. 
Appendix 5 sets out the options now available to Hammersmith and Fulham and 
recommends which option should be followed.  

 
 
8. COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES) 
 
8.1 There are no direct legal implications in relation to this report. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000  
 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Brief Description of 

Background Papers  
Name/Ext. of 
holder of file/copy 

Department 
1. 
 
 
 
 

Capital Monitoring Documents 
 
 
 
 

Isaac Egberedu  
Ext 2503 
 
 
 

Finance Dept., 
2nd floor ,  
HTH Extension 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 817



Decent Neighbourhoods Capital  Budgets   Appendix 1

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Watermeadow Court 2,804 2,804

Pennard Road Land Acquisition 4,831 4,831

Fulham Court (includes works and fees) 665 3,809 36 4,510

Traveller Site Improvement Project 125 125

Buy out Shepherds Bush Library covenant 1,000 1,000

Total Expenditure 9,300 3,934 36 0 0 0 13,270

Resources: 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Brought Forward* (3,500) (2,400) (2,000) (7,900)

Expensive Voids:

Sales to date (11,120) (11,120)

Identified but not yet sold (4,655) (7,475) (12,130)

Forecast 0 (17,500) (21,000) (24,500) (28,000) (28,000) (119,000)

Other Sales (3,863) (6,849) (650) (7,050) 0 0 (18,412)

Total Sales Receipts (19,638) (31,824) (21,650) (31,550) (28,000) (28,000) (160,662)

Grants and other contributions (1,465) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,465)

Resources transfers 13,716 1,677 5,413 7,888 7,000 7,000 42,693

Total Resources (10,888) (32,547) (18,238) (23,663) (21,000) (21,000) (127,335)

In Year (Surplus)/Deficit (1,588) (28,613) (18,202) (23,663) (21,000) (21,000)
Cumulative Surplus (1,588) (30,201) (48,402) (72,065) (93,065) (114,065)

Schemes under consideration 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 Total

Schemes under consideration 660 11,861 (5,000) 1,500 0 0 9,021

Capital Investment in maintaining existing 
HRA stock (Proposed).

14,867 0 0 0 0 14,867

Total 660 26,728 (5,000) 1,500 0 0 23,888

Revised In-Year Surplus/Cost (928) (1,885) (23,202) (22,163) (21,000) (21,000)
Revised Cumulative Total (928) (2,813) (26,015) (48,178) (69,178) (90,178) (90,178)

Notes:

* The actual cash brought forward is £3.5m. A further £4.4m was set aside to deliver revenue savings for the regeneration 
programme through debt repayment. This will be released back to capital if required.

No allowance has been made for the reprovision of familt dwellings under the revised voids policy current under review

Page 818



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 2

01
1/

12
 t

o
 2

01
5/

16
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
20

11
/1

2 
B

u
d

g
et

20
12

/1
3 

B
u

d
g

et
20

13
/1

4 
B

u
d

g
et

20
14

/1
5 

B
u

d
g

et
20

15
/1

6 
B

u
d

g
et

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
99

0
0

0
0

0
13

,1
30

0
0

0
0

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e)
0

0
0

0
0

30
0

0
0

0
0

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

5,
79

9
4,

60
0

4,
60

0
4,

60
0

4,
60

0
5,

87
3

3,
21

9
2,

70
4

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
es

id
en

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2,
60

4
50

0
50

0
50

0
50

0
2,

03
5

0
0

0
0

To
ta

l E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
10

,5
93

6,
30

0
6,

30
0

6,
30

0
6,

30
0

21
,3

38
3,

21
9

2,
70

4
1,

00
0

1,
00

0

F
u

tu
re

 Y
ea

rs
 B

u
d

g
et

  :
 M

ai
n

st
re

am
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 B
u

d
g

et
 :

 S
ch

em
e 

S
p

ec
if

ic

Page 819



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

R
ef

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1.
03

.1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

C
H

S
1

M
od

er
n 

La
ng

 F
ac

ul
ty

95
0

1,
12

4
10

0
0

0
0

10
2,

08
4

C
H

S
2

P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
B

lo
ck

1,
14

0
62

7
46

0
0

0
0

46
1,

81
3

C
H

S
3

Ly
ric

 T
he

at
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
H

S
4

H
yd

ro
 P

oo
ls

98
4

51
0

50
0

0
0

0
50

1,
54

4

C
H

S
5

D
ev

ol
ve

d 
C

ap
ita

l
0

45
2

0
0

0
0

45
2

45
2

C
H

S
6

S
ch

oo
l E

xp
an

si
on

 P
la

n
0

0
97

0
0

0
0

0
97

0
97

0

C
H

S
7

W
en

de
ll 

P
ar

k 
R

em
0

71
0

20
0

0
0

0
20

73
0

C
H

S
8

B
as

ic
 N

ee
ds

4,
02

6
0

0
0

0
4,

02
6

4,
02

6

C
H

S
9

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

3,
17

3
0

0
0

0
3,

17
3

3,
17

3

C
H

S
10

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g
11

3
22

7
5,

37
3

0
0

0
0

5,
37

3
5,

71
3

C
H

S
11

T
o

ta
l C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0
3,

19
8

14
,1

20
0

0
0

0
14

,1
20

20
,5

05

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
99

0
0

0
0

0
99

0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 E

du
ca

tio
n

7,
75

7
0

0
0

0
7,

75
7

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g
5,

37
3

0
0

0
0

5,
37

3

14
,1

20
0

0
0

0
14

,1
20

Page 820



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

R
ef

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1.
03

.1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

C
S

D
1

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
G

ra
nt

84
67

25
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

1

C
S

D
2

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

IT
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 C
ap

ita
l 

G
ra

nt
 (

D
O

H
)

0
33

50
0

0
0

0
0

33

T
o

ta
l C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

33
3

52
4

30
0

0
0

0
0

0
89

4

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
O

H
 G

ra
nt

30
0

0
0

0
0

30
0

30
0

0
0

0
0

30
0

Page 821



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

R
E

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 &

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

R
ef

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1.
03

.1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

R
H

O
1

R
en

ov
at

io
n 

G
ra

nt
s 

(m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

)
R

ol
lin

g
93

8
45

0
45

0
45

0
45

0
45

0
2,

25
0

R
ol

lin
g

T
o

ta
l 

0
93

8
45

0
45

0
45

0
45

0
45

0
2,

25
0

R
E

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 &

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

M
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

2,
25

0

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

45
0

2,
25

0

Page 822



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1/
03

/1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

E
N

V
1

C
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

s 
(M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
)

R
ol

in
g

1,
11

1
1,

54
9

1,
35

0
1,

35
0

1,
35

0
1,

35
0

6,
94

9
R

ol
lin

g

E
N

V
2

F
oo

tw
ay

s 
(M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
)

R
ol

lin
g

78
7

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

3,
75

0
R

ol
lin

g

E
N

V
3

P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (
M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
)

R
ol

lin
g

1,
20

3
3,

50
0

2,
50

0
2,

50
0

2,
50

0
2,

50
0

13
,5

00
R

ol
lin

g

E
N

V
4

B
rid

ge
 S

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

1,
93

2
20

14
0

0
0

0
14

1,
96

6

E
N

V
5

C
or

rid
or

s
1,

18
7

2,
07

2
1,

98
8

1,
70

4
5,

76
4

6,
95

1

E
N

V
6

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 Z
on

es
41

7
75

1,
34

4
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
5,

34
4

6,
18

0

E
N

V
7

C
yc

lin
g 

N
on

 L
C

N
31

2
0

18
0

0
0

0
18

34
8

E
N

V
8

54
-1

08
  U

xb
rid

ge
 R

oa
d 

sh
op

s
98

40
1,

00
9

0
0

0
0

1,
00

9
1,

14
7

E
N

V
9

Im
p 

W
ha

rf
-T

ra
ffi

c 
C

al
m

in
g

54
6

45
13

7
12

2
0

0
0

25
9

86
5

E
N

V
10

Im
p 

w
ha

rf
-P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
&

 C
yc

le
 Ia

ne
14

2
0

0
10

9
0

0
0

10
9

25
1

E
N

V
11

S
10

6 
N

C
P

 H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 G
ro

ve
47

0
3

0
0

0
0

3
53

E
N

V
12

S
10

6 
16

8-
18

6 
F

ul
ha

m
 P

al
ac

e 
R

d
0

0
85

0
0

0
0

85
17

0

E
N

V
13

W
hi

te
 C

ity
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

C
P

Z
30

3
90

57
0

0
0

0
57

50
7

E
N

V
14

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 T
ow

n 
C

tr
 Im

pr
ov

e
20

3
47

7
0

0
0

0
47

7
97

7

E
N

V
15

W
es

tfi
el

d 
T

ra
ffi

c 
M

gt
 M

ea
su

re
s

14
0

48
6

0
0

0
0

48
6

79
3

E
N

V
16

W
an

ds
w

or
th

 B
rid

ge
 R

oa
d

0
1

29
0

0
0

0
29

59

E
N

V
17

28
0 

- 
28

4 
M

un
st

er
 R

oa
d

0
0

10
0

0
0

0
10

20

E
N

V
18

F
ul

ha
m

 P
al

ac
e 

R
oa

d 
- 

S
lip

 R
oa

d
0

10
0

0
0

0
0

10
0

10
0

E
N

V
19

S
cr

ub
s 

La
ne

\H
yt

he
 R

oa
d 

Jc
t

4
81

32
0

0
0

0
32

13
1

Page 823



E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1/
03

/1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

T
o

ta
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

4,
13

1
11

,6
72

7,
81

9
7,

30
4

5,
60

0
5,

60
0

37
,9

95

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

M
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

5,
79

9
4,

60
0

4,
60

0
4,

60
0

4,
60

0
24

,1
99

R
ev

en
ue

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
1,

34
4

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

5,
34

4

D
ev

el
op

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

2,
44

3
23

1
0

0
0

2,
67

4

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 F

or
 L

on
do

n
2,

08
6

1,
98

8
1,

70
4

0
0

5,
77

8

11
,6

72
7,

81
9

7,
30

4
5,

60
0

5,
60

0
37

,9
95

Page 824



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 &
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1.
03

.1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 In
ve

st
 to

 S
av

e 
F

un
d

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
3,

75
0

4,
50

0

T
o

ta
l E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
3,

75
0

4,
50

0

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 &
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
M

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
75

0
3,

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

3,
75

0

Page 825



G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 2
01

5/
16

.
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

S
ch

em
es

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

to
 3

1.
03

.1
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
20

12
/1

3 
B

u
d

g
et

20
13

/1
4 

B
u

d
g

et
20

14
/1

5 
B

u
d

g
et

20
15

/1
6 

B
u

d
g

et
F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

 
B

u
d

g
et

F
o

re
ca

st
 

S
ch

em
e 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

R
S

D
1

H
&

F
 P

ar
k 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
H

ol
di

ng
 

B
ud

ge
t

20
50

0
50

0
50

0
50

0
50

0
2,

50
0

2,
52

0

R
S

D
2

B
is

ho
ps

 P
ar

k 
- 

S
ta

ge
 1

,2
 a

nd
 3

92
4

4,
02

7
2,

10
4

0
0

0
0

2,
10

4
7,

05
5

R
S

D
3

S
he

ph
er

ds
 B

us
h 

C
om

m
on

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

62
9

2,
13

6
2,

03
5

0
0

0
0

2,
03

5
4,

80
0

T
o

ta
l R

es
id

en
ts

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

55
3

   
   

   
 

6,
18

3
   

   
   

 
4,

63
9

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

6,
63

9
14

,3
75

   
   

 

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

M
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

26
04

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

46
04

D
ev

el
op

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

20
35

0
0

0
0

20
35

46
39

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

66
39

Page 826



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l t

o
 

14
/1

5
R

is
ks

/Is
su

es
R

es
o

u
rc

es
S

up
po

rt
ed

 b
or

ro
w

in
g

9,
75

5
0

0
0

0
9,

75
5

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

31
,8

01
12

,6
48

12
,9

21
13

,0
37

13
,3

21
83

,7
27

C
ap

ita
l R

ec
ei

pt
s

8,
60

5
5,

10
3

0
0

0
13

,7
08

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

5,
74

5
7,

88
0

4,
41

4
4,

06
8

3,
53

8
25

,6
44

- 
D

H
 fr

am
ew

or
k

2,
16

5
6,

73
5

1,
49

6
1,

01
0

31
1

11
,7

17
- 

N
on

-f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ca
pi

ta
l s

ch
em

es
1,

14
5

1,
14

5
73

2
58

6
46

9
4,

07
7

- 
H

is
to

ric
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

2,
43

5
2,

43
5

- 
F

ut
ur

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
2,

18
6

2,
47

2
2,

75
8

7,
41

5
G

ra
nt

s
4,

97
1

60
0

0
0

0
5,

57
1

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6

1,
16

3
96

7
0

0
0

2,
13

0
O

th
er

89
6

1,
11

4
0

0
0

2,
01

0
T

o
ta

l R
es

o
u

rc
es

62
,9

36
28

,3
12

17
,3

35
17

,1
04

16
,8

58
14

2,
54

5

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

G
ro

u
p

T
he

se
 w

or
ks

 h
av

e 
al

l b
ee

n 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k
1

44
,3

75
12

,5
76

0
0

0
56

,9
51

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n:
 E

dw
ar

d 
W

oo
ds

 E
st

at
e 

1
5,

80
0

8,
52

6
61

7
14

,9
43

 R
ep

ha
si

ng
 2

01
0/

11
 

1
(2

,7
35

)
2,

73
5

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n:
 M

ay
st

ar
 E

st
at

e 
1

95
95

H
ea

tin
g 

sc
he

m
es

1
45

0
0

0
0

45
Li

ft 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
1

40
4

13
0

0
0

41
7

F
ab

ric
 R

ep
ai

r
1

71
9

22
0

0
0

74
1

P
la

nn
ed

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

1
52

5
0

0
0

0
52

5
M

in
or

 E
st

at
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e
1

12
6

0
0

0
0

12
6

G
ro

un
dw

or
k 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e

1
20

0
20

0
M

ay
st

ar
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

1
8

8
W

at
er

 ta
nk

s 
1

30
0

30
0

C
ha

re
cr

of
t a

m
en

ity
 d

ec
k

1
24

1
24

1
S

to
ck

 S
ur

ve
y

1
25

25
H

T
H

x 
O

ffi
ce

 M
ov

e
1

82
82

F
ire

 S
af

et
y

1
60

0
60

0
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Li

gh
tin

g
1

10
0

10
0

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

A
cc

es
s

1
19

19
 W

at
er

 ta
nk

s 
 

1
40

2
0

0
0

0
40

2
 W

at
er

 P
re

ss
ur

e 
B

oo
st

er
s 

1
17

0
0

17
4

0
19

1
 F

ire
 A

la
rm

 u
pg

ra
de

, s
he

lte
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
1

24
24

 W
ar

de
n 

C
al

l S
ys

te
m

 u
pg

ra
de

 
1

39
39

D
ig

ita
l T

V
 s

ys
te

m
s

1
35

35
LB

H
F

 M
an

ag
ed

 s
ch

em
es

1
1,

31
4

22
9

0
0

0
1,

54
3

C
ap

ita
lis

at
io

n 
- 

W
or

ks
1

6,
49

5
5,

70
0

5,
65

0
5,

65
0

5,
65

0
29

,1
45

C
ap

ita
lis

at
io

n 
- 

S
al

ar
ie

s/
IT

1
3,

92
2

1,
75

0
1,

75
0

1,
75

0
1,

75
0

10
,9

22

Page 827



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l t

o
 

14
/1

5
R

is
ks

/Is
su

es
S

u
b

-t
o

ta
l c

o
m

m
it

te
d

/c
ap

it
al

is
at

io
n

62
,9

36
31

,7
92

8,
01

7
7,

57
4

7,
40

0
11

7,
71

9
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 

p
la

n
n

ed
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

(0
)

(3
,4

80
)

9,
31

8
9,

53
0

9,
45

8
24

,8
26

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
: 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

, 
H

&
S

, f
ir

m
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
 t

o
 r

es
id

en
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

G
ro

u
p

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l

R
ob

er
t O

w
en

 H
ou

se
 fi

re
 r

ei
nt

st
at

em
en

t
2

80
0

80
0

B
lo

ck
 d

ec
an

te
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

aj
or

 fi
re

; i
ns

ur
an

ce
 

to
 fu

nd
 m

os
t w

or
ks

 F
ire

 S
af

et
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
2

75
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

2,
75

0
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 W
at

er
 T

an
k 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
2

73
0

63
0

56
0

59
0

2,
51

0
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t t
o 

pr
ev

en
t t

he
 s

pr
ea

d 
of

 
le

gi
on

el
la

 w
ith

in
 w

at
er

 s
to

ra
ge

 s
ys

te
m

s

D
is

ab
le

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

2
80

0
80

0
80

0
80

0
3,

20
0

E
le

m
en

t o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Li
gh

tin
g 

2
10

0
10

0
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
 

to
 a

ll 
hi

gh
-r

is
e 

bl
oc

ks

 W
ar

de
n 

C
al

l S
ys

te
m

 u
pg

ra
de

 
2

50
9

13
52

2
B

T
 is

 s
w

itc
hi

ng
 a

ll 
lin

es
 o

ve
r 

to
 d

ig
ita

l, 
th

e 
ag

ei
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 n
ot

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 a

 d
ig

ita
l 

 O
pe

n-
flu

ed
 b

oi
le

r 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

2
27

0
20

0
47

0
P

ot
en

tia
lly

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
of

 c
ar

bo
n 

m
on

ox
id

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

if 
w

or
ks

 n
ot

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t.

 W
at

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

bo
os

te
rs

 
2

24
3

24
3

R
is

k 
of

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 o

r 
po

ss
ib

ly
 lo

st
 w

at
er

 
su

pp
ly

 d
ue

 to
 r

ed
uc

ed
 m

ai
ns

 w
at

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f o
ng

oi
ng

 T
ha

m
es

 W
at

er
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

La
nd

lo
rd

's
 e

le
ct

ric
al

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

2
10

0
10

0
10

0
10

0
40

0
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t e

le
ct

ric
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 c
om

m
on

 
pa

rt
s;

 m
in

im
um

 le
ve

l

 F
ire

 A
la

rm
 u

pg
ra

de
, s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

2
16

3
16

3
32

6
T

o 
re

du
ce

 le
ve

l o
f f

al
se

 a
la

rm
s;

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t n
ot

ic
e 

fr
om

 L
on

do
n 

F
ire

 B
rig

ad
e

 D
ig

ita
l T

V
 s

ys
te

m
s 

2
75

0
71

5
1,

46
5

W
or

ks
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
na

lo
gu

e 
sw

itc
h-

of
f t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

tv
 r

ec
ep

tio
n 

Je
ps

on
 H

ou
se

 r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t -

 s
ch

em
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
2

0
0

0

P
en

di
ng

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

pt
io

n 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l n

ow
 

sh
ow

n 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

 in
 d

ec
en

t n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

S
he

lte
re

d 
H

sn
g 

W
in

do
w

s 
- 

(D
H

) 
2

2,
45

3
10

0
2,

55
3

S
in

gl
e 

gl
az

ed
 w

in
do

w
s 

ne
ar

in
g 

en
d 

of
 

ec
on

om
ic

 li
fe

; s
ub

je
ct

 o
f t

w
o 

pe
tit

io
ns

; D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 C

om
m

ite
e 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l:
 F

u
tu

re
 P

la
n

s;
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

, H
&

S
, f

ir
m

 c
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
re

si
d

en
ts

0
7,

66
8

3,
72

1
2,

46
0

1,
49

0
15

,3
39

Page 828



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l t

o
 

14
/1

5
R

is
ks

/Is
su

es

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l -
 A

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
s 

af
te

r 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
n

d
 f

ir
m

 c
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

(0
)

(1
1,

14
8)

5,
59

7
7,

07
0

7,
96

8
9,

48
7

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 :

 F
u

tu
re

 P
la

n
s;

 R
es

id
en

t 
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

/h
ig

h
er

 o
ff

ic
er

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
in

or
 E

st
at

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e

3
27

0
27

0
27

0
27

0
1,

08
0

Li
ft 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

3
50

1
1,

39
4

50
0

1,
94

5
A

ge
in

g 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s,
 p

ro
ne

 to
 fa

ilu
re

. P
ot

en
tia

l 
lo

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 

S
tr

ee
t P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 -

 (
D

H
)

3
1,

00
0

4,
99

0
1,

99
0

7,
98

0
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 d

ec
en

t h
om

es
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

 R
es

id
en

t, 
D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 

 P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

  
3

90
0

1,
09

5
95

0
2,

09
0

W
or

ks
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 fa
br

ic
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
on

 p
ar

ts
; r

es
id

en
ts

 c
on

su
lte

d;
 d

es
ig

n 

H
ea

tin
g 

sc
he

m
es

3
0

24
8

67
0

17
7

0
1,

09
5

P
la

nn
ed

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f l

ife
-e

xp
ire

d 
ce

nt
ra

l 
he

at
in

g 
bo

ile
rs

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

A
cc

es
s

3
26

5
8

0
27

3
S

ys
te

m
s 

pa
st

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
lif

e;
 p

ar
ts

 
ob

so
le

te
, d

iff
ic

ul
t a

nd
 e

xp
en

si
ve

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n

 M
is

c 
P

la
nt

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t R
en

ew
al

 
3

25
50

50
50

17
5

A
ge

in
g 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s,

 p
ro

ne
 to

 fa
ilu

re
; p

ot
en

tia
l 

lo
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce

 E
st

at
es

 C
C

T
V

 
3

57
5

57
5

C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
va

l P
ha

se
 1

; f
ut

ur
e 

ph
as

es
 

po
lit

ic
al

 p
rio

rit
y

 S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l :
 F

u
tu

re
 P

la
n

s;
 s

o
m

e 
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

 o
r 

h
ig

h
er

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
  

0
3,

51
9

8,
73

4
2,

64
0

32
0

15
,2

13

 S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l -
 A

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
s 

af
te

r 
al

l s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d

 r
es

id
en

t 
co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 
(0

)
(1

4,
66

7)
(3

,1
37

)
4,

43
0

7,
64

8
(5

,7
26

)
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 :
 F

u
tu

re
 P

la
n

s;
 s

o
m

e 
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

/ l
o

w
er

 o
ff

ic
er

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 

 E
M

U
 In

st
al

la
tio

ns
 

4
20

0
20

0
20

0
60

0
T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 li

fts
 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 r

em
ot

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 fa
ul

ts
; 

G
ro

un
dw

or
k 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e

4
20

0
20

0
20

0
20

0
80

0
R

es
id

en
t-

le
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

w
or

ks
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 

th
e 

G
ro

un
dw

or
k 

T
ru

st

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

4
10

0
10

0
10

0
30

0
N

o 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

; 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

os
s 

of
 u

se
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e

 T
en

an
t h

al
ls

 
4

10
0

10
0

50
25

0
N

o 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

; 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

os
s 

of
 u

se

Page 829



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l t

o
 

14
/1

5
R

is
ks

/Is
su

es

A
lic

e 
G

ill
ia

tt 
B

lo
ck

 P
 li

ft 
pr

ov
is

io
n

4
25

0
40

29
0

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

pl
an

ne
d 

un
de

r 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e;
 li

ft 
in

 a
 b

lo
ck

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

w
as

 n
ot

 li
ft,

 r
es

id
en

t e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

es
ig

n 
is

su
es

F
u

tu
re

 P
la

n
s:

 s
o

m
e 

ex
p

ec
ta

ti
o

n
s,

 lo
w

er
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

0
20

0
85

0
64

0
55

0
2,

24
0

 S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l -
 A

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
s 

af
te

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 1

-3
 

(0
)

(1
4,

86
7)

(3
,9

87
)

3,
79

0
7,

09
8

(7
,9

66
)

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
: 

F
u

tu
re

 S
to

ck
 In

ve
st

m
en

t 

H
ea

tin
g 

sc
he

m
es

5
1,

00
0

1,
06

5
97

0
3,

03
5

P
la

nn
ed

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f l

ife
-e

xp
ire

d 
ce

nt
ra

l 
he

at
in

g 
bo

ile
rs

 W
at

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

bo
os

te
rs

 
5

15
0

15
0

15
0

45
0

R
is

k 
of

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

du
e 

to
 

re
du

ce
d 

m
ai

ns
 w

at
er

 p
re

ss
ur

e;

Li
ft 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

5
1,

46
4

1,
68

0
1,

82
6

4,
97

0
A

ge
in

g 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s,
 p

ro
ne

 to
 fa

ilu
re

. P
ot

en
tia

l 
lo

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 P
la

nn
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

  
5

2,
11

4
7,

93
6

10
,9

11
20

,9
61

W
or

ks
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 fa
br

ic
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
on

 p
ar

ts

 C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

A
cc

es
s 

 
5

42
9

46
3

44
5

1,
33

7
S

ys
te

m
s 

pa
st

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
lif

e;
 p

ar
ts

 
ob

so
le

te
, d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n

W
in

do
w

s/
fa

br
ic

 r
ep

ai
rs

5
2,

85
6

2,
03

6
1,

97
6

6,
86

8
R

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

st
oc

k 
at

 d
ec

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
d

K
itc

he
ns

, b
at

hr
oo

m
s,

 r
ew

iri
ng

5
2,

46
0

2,
82

0
5,

28
0

R
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
st

oc
k 

at
 d

ec
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

d

F
u

tu
re

 P
la

n
s:

 s
to

ck
 in

ve
st

m
en

t
0

0
8,

01
3

15
,7

90
19

,0
98

42
,9

01
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l -

 A
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n

s
0

(1
4,

86
7)

(1
2,

00
0)

(1
2,

00
0)

(1
2,

00
0)

(5
0,

86
7)

T
o

ta
l U

n
co

m
m

it
te

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

11
,3

87
21

,3
18

21
,5

30
21

,4
58

75
,6

93
T

o
ta

l P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

iz
e

62
,9

36
43

,1
79

29
,3

35
29

,1
04

28
,8

58
19

3,
41

2
S

u
rp

lu
s 

/ (
D

ef
ic

it
) 

ag
ai

n
st

 c
u

rr
en

t 
re

so
u

rc
es

0
(1

4,
86

7)
(1

2,
00

0)
(1

2,
00

0)
(1

2,
00

0)
(5

0,
86

7)
B

id
 f

ro
m

 V
o

id
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

14
,8

67
0

0
0

14
,8

67
S

u
rp

lu
s 

/ (
d

ef
ic

it
) 

af
te

r 
u

si
n

g
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 f

ro
m

 v
o

id
s

0
0

(1
2,

00
0)

(2
4,

00
0)

(3
6,

00
0)

(3
6,

00
0)

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
20

14
/1

5
T

o
ta

l
C

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
/c

ap
ita

lis
at

io
n

1
62

,9
36

31
,7

92
8,

01
7

7,
57

4
7,

40
0

11
7,

71
9

S
ta

tu
to

ry
, H

&
S

, f
irm

 r
es

id
en

t/p
ol

iti
ca

l c
om

m
itm

en
ts

2
0

7,
66

8
3,

72
1

2,
46

0
1,

49
0

15
,3

39
F

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
s,

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n,
 h

ig
he

r 
pr

io
rit

y 
du

e 
to

 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

os
s 

of
 a

m
en

ity
3

0
3,

51
9

8,
73

4
2,

64
0

32
0

15
,2

13
F

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
s,

 s
om

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n,
 lo

w
er

 p
rio

rit
y 

4
0

20
0

85
0

64
0

55
0

2,
24

0
F

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
s,

 n
ew

ly
 a

ris
in

g 
ne

ed
5

0
0

8,
01

3
15

,7
90

19
,0

98
42

,9
01

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 b

y 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

Page 830



APPENDIX 4 
 

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 

The proposed indicative capital programme for the current financial year and the 
forthcoming financial years built upon the assumed level of resources is as 
follows: 
 
 Forecast 

2010-11 
£000 

Estimate 
2011-12 
£000 

Estimate 
2012-13 
£000 

Estimate 
2013-14 
£000 

General Fund  39,092 31,931 9,519 9,004 
Housing Revenue Account 62,936 43,179 29,335 29,104 
Decent Neighbourhoods 9,300 3,934 36 0 
TOTAL 111,328 79,044 38,890 38,108 
The above figures exclude over-programming.  
 

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT (CFR) 
 
As a consequence of the proposed indicative capital programme, it is envisaged 
that the capital financing requirement, which reflects the underlying need to 
borrow to finance the capital programme, will be as follows: 
 

 Forecast 
2010-11 

£000 
Estimate 
2011-12 

£000 
Estimate 
2012-13 

£000 
Estimate 
2013-14 

£000 
General Fund  127,120 116,955 92,714 84,810 
Housing Revenue Account 414,829 414,829 414,829 414,829 
TOTAL 541,949 531,784 507,543 499,639 
 

The General Fund CFR includes allowance for new prudential borrowing of 
£5.4m regarding the Schools Development programme. 
 

NET BORROWING AND THE CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT 
 

This is the key indicator of prudence. Its purpose is to ensure that net borrowing 
is only for capital purposes. This is achieved by measuring net external borrowing 
against the capital-financing requirement. Estimates of net external borrowing for 
the preceding year, the current year, and the next two financial years indicate 
that net borrowing will be less than the capital financing requirement. The Council 
is forecast to meet the demands of this indicator. The projections are: 
 

 Forecast 
2010-11 
£000 

Estimate 
2011-12 
£000 

Estimate 
2012-13 
£000 

Estimate 
2013-14 
£000 

Net Borrowing 475,520 459,520 459,346 439,090 
Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) 

541,949 531,784 507,543 499,639 
Net Borrowing Less 
than CFR -66,429 -72,264 -48,197 -60,549 
 

Page 831



 
 
 
 
 

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO THE NET REVENUE STREAM 
 
This indicator demonstrates the percentage of the GF budget and HRA budget 
that is consumed by financing the capital programme. It should be noted that the 
HRA expenditure is effectively reimbursed through the Housing Subsidy system. 
 

 Estimate 
2011-12 

% 
Estimate 
2012-13 

% 
Estimate 
2013-14 

% 
General Fund  4.3 4.3 2.9 
Housing Revenue Account 28.56 31.10 30.33 
 
 

INCREMENTAL IMPACT OF CAPITAL SPENDING ON THE GENERAL FUND 
AND HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT. 

 

The estimate of the incremental impact of capital decisions proposed over and 
above capital investment decisions that have already been taken by the council 
are as follows: 
 

 Estimate 
2011-12 

£ 
Estimate 
2012-13 

£ 
Estimate 
2013-14 

General Fund– council tax £ per 
Band D home per annum -8.77 -17.54 -42.36 
Housing Revenue Account – 
rent £ per household per week 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 

The impact on the Housing Revenue Account is shown as nil. It is anticipated 
that all the new investment will either be fully funded through housing subsidy or 
from other specific funding allocations. 
 
 

BORROWING – AUTHORISED LIMIT & OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY 
 

The prudential indicators concerning the authorised limit for borrowing, and other 
treasury management activities, are set out in the Treasury Management 
Strategy report presented elsewhere on this agenda. 

Page 832



 
 

APPENDIX 5 
Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 
 
Recommendation 
 
The recommended Annual MRP statement for Hammersmith and Fulham is:  
• For debt which is supported by Revenue Support Grant this authority 

will calculate the Minimum Revenue Provision in accordance with 
current regulations (namely 4% of the Capital Financing Requirement 
net of Adjustment A) 

• For debt which has arisen through prudential borrowing it shall be 
written down in equal instalments over the estimated asset life. The 
debt write-off will commence the year after an asset comes into use. 

 
Background    
 
Each year local authorities are required to set aside some of their revenues as 
provision for debt repayment. This is commonly termed the minimum revenue 
provision (MRP). 
 
Local authorities are required to approve an annual MRP Statement. 
 
This Appendix sets out: 
• The options. 
• A recommended annual MRP Statement for this authority.  

 
 
The Options 
 
Councils can opt for 4 options regarding the MRP calculation. 
 
Option 1 
 
This provides for local authorities to calculate MRP in line with the minimum 
statutory charge. This is 4% of their opening Capital Financing Requirement, 
net of Adjustment A and the Commutation adjustment. As set out in Table 1 
this would provide for an LBHF charge of £3.358m in 2011/12.  
 
 £’000 
Opening 2010/11 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 127,120 
Less Adjustment A (43,179) 
Adjusted CFR 83,941 
Minimum Gross MRP (at 4%) 3,358 
  
 
The statutory minimum is not considered appropriate for this authority. LBHF 
has been concerned to ensure that all prudential borrowing is sustainable and 
that debt is actively managed downwards. As such it has decided to write 

Page 833



down all prudential borrowing over the asset life. This should ensure that 
budget provision is available to fund asset replacement and that overall 
borrowing levels are affordable. 
 
Option 2   
 
This provides for authorities to calculate MRP prior to Adjustment A.  
 
This is not considered appropriate. Given the scale of Adjustment A for LBHF 
it would increase the level of MRP by £1.727m. This is not affordable. It is 
also disproportionate given that our actual borrowing is below the CFR net of 
Adjustment A. It represents an over provision.   
 
Option 3 
 
This provides for separate treatment for supported and unsupported 
(prudential) borrowing. 
 
For supported borrowing MRP would be calculated as at present (4% on the 
CFR net of Adjustment A). 
 
For unsupported borrowing the debt would be written down over the asset life. 
 
This option is current LBHF practice. It should be noted that for this Council: 

- The debt write off would start the year after an asset comes into use. 
This would provide transitional relief as schemes are brought on 
stream. 

- The level of unsupported borrowing is excluded from the 4% CFR 
calculation. This is logical because you are otherwise, in the short-
term, writing down debt ‘twice’ (at both 4% and over the asset life).  

 
Under this option authorities need to carefully consider the type of assets they 
fund through prudential borrowing. For example, in the short-term, it could be 
financially advantageous to fund schemes that have a long asset life, rather 
than a short-life, through prudential borrowing. This would reduce the MRP 
charge. Whilst this is a consideration, and will be borne in mind, it is unlikely 
to be an attractive option for LBHF. This authority only undertakes prudential 
borrowing when it is considered affordable and is supported by a business 
case. For example if IT equipment is purchased through prudential borrowing 
it is more sustainable for the debt to be repaid over the asset life. This 
ensures that revenue capacity is retained for its replacement. It also requires 
Departments to properly cost out their business case.  
 
The total estimated MRP charge for this option is £3.407m which is £0.049m 
greater than option 1. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 834



Option 4 
 
This is similar to Option 3. It provides for separate treatment for supported 
and unsupported (prudential borrowing). 
 
The difference is that it provides for schemes that have been financed from 
unsupported borrowing to be written down by an amount equivalent to the 
amount of depreciation provision arrived at under standard accounting rules. 
 
This would be technically more difficult for the Council to introduce and would 
require a change in existing practice. There could also be future complications 
regarding asset revaluations that could result in significant increases in debt 
repayment levels.  
 
Option 4 is not considered as attractive as option 3. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Option 3 is current practice and it is recommended that this continue.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 835



 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Report to Council 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2011 
 
 

 
LEADER 
 

Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh 
 
 
 
 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
REPORT 
 
The report provides information on the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy for 2011/12 
including interest rate projections and borrowing 
and investment activity reports for the period 
April to December 2011. 
 
The report seeks approval for borrowing limits 
and authorisation for the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services to arrange the Council’s 
cashflow, borrowing and investments in the year 
2011/12.  
 

Wards 
 
All 

CONTRIBUTORS 
DFCS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 
 

1. To approve the future borrowing and    
investment strategies and authorise the 
Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services to arrange the Council’s 
cashflow, borrowing and investments in 
2011/12. 

 
2. To approve the additions to the list of 

institutions to the Council’s restricted 
lending list noted at paragraph 10.4.        

 
3.  In relation to the Council’s overall 

borrowing for the financial year 2011/12, 
approve the Prudential Indicators as set 
out in Section 3 of this report. 

 
4.  To delegate future amendments to the 

credit criteria to Cabinet. 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 836



 
1.    Introduction 
 
1.1 Background 
 

Treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

1.2   Statutory requirements 
 
        The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations require 

the Council to ‘have regard to’ the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice to set Prudential and Treasury 
indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

 
 The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for 

borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by 
Investment Guidance subsequent to the Act and included as paragraph 9 of 
this report); this sets out the Council’s policies for managing its investments 
and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. 

 
 The Department of Communities and Local Government has issued revised 

investment guidance which came into effect from April 2010.  There were no 
major changes required over and above the changes already required by the 
revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2009. 

 
1.3    Treasury Management Strategy for 2011/12 
 
 The strategy for 2011/12 in respect of the following aspects of the treasury 

management function is based upon the Treasury officers’ views on interest 
rates, supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s 
treasury advisor.  The strategy covers: 

 
• treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

Council; 
• prudential indicators 
• the current treasury position; 
• the borrowing requirements; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• the investment strategy;  
• debt rescheduling; 
 

1.4   Balanced Budget Requirement 
 

It is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget.  In 
particular, Section 32 requires a local authority to calculate its budget 
requirement for each financial year to include the revenue costs that flow from 

Page 837



capital financing decisions.  This, therefore, means that increases in capital 
expenditure must be limited to a level whereby increases in charges to 
revenue from:- 

 
a) increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance 

additional capital expenditure, and  
b) any increases in running costs from new capital projects are limited to a 

level which is affordable within the projected revenue income of the 
Council for the foreseeable future. 

 
2.     Treasury Limits 2011/12 to 2013/14 
 

• It is a statutory duty under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 
and supporting regulations for the Council to determine and keep under 
review how much it can afford to borrow.  The amount so determined is 
termed the “Authorised Limit”.   

•   The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the 
Authorised Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital 
investment remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the 
impact upon its future council tax and council rent levels is ‘acceptable’. 

•   Whilst termed an “Authorised Limit”, the capital plans to be considered for 
inclusion incorporate financing by both external borrowing and other forms 
of liability, such as credit arrangements.  The Authorised Limit is to be set, 
on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and the two successive 
financial years. 

 
2.1   Limits to Borrowing Activity 

 
• The Authorised Limit – This represents the maximum amount the Council 

may borrow at any point in time in the year. It has to be set at a level the 
Council considers “prudent” and it needs to be set and revised by 
members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable and encompasses 
borrowing for temporary purposes.  It is not a limit that is designed to be 
brought into consideration during the routine financial management of the 
authority.  That is the purpose of the Operational Boundary. 

•   The Operational Boundary – This indicator is the focus of day to day 
treasury management activity within the authority.  It is a means by which 
the authority manages its external debt to ensure that it remains within the 
self imposed Authorised Limit.  Sustained breaches of the Operational 
Boundary would give an indication that the authority may be in danger of 
stepping beyond the Prudential boundaries it has set itself. 

 
2.2   Interest Rate Exposures 
  
      Interest rate risk management is a key priority for local authority management. 

While fixed rate borrowing and investment can contribute significantly to 
reducing the uncertainty surrounding future interest rate scenarios, the pursuit 
of optimum performance may justify, or even demand, retaining a degree of 
flexibility through the use of variable interest rates on at least part of a 
treasury management portfolio.  This is a best practice approach to treasury 
management and is to be encouraged to the extent that it is compatible with 
the effective management and control of risk.  
  

Page 838



a) Upper Limit on fixed rate exposure – This indicator identifies a maximum 
limit for fixed interest rates based upon the debt position net of 
investments. 

 
b) Upper Limit on variable rate exposure – This indicator identifies a 

maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net 
of investments.   

 
c) Total principal funds invested for periods longer than 364 days – These 

limits are set to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of investments after each year-end.  

 
d) Maturity structures of borrowing – This indicator is designed to be a 

control over an authority having large concentrations of fixed rate debt 
needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates.  It is not 
necessary to include variable rate debt because local authorities do not 
face substantial refinancing risks.  The indicator is, in effect, a limit on 
longer term interest rate exposure. 

 
• This indicator gives the upper and lower limits for maturity structure of 

borrowing. 
 
3.    Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 – 2013/14 
 
3.1  The Prudential Indicators in the table below are relevant for the purpose of       

setting an integrated treasury management strategy. 
 
3.2  The Council is also required to indicate if it has adopted the revised 2009 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.  Council adopted this 
revised Code of Practice on 24 February 2010. 

 
 Table 1 - Prudential Indicators 

 
 

Treasury 
Management Indicators 

 
2010/11 
    £000 

 
2011/12 
    £000 

 
2012/13 
    £000 

 
2013/14 
    £000 

Authorised limit for 
external debt 

    
 

Borrowing 
  

563,249 
  

553,523 
  

529,283 
 

 521,379 
 

Other Long Term Liabilities 
 

16,000 
 

16,000 
    

16,000            
     

16,000            
 

Total authorised limit 
 

  
 579,249 

 
 569,523 

 
545,283 

 
 537,379  

     
 

Operational boundary 
    

 
Borrowing 

 
 499,694 

 
479,520 

 
479,345 

 
459,090 

 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
16,000 

 
16,000 

     
16,000            

        
16,000                                    

Page 839



Total operational boundary 
 

 
515,694 

 
495,520 

 
495,345 

 
 475,090 

     
Upper limit for fixed rate 
exposure expressed as: - 
net principal re fixed rate 
borrowing/ investments 

 
540,000 

 
544,000 

 
533,000 

 
509,000 

     
Upper limit for variable rate 

exposure expressed as: - 
net principal re variable rate 

borrowing /investments 

 
108,000 

 
108,800 

 
106,600 

 
101,800 

     
Upper limit for total 

principal sums invested for 
over 364 days 

20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

 
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing 
during 2010/11 

Upper Limit Lower Limit 
Under 12 months 15% 0% 
12 months and within 24 months 15% 0% 
24 months and within 5 years 60% 0% 
5 years and within 10 years 75% 0% 
10 years and above 100% 0% 
 
4. Current Portfolio Position 

 
4.1   The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2010 is shown in the 

following table. 
 
 Table 2 – Current Debt Portfolio 

 
  Principal  Ave. rate 
  £000’s £000’s % 

Fixed rate funding PWLB* 475,520   
 Market 0 475,520 5.75 
     

Variable rate funding PWLB 0   
 Market 0 0  
     

Total Debt   475,520  5.75 
 

     
Total Short Term 
Investments 

   
93,700  

 
1.03 

Total Debt 
net of  total Investments 

   
381,820 

 
* Public Works Loan Board 
 
4.2   The reason for the difference between the gross and net debt is because the   

Council has borrowed £77 million for the Decent Homes Initiative and expects 
this to be used by 31 March 2011.  In addition, the Council is holding monies 

Page 840



on behalf of Capital Ambition, West London Housing in addition to Section 
106 planning money. 

 
 4.3  The split of Council’s debt between the Housing Revenue Account and the     

General Fund is show below. 
 
 Table 3 – Council Debt split 
 

 31 March 
 2010 

31 March 
2011(estimate) 

HRA 404,634  414,829 
 
GF 

   
70,886 

   
 60,691 
 

Total Debt 475,520  475,520 
 
4.4   The General Fund Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is £133 million as at 

31 March 2010 compared to £137 million as at 31 March 2009 a reduction of 
£4 million. The HRA CFR is £405 million as at 31 March 2010 compared to 
£353 million as at 31 March 2009 an increase of £52 million.  The increase in 
HRA CFR is due to the delivery of the decent homes programme.  The total 
CFR is £538 million as at 31 March 2010.  The CFR represents the 
underlying need to borrow and is higher than the actual level of debt due to 
the temporary borrowing of internal resources. 

 
4.5   It is estimated that the General Fund Capital Requirement (CFR) will be £127 

million as at 31 March 2011 compared to £133 million as at 31 March 2010 a 
reduction of £6 million.  The HRA CFR is estimated as £415 million as at 31 
March 2011 compared to £405 million as at 31 March 2010 an increase of 
£10 million.  The increase in HRA CFR is due to the delivery of the decent 
homes programme.  The total estimate of CFR is £543 million as at 31 March 
2011. 

 
5.     Borrowing Requirement 

 
5.1  The Council is currently exploring the setting up of a housing company which 

may result in a further increase in new borrowing in future years to enable the 
building of new dwellings. 

 
 Table 4 – Potential Borrowing Requirement 

 
 2010/11 

£’000 
2011/12 
£’000 

2012/13 
£’000 

2013/14 
£’000 

 Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate 
New borrowing 
(including ALMO) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Maturing loans 

 
0 

 
16,000 

 
         174 

 
20,255 

 
 
 

Page 841



5.2  Due to the debt reduction policy it is likely that replacement borrowing will not 
be required for the maturing loans in 2011/12 to 2013/14. 

 
5.3  Under the capital finance regulations, local authorities are permitted to borrow 

up to three years in advance of need.  This Council will only consider 
borrowing up to one year in advance of need as the borrowing requirement in 
later years is only an estimate at this stage.  The reason for borrowing in 
advance is to take advantage of low long term interest rates.  There is a short 
term cost to borrowing in advance of need as currently investment rates are 
considerably lower than long term borrowing rates.  This will be evaluated 
before any decision is taken to borrow in advance of need. 

 
5.4  Borrowing in advance of need increases the level of temporary investments 

and thus increases the risk of loss of investment principal.  However, the 
Council has put in place a prudent methodology to minimise this risk, see 
paragraph 11. 

 
6.    Prospects for Interest Rates 
 
6.1  The Council appointed Sector Treasury Services as treasury adviser to the 

Council and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on 
interest rates.  Appendix A draws together a number of current City forecasts 
for short term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.  The following table 
gives the Sector central view: 

 
6.2  Sector Bank Rate forecast for financial year ends (March) 
 

• 2010/2011    0.50% 
• 2011/2012    1.00% 
• 2012/2013    2.25% 
• 2013/2014    3.25% 

 
There is downside risk to these forecasts if recovery from the recession 
proves to be weaker and slower than currently expected.   
 

7.     Borrowing Strategy  
 
        Sectors’ forecast for PWLB borrowing rates is shown in the table below: 
 

M ar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 M ar-12 M ar-13 M ar-14

Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 2.25% 3.25%

5yr PW LB rate 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 4.30% 5.00%
10yr PW LB 
rate 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.70% 5.10% 5.40%
25yr PW LB 
rate 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.30% 5.30% 5.50% 5.70%
50yr PW LB 
rate 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.30% 5.30% 5.50% 5.70%   
A more detailed forecast is included in appendix A 
 

Page 842



7.1  The Council’s borrowing strategy will give consideration to new borrowing in 
the following order of priority:- 
 
• The cheapest borrowing will be internal borrowing by running down cash 

balances and foregoing interest earned at historically low rates.  
However, in view of the overall forecast for long term borrowing rates to 
increase over the next few years, consideration will also be given to 
weighing the short term advantage of internal borrowing against potential 
long term costs if the opportunity is missed for taking market loans at long 
term rates which will be higher in future years. 

• PWLB variable rate loans for up to ten years. 
• Long term fixed rate market loans at rates significantly below PWLB rates 

for the equivalent maturity periods (where available) and to maintaining 
an appropriate balance between PWLB and market debt in the debt 
portfolio. 

• Fixed rate PWLB borrowing for periods under ten years where rates are 
expected to be significantly lower than rates for longer periods.  This 
offers a range of options for new borrowing which will spread debt 
maturities away from a concentration in longer dated debt. 

• Rates are expected to gradually increase during the year so it should 
therefore be advantageous to time new borrowing for the start of the year. 

 
7.2   Sensitivity of the forecast – In normal times the main sensitivities of the 

forecast are likely to be the two scenarios below.  The Council officers, in 
conjunction with the treasury advisers, will continually monitor both the 
prevailing interest rates and the market forecasts, adopting the following 
responses to a change of sentiment: 

 
• If it were felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall in long and 

short term rates, due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into 
recession or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowing will be 
postponed. 

• If it were felt that there was a more significant risk of a sharp rise in long 
and short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a 
greater than expected increase in world economic activity or a sudden 
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised 
with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest 
rates were still relatively cheap. 

 
8. Annual Investment Strategy 
 
8.1   The Council will have regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government 

Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2009 CIPFA’s Treasury Management in 
Public Services of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA 
TM Code”).  

 
 Although the annual investment strategy has to be approved by full Council, it 

is proposed that amendments to the investment methodology are delegated 
to Cabinet to enable changes to be made on a timely basis to reflect changes 
in market conditions. 

           
 
 
 

Page 843



8.2   The Council’s investments priorities are:- 
 

(a) the security of capital and 
(b) the liquidity of its investments. 
 

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  The risk appetite of 
this Council is low in order to give priority to security of its investments 
 

 8.3  The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is 
unlawful and this Council will not engage in such activity. 

 
 8.4 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below 

under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non Specified’ Investment categories.  
Counterparty limits will be as set by Council. 

 
 8.5  The Council in conjunction with its treasury advisor Sector, will use Fitch, 

Moody’s and Standard and Poor ratings plus data on movements in credit 
default swap to derive its credit criteria.  Credit ratings alerts and changes are 
notified to treasury officers on a daily basis and these are acted upon 
immediately.  In addition officers monitor the financial press and economic 
reports. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies 
through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service. 
 
• If a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer 

meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new 
investment will be withdrawn. 

• In addition to the use of Credit Rating the Council will be advised of 
information in movements in Credit Default Swaps (CDSs) against the 
iTraxx benchmark and other market data on a weekly basis.  Extreme 
market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or removal 
from the Councils lending list.  It should be noted that the Council is only 
monitoring CDS movements for information purposes, and is not actually 
purchasing any CDSs. 

 
8.6   The DCLG guidance requires authorities to specify their minimum acceptable 

credit rating.  The minimum ratings required by the Council are: 
   

 Fitch       
 Long Term          Short Term        Individual        Support 
      
       A-                         F2                   C                      2 
      
Moody’s                                                            
Long Term          Short Term       Financial Strength 
    
     A3                         P-2                    C 
 
S  & P  
Long Term          Short Term 

               A-                           A-3 
 
 
 

Page 844



8.7 Country Limits 
 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA+ from Fitch Ratings 
(or equivalent from other agencies) see Appendix B.  This list will be added 
to, or reduced, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this 
policy. 

 
9.     Interest rate outlook for investments 
 
9.1   Bank Rate has been unchanged at 0.50% since March 2009.  Bank rate is 

forecast to commence rising in quarter 3 of 2011 and then to rise steadily 
from thereon.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are as 
follows:- 

 
2010/11      0.50% 
2011/12      1.00% 
2012/13      2.25% 
2013/14      3.25% 

 
9.2   There is downside risk to these forecasts if recovery from the recession 

proves to be weaker and slower than currently expected. 
 
9.3   The Council will avoid locking into longer term deals while investment rates 

are down at historically low levels unless exceptionally attractive rates are 
available with counterparties of particularly high creditworthiness which make 
longer term deals worthwhile and within the risk parameters set by this 
council. 

 
9.4   For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will utilise its business 

reserve accounts, money market funds and short dates deposits (overnight to 
three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.  

 
The Council will report on its investment activity as part of a mid year review 
and at the end of the financial year as part of the Annual Outturn Report. 

 
9.5   Specified Investments 
 

A specified investment is defined in the guidance as an investment which  
satisfies the conditions set out below: 
(a) The investment is denominated in sterling and any payments or 

repayments in respect of the investment are payable only in sterling. 
(b) The investment is not a long-term investment (i.e. over 364 days) 
(c) The investment does not involve the acquisition of share capital or loan 

capital in any body corporate. 
 

Types of specified investments include and may be used by the Council are: 
 

Term deposit – UK government 
Term deposits – other Local Authorities 
Term deposits – banks and building societies 
Money market funds 
Callable deposits – under one year 
Certificates of deposits - issued by banks and building societies. 

Page 845



UK Government Gilts  
Treasury Bills 

 
9.6    Non-Specified Investments 
 

The Council has made no investments in non-specified investments to date.  
These are any investments not meeting the definition in paragraph 9.5 above.
  

9.7    However if  there was a core cash balance available after taking into account  
the cash flow requirements and the outlook for short–term interest rates  then 
the following non-specified investments could  be used after consultation with 
our Treasury Advisor. 

 
• Term deposits with banks with maturities in excess of one year. 
• Term deposits with building societies with maturities in excess of one 

year. 
• Term deposits with Local Authorities with maturities in excess of one 

year. 
• Structured deposits. 
• Bond Funds with AAA rating credit criteria 
• Callable deposits in excess of one year 
• Certificates of deposits - issued by banks and building societies in excess 

of one year. 
• UK Government Gilts in excess of one year  

 
10.   Credit Criteria 
 
10.1  Each week the Treasury Section receives an up to date list of the credit rating 

for individual counterparties from our treasury advisors. In addition to this if 
any changes in the credit rating of individual counterparties or in banking 
structures e.g. on mergers or takeovers occur during the month Sector e-mail 
the amendments to the Treasury Section on a daily basis and the section 
adds/deletes counterparties as appropriate to/from the approved counterparty 
list. 

             

10.2 The banking sector is still a volatile area and the current policy is that whilst 
we maintain our full lending list in accordance with the methodology in 
approved by Council on the 24 February 2010 we have been operating a 
more restricted lending list, lending only to UK banks, other Local 
Authorities  and AAA Money Market Funds. For illustrative purposes 
Appendix B is attached to show the countries and organisations on the 
lending list at the present time using the approved methodology.   

       
10.3 However, it is part of the Treasury Management Code of Practise that the 

Council needs a sound diversification policy with high credit quality 
counterparties.  Such a policy is needed to prevent overreliance on a small 
number of counterparties and should also consider country, sector and group 
limits. In addition, there is a possibility that within the next 12 months the 
government will lower its support to RBS, Lloyds Bank and NatWest and 
therefore they will no longer have the creditworthiness of the government 
itself.  The effect of this means the credit rating of these banks will be lower 
as the rating agencies will rate these banks without the government 
guarantee, this in turn means the Council will have to reduce the amount and 
duration the Council can lend to these banks. It is therefore proposed that we 

Page 846



expand our current restricted list and diversify our lending portfolio now to 
other highly credit rated banks within highly credit rated countries. This will 
enable the Council to spread its credit risk but still maintain a low risk 
investment strategy. 

 

10.4  Below is the proposed list of banking institutions which it is recommended the 
Council now adds to its restricted lending list use as well as the UK banking 
institutions, the AAA Money Market Funds and other Local Authorities. All of 
which are on our current lending list maintained in accordance with the 
agreed methodology approved by Council on 24 February 2010 for 
convenience it is shown as Appendix C. 
 

10.5 Added to this the Nat West Call Account that we presently use will be affected 
by the new FSA liquidity rules and it is likely that call account deposits with 
instant access will pay a much lower rate of interest, possibly below base 
rate, this will further reduce the Council’s investment options.  

 

10.6 The limits are driven by the methodology which is shown in full in Appendix C 
the maximum limits for these banks are shown in the table below.  The limits 
can change if there are rating changes, however the maximum limit would 
never be more than £25 Million. 

 
 Fitch Moody’s S&P Max Limit 
Australia AA+ Aaa AAA £’000 
Australia & New 
Zealand Bank 

AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA, A-1+ 25,000 
Commonwealth 
Bank of Australia 

AA, F1+, A/B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA, A-1+ 25,000 
National Bank of 
Australia 

AA,F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA, A-1+ 25,000 
 

Westpac Bank 
Corporation 

AA, F1+,A/B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA, A-1+ 25,000 

Canada AAA Aaa AAA  
Bank of Montreal AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa2, P-1, B- A+, A-1,  20,000 
Bank of Nova 
Scotia 

AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA-, A-1+ 25,000 
National Bank of 
Canada 

A+,F1,B,2 Aa2, P-1, B- A,A-1 20,000 
Toronto Dominion 
Bank 

AA-,F1+,B,1 Aaa, P-1, B+ AA-,A-1+ 25,000 

France AAA Aaa AAA  
Societe Generale A+, F1+, B/C, 1 Aa2, P-1, C+ A+, A-1 20,000 
Germany AAA Aaa AAA  
Deutsche Bank AA-,F1+,B/C, 1 Aa3, P-1, C+ A+,A-1 20,000 
Singapore AAA Aaa AAA  
DBS Ltd AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B AA-, A-1+ 25,000 
Overseas Chinese 
Banking 
Corporation 

AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B A+, A-1 25,000 

United Overseas 
Bank Ltd 

AA-, F1+, B, 1 Aa1, P-1, B A+, A-1 25,000 

 
11.  Nationalised Banks and Part Nationalised Banks 
        
        In the UK, the nationalised and part-nationalised banks have credit ratings 

which do not conform to the credit criteria usually used to identify banks which 
are of high credit worthiness, as they are no longer separate institutions in 
their own right. However, the Council has agreed to invest in these institutions 
as they are now recipients of an F1+ short term rating as they effectively take 
on the creditworthiness of the Government itself i.e. deposits made with them 
are effectively being made to the Government.  They also have a support 

Page 847



rating of 1; in other words, on both counts, they have the highest ratings 
possible.  

       
12.    Debt Rescheduling 
 
12.1 The introduction by the PWLB in 2007 of a spread between the rates applied 

to new borrowing and repayment of debt, which has now been compounded 
since 20 October 2010 by a considerable further widening of the difference 
between new borrowing and repayment rates, has meant that PWLB to 
PWLB debt restructuring is now much less attractive than it was before both 
of these events.   In particular, consideration would have to be given to the 
large premiums which would be incurred by prematurely repaying existing 
PWLB loans and it is very unlikely that these could be justified on value for 
money grounds if using replacement PWLB refinancing.  However, some 
interest savings might still be achievable through using LOBO (Lenders 
Option Borrowing Option) loans, and other market loans, in rescheduling 
exercises rather than using PWLB borrowing as the source of replacement 
financing. 

 
12.2 As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term 

rates, there may be potential for some residual opportunities to generate 
savings by switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these 
savings will need to be considered in the light of the size of premiums 
incurred, their short term nature, and the likely cost of refinancing those short 
term loans, once they mature, compared to the current rates of longer term 
debt in the existing debt portfolio.  Any such rescheduling and repayment of 
debt is likely to cause a flattening of the Council’s maturity profile as in recent 
years there has been a lean towards longer dated PWLB.  

 
12.3  The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 

• The generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings 
• Help fulfil the strategy outlined in paragraph 8 above; and  
• Enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or 

the balance of volatility). 
 
13.   Decent Homes Initiative 
 

In 2005/06 DCLG awarded the Council £192 million for supported borrowing 
for Decent Home Initiative.  This funding has been drawn down since 
2005/06.  There is a further borrowing requirement for the Decent Homes 
Initiative of £3.7 million in 2011/12. 
 

14.   HRA Reform consultation 
  
 The Government are currently considering the reform of the HRA.  This would 

mean that central government may repay a significant portion of the Council’s 
Housing debt. It is expected that the method used will be for the CLG to make 
a payment directly to the PWLB who will top slice all our PWLB loans in the 
ratio total debt repayment to total debt.  These proposals are currently on hold 
and we are waiting for further announcements. 

 
 
 
 

Page 848



15. Investment Consultants and Investment Training 
 
15.1 Sector Treasury Services Ltd were appointed on 1 February 2008 for a three 

year period following a tendering exercise.  Sector provide interest rate 
forecasts, economic updates, strategy reviews, training for treasury 
management staff and advice on the formulation of suitable borrowing and 
investment strategies and advice on investment counterparty 
creditworthiness.  As the Sector contract expired on 31 January 2011, a new 
tender process is currently underway. 

 
15.2 The Council is a member of the CIPFA treasury management network which 

provides a forum for the exchange of views and training of treasury 
management staff independent of the treasury management consultants. It 
also provides a quality check on the services received from the consultants. 

 
15.3 Treasury management staff are required to attend the CIPFA network 

meetings and Sector seminars and training events on a regular basis 
throughout the year to ensure that they are up to date at all times on 
developments in treasury management and continue to develop their 
expertise in this area. 

 
16.   Comments of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
 
16.1  The comments of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services are   

contained within this report. 
  
17.    Comments of the Head of Legal Services 
  
17.1  The statutory requirements are set out in the body of the report. 
 
18.    Comments of the Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
18.1  Any comments from the Audit and Pensions Committee will be orally reported 

at the meeting. 
 
      

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder 
of File/Copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1 Borrowings and Investments 
Ledger 

Rosie Watson 
 Ext. 2563 

Ground Floor Town 
Hall  

2 CIPFA-Prudential Code -
Accounting for Capital Finance 

Rosie Watson  
Ext. 2563 

Ground Floor Town 
Hall  

3 Various Economic commentaries Rosie Watson 
 Ext. 2563 

Ground Floor Town 
Hall  

 

Page 849



APPENDIX A  Interest Rate Forecasts                                                                                             
The data below shows a variety of forecasts published by a number of institutions.  The 
first three are individual forecasts including those of UBS and Capital Economics (an 
independent forecasting consultancy).  The final one represents summarised figures drawn 
from the population of all major City banks and academic institutions.   
 
The forecast within this strategy statement has been drawn from these diverse sources 
and officers’ own views. 
1. Individual Forecasts 
Sector: interest rate forecast – 6.1.11 
 

Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14

Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75% 2.25% 2.75% 3.00% 3.25% 3.25%

3 month LIBID 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.25% 3.50% 3.50%

6 month LIBID 0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.50% 1.80% 2.10% 2.40% 2.80% 3.20% 3.50% 3.80% 4.00%

12 month LIBID 1.40% 1.50% 1.60% 1.80% 2.10% 2.40% 2.70% 3.00% 3.20% 3.40% 3.65% 4.00% 4.20%

5yr PWLB rate 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.80% 3.90% 4.10% 4.30% 4.60% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00%

10yr PWLB rate 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 5.10% 5.20% 5.30% 5.40% 5.40%

25yr PWLB rate 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.30% 5.30% 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 5.50% 5.50% 5.60% 5.70% 5.70%

50yr PWLB rate 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.30% 5.30% 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 5.50% 5.50% 5.60% 5.70% 5.70%
 

 
 

 

Capital Economics: interest rate forecast – 12.1.11  
 

Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13
Bank Rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.50% 2.00%

5yr PWLB rate 3.20% 3.20% 3.00% 2.75% 2.75% 2.90% 3.00% 3.20% 3.40% 3.60% 3.90% 4.20%

10yr PWLB rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.25% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.90% 4.00% 4.30% 4.60%

25yr PWLB rate 5.25% 5.25% 4.85% 4.65% 4.65% 4.65% 4.65% 4.65% 4.75% 4.85% 5.10% 5.30%

50yr PWLB rate 5.30% 5.30% 5.20% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.10% 5.20% 5.30%
 

Page 850



   
UBS: interest rate forecast (for quarter ends) – 6.1.11 
 

Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12
Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00%
10yr PWLB 
rate 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00%
25yr PWLB 
rate 5.25% 5.30% 5.35% 5.40% 5.45% 5.50% 5.55% 5.60%

50yr PWLB 
rate 5.35% 5.40% 5.45% 5.50% 5.55% 5.60% 5.65% 5.70%

 
 
 
 

2. Survey of Economic Forecasts 
 
HM Treasury December 2010 
The current Q4 2010 and 2011 forecasts are based on the December 2010 report.   
Forecasts for 2010 – 2014 are based on 32 forecasts in the last quarterly forecast – in 
November 2010. 
 

actual Q4 2011 ave. 2011 ave. 2012 ave. 2013 ave. 2014
Median 0.50% 2.00% 0.90% 1.60% 2.40% 3.00%

Highest 0.50% 0.50% 2.10% 3.10% 3.60% 4.50%

Lowest 0.50% 0.80% 0.50% 0.50% 0.60% 1.20%

quarter endedBANK RATE 
FORECASTS

annual average Bank Rate

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 851



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

C
R

E
D

IT
 R

A
T

IN
G

 L
IS

T

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 S
u

g
g

es
t

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

A
u

st
ra

lia
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

+
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
53

.3
-3

.5
%

7.
2%

33
.9

%
21

.6
%

In
 R

an
g

e
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

A
us

tr
al

ia
 &

 N
ew

 Z
ea

la
nd

 B
an

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 L

td
P

O
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

N
O

A
a1

P
-1

N
O

B
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
10

9.
6

0.
8%

8.
5%

7.
4%

12
.2

%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

C
om

m
on

w
ea

lth
 B

an
k 

of
 A

us
tr

al
ia

S
B

A
A

F
1+

A
/B

1
N

O
A

a1
P

-1
N

O
B

S
B

A
A

A
-1

+
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
10

9.
0

0.
8%

8.
1%

7.
4%

15
.3

%
In

 R
an

ge
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

N
at

io
na

l A
us

tr
al

ia
 B

an
k 

Lt
d 

S
B

A
A

F
1+

B
1

N
O

A
a1

P
-1

N
O

B
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

10
9.

0
-1

.2
%

7.
9%

6.
0%

10
.9

%
In

 R
an

ge
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

W
es

tp
ac

 B
an

k 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n
S

B
A

A
F

1+
A

/B
1

N
O

A
a1

P
-1

N
O

B
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

10
9.

0
-1

.2
%

8.
1%

7.
3%

13
.6

%
In

 R
an

ge
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

C
an

ad
a 

- 
S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

A
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

B
an

k 
of

 M
on

tr
ea

l
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

R
D

A
a2

P
-1

R
D

B
-

S
B

A
+

A
-1

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

B
an

k 
of

 N
ov

a 
S

co
tia

S
B

A
A

-
F

1+
B

1
S

B
A

a1
P

-1
S

B
B

S
B

A
A

-
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

C
an

ad
ia

n 
Im

pe
ria

l B
an

k 
of

 C
om

m
er

ce
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

N
O

A
a2

P
-1

N
O

B
-

S
B

A
+

A
-1

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

N
at

io
na

l B
an

k 
of

 C
an

ad
a

S
B

A
+

F
1

B
2

S
B

A
a2

P
-1

S
B

B
-

S
B

A
A

-1
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 C

an
ad

a 
S

B
A

A
F

1+
A

/B
1

S
B

A
a1

P
-1

S
B

B
P

O
A

A
-

A
-1

+
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

T
or

on
to

 D
om

in
io

n 
B

an
k

S
B

A
A

-
F

1+
B

1
N

O
A

aa
P

-1
N

O
B

+
P

O
A

A
-

A
-1

+
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

D
en

m
ar

k 
- 

S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

ot
 

A
pp

lic
ab

le
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

44
.9

-8
.9

%
0.

4%
42

.4
%

18
.4

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

D
an

sk
e 

B
an

k 
A

S
S

B
A

+
F

1
B

/C
1

S
B

A
a3

P
-1

N
O

C
N

O
A

A
-1

 G
re

en
 =

 3
 m

th
s G

re
en

 =
 3

 m
th

s
11

7.
5

-5
.8

%
3.

2%
42

.6
%

86
.7

%
In

 R
an

ge
 G

re
en

 =
 3

 m
th

s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
in

la
n

d
 -

 S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
36

.8
-7

.6
%

11
.3

%
30

.9
%

44
.2

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

N
or

de
a 

B
an

k 
F

in
la

nd
 P

lc
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a2

P
-1

S
B

B
-

S
B

A
A

-
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

S
 &

 P
 r

at
in

g

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

C
D

S
 D

at
a

S
 &

 P
 r

at
in

g

Page 852



C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
ra

n
ce

 -
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

A
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

86
.7

-1
2.

0%
-1

8.
0%

16
.1

%
42

.4
%

In
 R

an
g

e
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

B
N

P
 P

ar
ib

as
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a2

P
-1

S
B

B
-

N
O

A
A

A
-1

+
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
10

0.
8

-4
.4

%
-4

.7
%

4.
6%

28
.8

%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

S
oc

ie
te

 G
en

er
al

e
S

B
A

+
F

1+
B

/C
1

N
O

A
a2

P
-1

N
O

C
+

S
B

A
+

A
-1

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

13
8.

8
-7

.3
%

-8
.2

%
11

.2
%

46
.4

%
In

 R
an

ge
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

G
er

m
an

y 
- 

S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
52

.1
-1

2.
8%

-6
.6

%
45

.0
%

41
.1

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

D
eu

ts
ch

e 
B

an
k 

A
G

N
O

A
A

-
F

1+
B

/C
1

S
B

A
a3

P
-1

S
B

C
+

S
B

A
+

A
-1

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

95
.9

3.
0%

0.
5%

-4
.1

%
1.

7%
In

 R
an

ge
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

H
o

n
g

 K
o

n
g

 
S

B
A

A
+

P
O

A
a1

 S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
47

.0
1.

2%
6.

5%
11

.7
%

-2
.2

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

H
on

g 
K

on
g 

an
d 

S
ha

ng
ha

i B
an

ki
ng

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

Lt
d

S
B

A
A

F
1+

A
/B

1
S

B
A

a1
P

-1
B

+
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)
F

it
ch

 L
 

T
er

m
 

L
 T

er
m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

 T
er

m
F

it
ch

In
d

iv
. 

In
d

iv
 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
L

 T
er

m
S

 &
P

S
 T

er
m

S
 T

er
m

N
et

h
er

la
n

d
 -

 S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
52

-1
3.

1%
-1

4.
5%

9.
5%

37
.5

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

B
an

k 
N

ed
er

la
nd

se
 G

em
ee

nt
en

S
B

A
A

A
F

1+
1

S
B

A
aa

P
-1

S
B

A
S

B
A

A
A

A
-1

+
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

IN
G

 B
an

k 
N

V
S

B
A

+
F

1+
C

1
S

B
A

a3
P

-1
N

O
C

+
S

B
A

+
A

-1
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
11

5.
8

-1
5.

2%
-1

9.
1%

-1
.8

%
26

.8
%

In
 R

an
ge

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s

C
o-

op
er

at
ie

ve
 C

en
tr

al
e 

R
al

iff
ei

se
n 

- 
B

oe
re

nl
ee

nb
an

k 
B

A
S

B
A

A
+

F
1+

A
/B

1
N

O
A

aa
P

-1
N

O
B

+
N

O
A

A
A

A
-1

+
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
70

.1
-5

.9
%

-1
2.

6%
0.

2%
7.

4%
In

 R
an

ge
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

M
o

o
d

y'
s 

ra
ti

n
g

S
 &

 P
 r

at
in

g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

M
o

o
d

y'
s 

ra
ti

n
g

S
 &

 P
 r

at
in

g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g

Page 853



N
o

rw
ay

 -
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

A
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

20
.4

-8
.9

%
-7

.2
%

-6
.9

%
-3

.2
%

In
 R

an
g

e
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

D
nB

 N
O

R
 B

an
k

S
B

A
+

F
1

B
1

S
B

A
a3

P
-1

R
D

C
S

B
A

+
A

-1
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
N

o 
D

at
a 

A
va

ila
bl

e

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m
S

in
g

ap
o

re
 -

 S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

D
B

S
 L

td
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a1

P
-1

S
B

B
S

B
A

A
-

A
-1

+
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
49

.3
0.

0%
11

.3
%

27
.1

%
6.

5%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

O
ve

rs
ea

 C
hi

ne
se

 B
an

ki
ng

 C
or

p 
Lt

d.
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a1

P
-1

S
B

B
S

B
A

+
A

-1
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
49

.8
0.

0%
5.

3%
28

.4
%

7.
6%

In
 R

an
ge

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

U
ni

te
d 

O
ve

rs
ea

s 
B

an
k 

Lt
d.

S
B

A
A

-
F

1+
B

1
S

B
A

a1
P

-1
S

B
B

S
B

A
+

A
-1

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

49
.8

0.
0%

5.
3%

28
.4

%
7.

6%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
F

it
ch

 L
 

T
er

m
 

L
 T

er
m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

 T
er

m
F

it
ch

In
d

iv
. 

In
d

iv
 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
L

 T
er

m
S

 &
P

S
 T

er
m

S
 T

er
m

S
w

ed
en

 -
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
32

.1
-1

1.
0%

-1
.0

%
10

.0
%

-8
.5

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

N
or

de
a 

B
an

k 
A

B
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a2

P
-1

N
O

C
+

S
B

A
A

-
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

S
ve

ns
ka

 H
an

de
ls

ba
nk

en
 A

B
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
a2

P
-1

S
B

C
+

S
B

A
A

-
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

58
.3

-2
.2

%
5.

5%
22

.4
%

12
.6

%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

S
w

it
ze

rl
an

d
 -

 S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 
S

B
A

A
A

S
B

A
aa

S
B

A
A

A
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

C
re

di
t S

ui
ss

e
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

N
O

A
a1

P
-1

N
O

B
S

B
A

+
A

-1
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
88

.8
-3

.0
%

-9
.3

%
-8

.5
%

2.
1%

In
 R

an
ge

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)
F

it
ch

 L
 

T
er

m
 

S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

U
K

 -
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

A
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

59
.7

-1
4.

3%
-1

7.
6%

9.
4%

11
.9

%
In

 R
an

g
e

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le

B
ar

cl
ay

s 
B

an
k 

pl
c

S
B

A
A

-
F

1+
B

1
S

B
A

a3
P

-1
S

B
C

N
O

A
A

-
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
11

6.
8

-3
.8

%
0.

2%
10

.0
%

9.
7%

In
 R

an
ge

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s

H
S

B
C

 B
an

k 
pl

c
S

B
A

A
F

1+
B

1
N

O
A

a2
P

-1
N

O
C

+
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

73
.0

-2
.4

%
-1

8.
2%

10
.7

%
16

.9
%

In
 R

an
ge

O
ra

ng
e

 =
  1

2 
m

th
s

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

Page 854



S
ta

nd
ar

d 
C

ha
rt

er
ed

 B
an

k
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
1

S
B

A
1

P
-1

B
-

S
B

A
+

A
-1

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

78
.7

-3
.0

%
-1

2.
3%

1.
1%

3.
3%

In
 R

an
ge

R
ed

 =
 6

 m
th

s

S
um

ito
m

o 
M

its
ui

 B
an

ki
ng

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

E
ur

op
e 

Lt
d.

S
B

A
F

1
C

1
S

B
A

a2
P

-1
S

B
C

S
B

A
+

A
-1

 G
re

en
 =

 3
 m

th
s G

re
en

 =
 3

 m
th

s
77

.6
-8

.7
%

22
.5

%
20

.9
%

-1
2.

6%
In

 R
an

ge
 G

re
en

 =
 3

 m
th

s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
(W

at
ch

/O
u

tl
o

04
/0

2/
11

W
ee

k 
%

 C
h

an
g

e
1 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

3 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
6 

M
o

n
th

 %
 

C
h

an
g

e
C

D
S

 S
ta

tu
s

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

T
er

m
 

S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

T
er

m
 

S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

In
d

iv
. 

S
ta

tu
s

In
d

iv
 

S
u

p
p

.
S

ta
tu

s
S

u
p

p
o

rt
L

 T
er

m
 S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m
S

 T
er

m
 S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m
F

R
S

 S
ta

tu
s

F
S

R
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

U
S

 -
 S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 

S
B

A
A

A
S

B
A

aa
S

B
A

A
A

N
o

t 
A

p
p

lic
ab

le
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

47
.5

-7
.9

%
18

.7
%

13
.9

%
31

.4
%

In
 R

an
g

e
N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

B
an

k 
of

 N
ew

 Y
or

k 
M

el
lo

n
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

A
/B

N
W

1
A

aa
P

-1
B

+
S

B
A

A
A

-1
+

P
ur

pl
e 

=2
4 

m
th

s
P

ur
pl

e 
=2

4 
m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

H
S

B
C

 B
an

k 
U

S
A

S
B

A
A

F
1+

B
/C

1
N

O
A

a3
P

-1
N

O
C

S
B

A
A

A
-1

+
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

N
o 

D
at

a 
A

va
ila

bl
e

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
C

ha
se

 B
an

k 
N

A
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

B
N

W
1

N
O

A
a1

P
-1

N
O

B
N

O
A

A
-

A
-1

+
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
68

.7
-1

1.
3%

-1
0.

8%
-1

9.
4%

-1
6.

9%
In

 R
an

ge
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s

S
ta

te
 S

tr
ee

t B
an

k 
an

d 
T

ru
st

 C
om

pa
ny

S
B

A
+

F
1+

B
N

W
1

N
O

A
a2

P
-1

N
O

B
N

O
A

A
-

A
-1

+
O

ra
ng

e
 =

  1
2 

m
th

s
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

86
.7

0%
-1

0.
40

%
-9

.9
0%

-1
3.

60
%

2.
30

%
In

 R
an

ge
R

ed
 =

 6
 m

th
s

C
o

u
n

te
rp

ar
ty

 D
u

ra
ti

o
n

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

(W
at

ch
/O

u
tl

o
o

k 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)
04

/0
2/

11
W

ee
k 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

1 
M

o
n

th
 %

 C
h

an
g

e
3 

M
o

n
th

 %
 C

h
an

g
e

6 
M

o
n

th
 %

 
C

h
an

g
e

C
D

S
 S

ta
tu

s

S
u

g
g

es
te

d
 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 (
C

D
S

 
A

d
ju

st
ed

)

F
it

ch
 L

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
 S

 
T

er
m

 
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

F
it

ch
In

d
iv

. 
S

ta
tu

s
In

d
iv

 

F
it

ch
S

u
p

p
.

S
ta

tu
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

M
o

o
d

y'
s

L
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

L
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

S
 T

er
m

 S
ta

tu
s

S
 T

er
m

M
o

o
d

y'
s

F
R

S
 S

ta
tu

s
F

S
R

S
 &

P
L

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
L

 T
er

m

S
 &

P
S

 T
er

m
S

ta
tu

s
S

 T
er

m

U
K

 N
at

io
n

al
is

ed
 a

n
d

 P
ar

t 
n

at
io

n
al

is
ed

 b
an

ks

B
an

k 
of

 S
co

tla
nd

 P
lc

S
B

A
A

-
F

1+
C

1
S

B
A

a3
P

-1
S

B
D

+
S

B
A

+
A

-1
B

lu
e 

= 
12

 m
th

sB
lu

e 
= 

12
 m

th
s

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le

Ll
oy

ds
 T

S
B

 B
an

k 
pl

c
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

C
1

S
B

A
a3

P
-1

S
B

C
-

S
B

A
+

A
-1

B
lu

e 
= 

12
 m

th
sB

lu
e 

= 
12

 m
th

s
18

9.
3

-7
.2

%
-4

.4
%

19
.6

%
15

.1
%

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le

N
at

io
na

l W
es

tm
in

st
er

 B
an

k 
pl

c
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

1
S

B
A

a3
P

-1
S

B
C

-
S

B
A

+
A

-1
B

lu
e 

= 
12

 m
th

sB
lu

e 
= 

12
 m

th
s

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 S

co
tla

nd
 p

lc
S

B
A

A
-

F
1+

C
/D

1
S

B
A

a3
P

-1
S

B
C

-
S

B
A

+
A

-1
B

lu
e 

= 
12

 m
th

sB
lu

e 
= 

12
 m

th
s

20
0.

3
-8

.0
%

-4
.0

%
25

.1
%

22
.6

%
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

U
ls

te
r 

B
an

k 
Lt

d
S

B
A

+
F

1+
E

1
N

O
A

2
P

-1
N

O
D

-
D

W
 N

W
A

D
W

 N
W

A
-1

B
lu

e 
= 

12
 m

th
sB

lu
e 

= 
12

 m
th

s
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

E
X

P
O

S
U

R
E

 L
IM

IT
S

B
lu

e 
 -

 E
xp

os
ur

e 
lim

it 
of

 £
35

 m
ill

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 3

64
 d

ay
s

P
ur

pl
e 

 -
 E

xp
os

ur
e 

lim
it 

of
 £

25
 m

ill
io

n 
w

ith
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 d
ur

at
io

n 
of

 2
4 

m
on

th
s

O
ra

ng
e 

 -
 E

xp
os

ur
e 

lim
it 

of
 £

25
 m

ill
io

n 
w

ith
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 d
ur

at
io

n 
of

 3
64

 d
ay

s
R

ed
 -

 E
xp

os
ur

e 
lim

it 
of

 £
20

 m
ill

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 6

 m
on

th
s

G
re

en
 -

 E
xp

os
ur

e 
lim

it 
of

 £
10

 m
ill

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 3

 m
on

th
s

N
o 

co
lu

r 
- 

o 
m

ot
hs

 d
ur

at
io

n

C
D

S
 D

at
a

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

F
it

ch
 r

at
in

g
M

o
o

d
y'

s 
ra

ti
n

g
S

 &
 P

 r
at

in
g

C
D

S
 D

at
a

Page 855



M
O

N
E

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

T
 F

U
N

D
S

P
R

IM
E

R
A

T
E

IN
S

IG
H

T
B

LA
C

K
R

O
C

K
G

O
LD

M
A

N
 S

A
C

H
S

A
ll 

fu
nd

s 
ha

ve
 A

A
A

 c
re

di
t r

at
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
a 

60
 w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e 

m
at

ur
ity

. T
he

se
 fu

nd
s 

al
lo

w
 in

st
an

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

as
h,

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
yi

el
d 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y

E
xp

os
ur

e 
lim

it 
of

 £
10

 m
ill

io
n 

pe
r 

fu
nd

 -
 n

o 
m

ax
im

um
 d

ur
at

io
n 

as
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

in
st

an
t a

cc
es

s 
fu

nd
s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 
D

eb
t M

an
ag

em
en

t O
ff

ic
e

T
re

as
ur

y 
B

ill
s

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

ill
s

N
o 

m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

 b
ec

au
se

 if
 w

e 
no

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 p

la
ce

 fu
nd

s 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tu
tio

ns
 w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 p
la

ce
 th

em
 w

ith
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.

P
U

B
L

IC
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

IE
S

U
ni

ta
ry

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

es
B

or
ou

gh
 a

nd
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il
F

ire
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s

T
he

se
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

gs
 b

ut
 s

ta
tu

e 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 c

re
di

t r
is

k 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 th
es

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 is
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 o
ne

.
E

xp
os

ur
e 

lim
it 

of
 £

25
 m

ill
io

n 
w

ith
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 d
ur

at
io

n 
of

 3
64

 d
ay

s

G
ro

u
p

 L
im

it
s

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ba

nk
s 

op
er

at
e 

un
de

r 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

na
m

e 
bu

t a
re

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

am
e 

ba
nk

in
g 

gr
ou

p
1)

Ll
oy

ds
 B

an
k 

G
ro

up
 p

lc
 -

 B
an

k 
of

 S
co

tla
nd

/L
lo

yd
s 

T
S

B
 p

lc
, H

al
ifa

x 
pl

c,
 H

B
O

S
 T

re
as

ur
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
2)

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 S

co
tla

nd
 G

ro
up

 p
lc

 -
 A

B
N

 A
M

R
O

 B
an

k 
N

V
,  

N
at

 W
es

t, 
R

B
S

 p
lc

, U
ls

te
r 

B
an

k 
Lt

d
3)

 D
ex

ia
 B

an
k 

(in
 B

el
gi

um
),

 D
ex

ia
 B

IL
 (

in
 L

ux
em

bo
ur

g)
, D

ex
ia

 C
re

di
t L

oc
al

 (
in

 F
ra

nc
e)

4)
 C

re
di

t A
gr

ic
ol

e,
 C

re
di

t A
gr

ic
ol

e 
In

do
su

ez
, C

al
yo

n 
(F

re
nc

h)
5)

 H
S

B
C

 p
lc

,  
H

S
B

C
 B

an
k 

U
S

A
, H

on
g 

K
on

g 
an

d 
S

ha
ng

ha
i B

an
ki

ng
 C

or
p 

(H
on

g 
K

on
g)

6)
 B

an
k 

of
 Ir

el
an

d 
an

d 
B

ris
to

l a
nd

 W
es

t
7)

 N
or

de
a 

B
an

k'
s 

- 
 D

en
m

ar
k,

 F
in

la
nd

, N
or

ge
 A

S
A

, S
w

ed
en

8)
 B

an
co

 S
an

ta
nd

er
 -

 B
an

co
 S

an
ta

nd
er

 U
K

 p
lc

 (
ol

d 
A

bb
ey

 N
at

io
na

l) 
A

lli
an

ce
 a

nd
 L

ei
ce

st
er

, B
ra

df
or

d 
an

d 
B

in
gl

ey
9)

N
at

io
nw

id
e 

B
ui

di
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

, D
er

by
sh

ire
, C

he
sh

ire
 a

nd
 D

un
fe

rm
lin

e 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
oc

ie
ty

10
) 

B
ar

cl
ay

s,
 W

oo
lw

ic
h

T
he

 li
m

its
 fo

r 
th

e 
G

ro
up

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
£2

5 
M

ill
io

n 
or

 a
s 

pe
r 

th
e 

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
it 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 B

an
k 

ex
ce

pt
 fo

r 
th

e 
U

K
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

lim
ite

d.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l m
in

im
u

m
 r

at
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

is
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s
S

o
ve

re
ig

n
 R

at
in

g
A

A
+

L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
 

S
h

o
rt

 T
er

m
In

d
iv

id
u

al
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

F
it

ch
A

-
F

2
C

2

L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
 

S
h

o
rt

 T
er

m
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tr

en
g

th
M

o
o

d
y'

s
A

3
P

-2
C

L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
 

S
h

o
rt

 T
er

m
S

 &
 P

A
-

A
-3

K
E

Y
N

O
 -

 N
eg

at
iv

e 
O

ut
lo

ok
D

G
 N

O
D

ow
ng

ra
de

 &
 N

eg
at

iv
e 

O
ut

lo
ok

N
W

 -
 N

eg
at

iv
e 

W
at

ch
D

G
 N

W
D

ow
ng

ra
de

 &
 N

eg
at

iv
e 

W
at

ch
D

G
 -

 D
ow

ng
ra

de
D

G
 R

D
D

ow
ng

ra
de

 &
 U

nd
er

 R
ev

ie
w

 fo
r 

P
os

si
bl

e 
D

ow
ng

ra
de

R
D

 -
 U

nd
er

 R
ev

ie
w

 fo
r 

P
os

si
bl

e 
do

w
ng

ra
de

D
G

 S
B

D
ow

ng
ra

de
 &

 S
ta

bl
e 

O
ut

lo
ok

P
O

- 
P

os
iti

ve
 O

ut
lo

ok
D

G
 E

W
D

ow
ng

ra
de

 &
 E

vo
lv

in
g 

W
at

ch
P

W
 -

 P
os

tit
iv

e 
W

at
ch

D
G

 E
O

D
ow

ng
ra

de
 &

 E
vo

lv
in

g 
O

ut
lo

ok
U

P
 -

 U
pg

ra
de

D
G

 D
O

D
ow

ng
ra

de
 &

 D
ev

el
op

in
g 

O
ut

lo
ok

R
U

 -
 U

nd
er

 R
ev

ie
w

 fo
r 

P
os

si
bl

e 
U

pg
ra

de
D

G
 U

N
D

ow
ng

ra
de

 &
 D

ire
ct

io
n 

U
nc

er
ta

in
S

B
 -

 S
ta

bl
e 

O
ut

lo
ok

U
P

 P
O

U
pg

ra
de

 a
nd

 P
os

iti
ve

 O
ut

lo
ok

E
W

 -
 E

vo
lv

in
g 

W
at

ch
U

P
 P

W
U

pg
ra

de
 a

nd
 P

os
iti

ve
 W

at
ch

E
O

 -
 E

vo
lv

in
g 

O
ut

lo
ok

 
U

P
 R

U
U

pg
ra

de
 a

nd
 U

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 fo
r 

P
os

si
bl

e 
U

pg
ra

de
W

D
 -

 R
at

in
g 

W
ith

dr
aw

n
U

P
 S

B
U

pg
ra

de
 a

nd
 S

ta
bl

e 
O

ut
lo

ok
D

O
 -

 D
ev

el
op

in
g 

O
ut

lo
ok

U
P

 E
O

U
pg

ra
de

 a
nd

 E
vo

lv
in

g 
O

ut
lo

ok
U

N
 -

D
ire

ct
io

n 
U

nc
er

ta
in

U
P

 D
O

U
pg

ra
de

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

in
g 

O
ut

lo
ok

U
P

 U
N

U
pg

ra
de

 a
nd

 D
ire

ct
io

n 
U

nc
er

ta
in

04
/0

2/
11

Page 856



APPENDIX C 
 
 METHODOLOGY FOR ESTABLISHING CREDIT CRITERIA 

 The follow methodology has been used to establish the credit criteria for an 
organisation or group. 
 
All Countries where investments are placed should have a minimum 
Sovereign rating of AA+ 
 
Exposure limit of £25 Million to be placed with any one country except 
the UK which would be unlimited. 
 
The Council will use all 3 credit rating agencies Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 
& Poor to derive its credit criteria. The methodology has a mathematical 
basis and gives a score to each of the ratings. An average score is then 
calculated for each of the constituent rating for Long Term, Short Term, 
Individual and Support.  A sum of the averages is then taken and duration 
calculated based on this final value.  The methodology is completely 
objective and mathematical, applying equal weight to each credit rating 
component.  
 
 The system also takes into account negative and positive rating watches 
and outlook. 
 
The methodology applies a ranking and scoring procedure to the credit 
rating to obtain a number, based on all the credit ratings of every rating 
agency, which is then compared to the scoring bands.  
 
Scoring procedure for the 3 Credit Rating Agencies 
 
Long Term Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s S&P 
Rating Scoring Rating Scoring Rating Scoring 
AAA 1 Aaa 1 AAA 1 
AA+ 2 Aa1 2 AA+ 2 
AA 3 Aa2 3 AA 3 
AA- 4 Aa3 4 AA- 4 
A+ 5 A1 5 A+ 5 
A 6 A2 6 A 6 
A- 7 A3 7 A- 7 
 
 
Short Term Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s S&P 
Rating Scoring Rating Scoring Rating Scoring 
F1+ 1 - - A-1+ 1 
F1 2 P-1 2 A-1 2 
F2 3 P-2 3 A-3 3 
 
 
 

Page 857



Only Fitch and Moody’s use Individual Ratings 
 
Individual Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s 
Rating Scoring Rating Scoring 
- - A+ 0.5 
A 1 A 1 
- - A- 1.5 
A/B 2 B+ 2 
B 3 B 3 
- - B- 3.5 
B/C 4 C+ 4 
C 5 C 5 
 
Support Ratings 
As only Fitch uses Support ratings, there is no need to create any 
equivalency tables and we can use the rating directly into the calculation. 
 
We then calculate the scoring for each counterparty on the scoring 
procedure. 
 
Example 

 Fitch Moody’s S&P 
 Long 

Term 
Short 
Term 

Indiv Support Long 
Term 

Short 
Term 

FRS Long 
Term 

Short 
Term 

Bank 
Australia 
and New 
Zealand 
Banking 
Group 

 
 
AA- 

 
 
F1+ 

 
 
B 

 
 
1 

 
 
Aa1 

 
 
P-1 

 
 
B 

 
 
AA 

 
 
A-1+ 

Scoring 4 1 3 1 2 2 3 3 1 
 
 
The Average for Long Term Rating is Fitch 4, Moody’s 2 and S&P 3 = 9 
9 divided by 3 (the no. of agencies)  = 3 
 
The Average for Short Term Rating is Fitch 1, Moody’s 2 and S&P 1 = 4 
4 divided by 3 (the no. of agencies)   = 1.333 
 
The Average for Individual Rating  is Fitch 3 and Moody’s 3 = 6 
6 divided by 2 (the no. of agencies) = 3 
 
The average for Support Rating is Fitch 1 as it is the only agency that uses 
Support Ratings 
 
The sum total of these averages = 3+1.333+3+1 =  8.333 
 
 
 
 

Page 858



 
 
 
The score is now placed within the predetermined bands. 
 
Bands 
Colour Lower Boundary Upper Boundary 
Purple  4.00 8.50 
Orange 8.50 10.50 
Red 10.50 12.50 
Green 12.50 14.50 
No Colour 14.50 30.00 
   
 
Where:- 
Purple  - Exposure limit of £25 Million with a maximum duration of 24 
months. 
Orange  - Exposure limit of £25 Million with a maximum duration of 364 
days. 
Red –  Exposure limit of £20 Million with a maximum duration of 6 months. 
Green – Exposure limit of £10 Million with a maximum duration of 3 months  
No Colour – 0 months duration 
 
In the example a score of 8.33 would place the bank in the Purple band and 
gives it a suggested maximum duration of 24 months. 
 
Credit Watch/Outlook Overlay 
 
To take into account credit watch and outlooks from the three credit rating 
agencies an overlay has been developed which penalises a counterparty’s 
score. 
 
The methodology focuses just on the negative and positive outlooks and 
watches.  Although stable, evolving and developing outlooks are still 
considered important when looking for a broader credit perspective, they 
can not be correlated with a direct impact in the change of counterparties 
score on the credit list. 
 
Watches – are considered short term actions, where as outlooks are 
considered over a longer period of time. 
 
To take account of the effect of a bank being on negative watch, one point 
is added to the score of the relevant credit rating e.g. if Moody’s placed a 
bank’s short term rating on negative watch, we would add one point to its 
score.  The opposite is applied for positive watches, 1 point is deducted. 
 
To take account of the effect of a bank being on negative outlook, then 1/2 
point is added to the score of the relevant credit rating e.g. if Moody’s placed 
a bank’s short term rating on negative outlook, we would add 1/2 point to its 
score.  The opposite is applied for positive outlooks, 1/2 point is deducted. 
 

Page 859



In the example above for Australia and New Zealand Group if Fitch had 
placed the bank on negative watch we would have added one point to the 
Fitch Long Term score to penalise the bank 
 
The Average for Long Term Rating is Fitch 4 +1, Moody’s 2 and S&P 3 = 9 
9 divided by 3 (the no. of agencies)  = 3.333 
 
Then when the sum total had been added together it would have changed 
from 8.333 to 8.666 which would move it down to a lower band – Orange. 
 
 
Banks that do not have a four way credit rating 
 
To account for banks that do not have a full 4 way credit rating i.e. Long 
Term, Short Term, Individual and Support, adjustments will be made to that 
bank’s score.   
 
By not having a full set of ratings it can skew the score for a bank making it 
higher as only 2 or 3 variables are being taken into account.  See example 
below. 
 
 
Example 
 Fitch Moody’s S&P 
 Long 

Term 
Short 
Term 

Indiv Support Long 
Term 

Short 
Term 

FRS Long 
Term 

Short 
Term 

Bank 
Jyske 
Bank  

     
 
Aa2 

 
 
P-1 

 
 
B- 

  

Scoring     4 2 3.5   
 
The average score is going to be:- 
 
Long Term - 4,   Short Term – 2,  Individual 3.5,  Support – 0 = 9.5  
 
As this bank is only rated by Moody’s and therefore does not have a four 
way approach. Currently they have a score of 9.5 putting them into the 
Orange band. 
 
This colour of Orange is biased upwards as only 3 ratings have been taken 
into account, so it is intended to drop the colour of the bank by one band for 
every missing rating. 
 
So if an bank only had a Long and Short Term rating, the initial colour would 
be reduced by 2 bands. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 860



Applying CDS spreads to the credit list 
 
CDS spreads are used as it has been proven that credit rating agencies lag 
market events and thus do not provide investors with an “up to date” picture 
of the credit quality of a particular bank. 
 
CDS spreads are used as an overlay to the credit ratings.  CDS spreads 
provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit quality of an 
institution.  Since they are traded instruments, they reflect the market 
perception related to that entity’s credit quality.  Credit ratings look at a firm’s 
fundamentals i.e. balance sheet, income statement etc. and tend to focus on 
a longer term view of the firm. 
 
It is important to note that not all entities will have an actively traded CDS 
spread. 
 
 
Trend analysis 
 
The weekly credit list provided by Sector shows the 1 week, 1 month and 3 
month percentage change in a counterparty’s CDS spread.  This allows 
Treasury officers to monitor the short, medium and long term trends of CDS 
spreads.  
 
Benchmark analysis 
 
The benchmark CDS index which measures the “average” level of the most 
liquid financial CDS spreads in the market is the iTraxx Senior Financials 
Index.  This is an index published by Markit who are the leading company in 
CDS pricing and valuation.  The index is based on an equal weighting of 
CDS spreads of 25 European financial companies. 
 
The iTraxx can be used to see where an institution’s CDS spread is relative 
to that of the market and judge its creditworthiness in that manner, as well 
as looking at the credit rating. 
 
Adjusted duration 
 
The methodology employs the rule that if the CDS spread of a bank/building 
society is below or equal to the level of the iTraxx, then it is deemed “In 
Range.” It retains its’ colour and duration. 
 
If the bank/building society’s CDS spread is between the iTraxx level and 
the iTraxx level + 50bps, then it is deemed “Monitoring.”  When a 
bank/building society is “Monitoring” its colour and duration is reduced by 
one band. 
 
If the bank/building society’s CDS spread is above the iTraxx level + 50bps, 
then it is deemed “Out of Range” its colour becomes no colour and is 
removed from the list. 
 

Page 861



 
 
Exceptions to this methodology 
 
Nationalised and Part Nationalised Banks 
 
See paragraph 11.  
 
In light of this the colour Blue is used, for UK nationalised or part 
nationalised banks  
Exposure limit of £35 Million with a maximum duration of 364 days.  
 
Government 
 
Debt Management Office 
Treasury Bills 
Government Gilts 
 
No maximum amount because if we have no capacity to place funds with 
other financial institutions we need to place them with the government. 
 
 
Public Authorities 
 
Unitary Authorities 
Local Authorities 
Borough and District Council’s 
Met. Police 
Fire and Police Authorities 
 
These authorities do not have credit ratings but statute (LG Act 2003 s13) 
suggests that credit risk attached to these authorities is an acceptable one. 
 
Exposure limit of £25 Million with a maximum duration of 364 days. 
 
 
Money Market Funds  
 
All funds have a AAA credit rating which have a 60 day weighted average 
maturity.  These funds allow instant access to cash, and provide enhanced 
yield and security. 
 
Exposure limit of £10 Million – no maximum duration as these are instant 
access funds. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 862



 
 
 

MONITORING 
OFFICER’S REPORT 

TO COUNCIL 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTRIBUTOR:   
 
ADLADS 
 
 

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION -  
CHANGES TO OFFICER SCHEMES OF DELEGATION 
AND MINOR AMENDMENTS 
 
Summary 
 
The Council at its meeting on 26 May 2010 agreed revisions 
to the Constitution and re-adopted the document for the 
2010/11 Municipal Year.   
 
This report proposes some in year amendments to reflect 
changes to Cabinet portfolio responsibilities and changes to 
the Schemes of Delegation as a result of the creation of a 
new Housing and Regeneration department. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the changes and amendments proposed to the 
Council Constitution, as summarised in Appendix 1 to 
the report, be agreed. 
 

WARDS 
All 

 

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 863



 
1. COMMENTS OF MONITORING OFFICER   
 
1.1 Over the past 12 months, changes have been made to the Constitution to 

reflect the changes to the Cabinet portfolio responsibilities and amendments to 
the Schemes of Delegation.  The Monitoring Officer is satisfied that the 
Council’s Constitution continues to fulfil its stated purposes, as set out in Article 
1 of the Constitution.   
 

1.2 The Council’s Executive and Scrutiny processes have continued to operate as 
intended and as laid out in the Constitution over the past year.  The proposed 
changes and the reasons for them are set out in Appendix 1.  

 
2. SCHEMES OF DELEGATION 

 
2.1 The main revisions are made to the Scheme of Delegation to reflect the transfer 

of powers and functions from the Community Services department to the 
Housing and Regeneration department from 1 April 2011 in line with the new 
Corporate structure.  As in previous years, further minor amendments to the 
detailed Schemes of Delegation (which set out how responsibilities are 
assigned from the Council to its Directors and other officers) are being 
proposed.  These changes have been included in the Constitution and 
circulated separately to Members. 

 
3. CONTRACTS STANDING ORDERS  
 
3.1 These have also been reviewed and updated where necessary and included in 

the Constitution circulated separately to Members. 
 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

No. 
 

 
Brief Description of 

Background 
Papers 

 
Name/Ext.  of holder of 

file/copy 
 

 
Department/Location 

1. 
 
 
 

Review of the 
Constitution  
Working papers/file 
 
 

Kayode Adewumi   
Head of Councillors’ 
Services, Ext 2499 

 

Second Floor, 
Hammersmith Town 
Hall, Room 202a 

 

Page 864



Appendix 1 
 
REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION FEBRUARY 2011    
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS  
 
 
CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 
 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 

Part 3 – Responsibilities for functions 
 
Executive 
members : 
responsibilities 
and portfolios 
 

Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
 
 
Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
 

Delete reference to the borough partnership and Local Strategic 
Partnership in function 1.3. 
 
Rationale: These no longer exist. 
 
 
Add Director of Housing and Regeneration to Cabinet Member 
responsibility for directorates (in consultation with the Leader). 
 
Rationale:   New Housing and Regeneration department.   
 

Regulatory and 
other Committees 
memberships 
2010/11 

Licensing Committee – membership 
 
Licensing Sub-Committee -
membership  
 

Replace Councillor Georgie Cooney with Councillor Thomas Crofts 
 
Rationale: This change was approved in October 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 865



CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 
 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 

 
General Scheme of 
delegation to all 
Chief Officers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ 
Schemes of 
Delegation   
 
 
 
 
Directors’ 
Schemes of 
Delegation  (cont.) 

 
Section A, paras. 6  and 7  -
Delegated authority to Chief Officers 
to accept tenders and quotations of 
up to £50,000, tenders/awards and 
quotations over this level being 
processed as Cabinet Members’ 
Decisions 
 
 
Section A para. 17  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors of Community Services 
and Environment – detailed Scheme 
of Delegation: shared powers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1.  Amend to provide for all tenders/awards and quotations over  
     £20,000 to be processed as Cabinet Members’ decisions. Similar  
     amendments to be made to the Contract Standing Orders and the  
     Financial Procedure Rules. 
 
     Rationale: To accord with current limits to delegated authority  
     required by the Leader. 
 
 
2.  Amend  to read “In consultation with Human Resources on the  
     application of paragraphs 13(g), 13(h), 18, 20 and 22 below, all  
     Directors are authorised:” 
 
     Rationale: Correction of paragraph cross-references. 
  
 
3.  Transfer functions shared by Director of Community Services  
     and Director of Environment to Director of Housing and  
     Regeneration and Director of Environment. 
 
     Rationale: New Housing and Regeneration department. 
 

P
age 866



CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 
 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 

Directors’ 
Schemes of 
Delegation  (cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director of Environment – detailed 
Scheme of Delegation  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4.   Transfer functions formerly exercised by the Director of  
      Community Services (currently exercised by Director of  
      Environment) to Director of Housing and Regeneration (pp.251- 
      265 of May 2010 Constitution).  
 
      Rationale: New Housing and Regeneration department. 
 
5.   Amend delegations 191 and 194 (pp. 230-232 of May 2010  
      Constitution) to allow officers to decide small variations to  
      schemes where planning permission has been approved. 
 
      Rationale: To provide for approval of small variations which raise  
      no new departures and which do not warrant the use of  
      Committee time.    
 
6.   Amend delegations 195, 197, 198 and 199 (pp. 233-234 of May  
      2010 Constitution) to enable planning officers to authorise, issue,  
      Serve and vary relevant planning enforcement notices, breach of  
      condition and stop notices themselves, and to issue and serve  
      such notices where enforcement action has already been  
      authorised at Planning Applications Committee. Any distinction  
      between types of unauthorised development would also be  
      removed. 
 
      Rationale: At present, these powers are delegated to the  
      Assistant Director (Legal and Democratic Services). Enabling   
     planning officers to do this themselves will be far quicker and will 

 
 

  

P
age 867



CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
 

Directors’ 
Schemes of 
Delegation  (cont.) 

Director of Environment – detailed 
Scheme of Delegation (cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       achieve a considerable saving in costs. The Assistant Director  
        (Legal and Democratic Services) supports this proposal. 
    
7.    Add new delegations to cover S215 and 216 (power to require  
       proper maintenance of land and to prosecute) and S224 and 225  
      (control over advertisements and illegal estate agents’ boards) of     
       the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and associated  
       legislation. 
 
       Rationale: To update and clarify existing delegations. 
 
8.   Add the posts of Veterinary Surgeon or Veterinary Practitioner 
       to the list of delegations in respect of the  agriculture, animal  
      welfare and zoo licensing legislation (pp.168, 169, 171, 172, 212,  
      222 and 247 of May 2010 Constitution),  
  
      Rationale: Reflecting new post titles.  
 
9.   Add new delegations in respect of : enforcement regarding       
       Breeding and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) Act 1999, the Companies  
       Act 2006, Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996,  
       Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976, Digital Evidence Act 2010,  
       Fraud Act 2006, Health Acts 2006 and 2009, London Olympic  
       Games and Paralympic Games Act 2006, Rabies (Importation of  
       Dogs, Cats and Other Mammals) Order 1974, Sale of Dogs     
       (Identification Tag) Regulations 1989, Sunbeds (Regulation) Act  
       2010,        

P
age 868



CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
 

Directors’ 
Schemes of 
Delegation  (cont.) 

Director of Environment – detailed 
Scheme of Delegation (cont.) 
 

 
Director of Community Services – 
detailed Scheme of Delegation 
 
 
 
 
H&F Homes – detailed Scheme of 
Delegation 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      Rationale: New legislation or powers. 
 
 
 
10.   Transfer  to the Director of Housing and Regeneration all      
        Housing functions and functions exercisable in conjunction with  
        other officers (pp. 267-287 of May 2010 Constitution). 
 
        Rationale: New Housing and Regeneration department. 
      
11.   Transfer to the Director of Housing and Regeneration (pp. 302- 
        313 of May 2010 Constitution), except responsibilities in respect  
        of enforcement of tenancy conditions (see no. 12 below). 
 
        Rationale:   New Housing and Regeneration department.  
  
 12.  Transfer as a shared power by the Director Housing and  
         Regeneration and the Director of Residents Services  (subject  
         to review in 12 months) responsibilities in relation to the  
         enforcement of tenancy conditions under all grounds of the  
         Housing Acts 1985 and 1996, the Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
         and the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. 
 
         Rationale: These provisions also have implications for  
         Residents Services department. 
 
 
   

 

P
age 869



CONSTITUTION  
SECTION 

RELEVANT SUB-SECTION PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
 

 Detailed Schemes of Delegation 
passim. 
 

13.  Amend cross-references consequent upon the establishment of  
        the new Housing and Regeneration department. 

Part 4 – Rules of procedure 
 
Council Procedure 
Rules 
 
 
 

Section 3 – Other Council Meetings, 
sub-para. (c ) 

Add to the provision for the Mayor to call an Extraordinary Council 
meeting the words: “An Extraordinary meeting may consider any of 
the matters specified in Rule 2.1 above (Business at ordinary Council 
meetings)”.   
 
Rationale: To clarify, in accordance with existing practice, that an 
Extraordinary Council meeting may consider any of the types of 
business required to be considered at ordinary Council meetings. 
 

Executive 
Procedure Rules 
 
and 
 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules 

Section 2.2 (c ): Requests for 
deputations to be submitted to the 
Cabinet must be made at least  5 
working days before the relevant 
meeting    
Section 25 (a) (iii): Requests for 
deputations to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees or Task 
Groups must be submitted at least 
10 working days before the relevant 
meeting.  

Amend in both cases, to provide for requests for deputations to be 
submitted up to 3 working days before a meeting of the Cabinet, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  
 
Rationale: This is because the current limits give insufficient time for 
some deputation organisers to organise their deputations, given that 
Cabinet/Committee agendas and papers are published at the most 
10 working days before the relevant meeting. 
 
Delete reference to submission of deputations to Task Groups. 
 
Rationale: This is because deputations would not in practice be 
submitted to ad hoc single issue working groups. 

 

P
age 870



 
 

 

Report to Council 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2011  
 
LEADER 
Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCILLORS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME: 
REVISION 
 
SYNOPSIS 
 
This report performs the statutory annual review 
of Councillors’ allowances for the 2011/12 
financial year, and takes into account the 
recommendations made in the Independent 
Remunerator’s report to London Councils (May 
2010).  
 

 
WARDS 
All 
 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
DFCS 
ADLDS  
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Councillors’ Allowances Scheme 
2011 – 12 as set out in Appendix 1, be 
adopted. 
 

 

  
 
 

 

Agenda Item 6.5

Page 871



1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is required under the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local 

Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 to undertake 
an annual review of its Members’ Allowances scheme.   

 

1.2 The Council’s proposed Scheme for the financial year 2011/12 is set out at 
APPENDIX 1 to this report.  The Council’s Scheme broadly remains the same 
as agreed in May 2010 with no additional Special Responsibility Allowance 
(SRA) being recommended.  There has been a reduction of the cooptee 
allowance as the Committees meet less often.  Council has taken into account 
the independent remunerator’s recommendation issued in May 2010 but has 
decided to retain its own basic rate allowance.   

 

1.3 In 2009, due to the economic conditions, it was recommended that all 
allowances be frozen at the 2008/9 levels.  In years prior to this decision 
being taken, an automatic uplift in line with the previous year’s Local 
Government Pay Settlement was made.  The pay award for 2010/11 was 0%. 
Due to the current economic conditions, it is recommended that all allowances 
continue to be frozen for a third year at the 2008/9 levels. 

 
2. INDEPENDENT REMUNERATOR’S REPORT 
 
2.1 The Council is formally required to undertake a review of its members’ 

allowances scheme each financial year.  Any changes in allowances are 
required to take into account the recommendations of a local independent 
panel on remuneration for Councillors.  Where a scheme includes a provision 
for an automatic uplift, the operation of this provision may only be relied on for 
a period of four years before reference must again be made to a local 
independent remunerator’s report and recommendations.    

 

2.2 In the case of London, there is a standing report produced by the local 
remuneration panel appointed by London Councils which is applicable to all 
London Borough Councils.  The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 authorises the establishment by the Association 
of London Government (now London Councils) of an Independent 
Remuneration Panel to make recommendations in respect of the members’ 
allowances payable by London Boroughs. Such a Panel was established and 
reported in 2001, 2003 and 2006.  The Panel was re-constituted in 2009 
comprising Sir Rodney Brooke CBE (Chair), Professor Drew Stevenson and 
Jo Valentine.  The Panel findings were agreed by London Councils Leaders’ 
Committee in May 2010. The report has 12 recommendations which are 
attached at APPENDIX 2. 

 
2.3 Having considered the proposals contained within the report, the Council once 

again notes that the current scheme is broadly consistent with the 
independent remunerator’s report and recommendations with the following 
significant differences:- 

 
• Allowances to be updated in line with local government pay awards;   
• Role descriptions should be developed for councillors for all their areas 

of work; 

Page 872



• The role descriptions should be placed on council websites; 
• Councils should consider the introduction of an appraisal system for 

members; 
• Councillors who, without reasonable cause, fail to discharge their 

duties should not claim the basic allowance. The legislation requiring 
only an attendance at a council meeting every six months should be 
tightened. 

• Only one SRA should be paid to a councillor in respect of duties with 
the same authority.  

• Rationalisation in the tax treatment of expenses borne by councillors 
and recommend that the Local Government Association be asked to 
pursue that at the national level, or failing that, London Councils 
attempt to achieve rationalisation on behalf of London. 

 
2.4 The Council has taken into account the independent remunerator’s 

recommendation but has decided to retain its own basic rate allowance frozen 
at the 2008 – 09 level.  The basic role of a councillor is enshrined in the 
constitution which is already published on the Internet. In particular there are 
detailed provisions in relation to the Mayor and Cabinet.  The political parties 
rather than officers are in a better position to introduction and administer an 
appraisal system for members.  This is a matter for the parties to undertake 
and administer at their discretion.  
 
The Council agrees that Councillors who, without reasonable cause, fail to 
discharge their duties should not claim the basic allowance and legislation 
requiring only an attendance at a council meeting every six months should be 
tightened.  The Council does not agree that only one SRA should be paid to a 
councillor in respect of duties with the same authority.  Each local authority 
should be able to look at its own local circumstances due to the profile and 
size of its membership.  The Council consists of 46 members with a high 
proportion of young councillors and people in active employment.  The 
removal of the Cabinet, Mayor and Deputy Mayor participating in the 
committees reduces the number of people who would be available to seat on 
committees which meet with an exceptional frequency.  

 
The Council also agrees that there should be a rationalisation in the tax 
treatment of expenses borne by councillors and support that the Local 
Government Association be asked to pursue this at the national level, or 
failing that, London Councils attempt to achieve rationalisation on behalf of 
London. 
 

 
2.5 Council is requested to adopt the Scheme set out at Appendix 1 effective from 

26 May 2011 subject to any changes which might arise.  
 
 
3. COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF LEGAL AND 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
3.1 The proposals contained within the report are in line with the Local 

Government Act 2000 and appropriate regulations. 
 

Page 873



 
4. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 
4.1 The Director of Finance and Corporate Services can confirm that the 

proposed action is cost neutral and that sufficient provision in the existing 
budget to fund the costs as contained in this report. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder 

of File/Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. The Remuneration of 
Councillors in London: 2010 
Review (May 2010) 

Kayode Adewumi, 
ext 2499 

FCS  Room 202a, 
Hammersmith Town Hall 

2. Members’ Allowance 
Scheme report 2010/11 

Kayode Adewumi, 
ext 2499 

FCS  Room 202a, 
Hammersmith Town Hall 

Page 874



 
         APPENDIX 1 

 

Members’ Allowances Scheme 2011-12 
[Scheme effective from 26th May 2011] 
 
 
This scheme is made in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (“the Regulations”) for 2011 –2012 and 
subsequent years.  The allowances scheme has been prepared having regard to the 
report of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors in London 
established by London Councils on behalf of all London Councils, co-authored by 
Rodney Brooke, Drew Stevenson and Jo Valentine, and published in May 2010. 
 
1.  BASIC ALLOWANCE 
 
1.1  The independent remunerator’s report suggests a flat-rate basic allowance be 

paid to each member of the authority of £9964 per annum to be paid in 12 
monthly instalments on the 15th of each month. 

 
1.2 The Council has taken into account the independent remunerator’s 

recommendation but has decided to retain its own basic rate allowance frozen 
at the 2008 – 09 level.  

 
The basic rate allowance for all LBHF Councillors will therefore be: 

 
 £8,940 - to be paid in 12 monthly instalments on the 15th of each month. 
 

Councillors only receive an allowance for the period of their term of office in 
cases where it is less than the whole financial year.  

 
2. SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES 
 
2.1 Regard has been had to the recommendations in the independent 

remunerator’s report for differential banding in relation to the payment of 
Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA’s), but in the interest of maintaining a 
low Council Tax and the current economic conditions, it has been decided to 
freeze the Council’s own scheme of SRA’s at the same level approved for 
2008 - 9 and not to follow the independent remunerator’s recommendations 
which would have proved considerably more costly to local council taxpayers. 

 
2.2 The following Special Responsibility Allowances shall therefore be paid to 
 Councillors holding the specified offices indicated: 
 

The Leader £35,763 
Deputy Leader £29,796 
Other Cabinet members (6) £23,838 
Chief Whip (where not a member of Cabinet) £23,838 
Deputy Chief Whip £5,000 
Chairmen of Overview & Scrutiny Committees (4) £6,183 
Leader of the Opposition £17,874 

Page 875



Deputy Leader of the Opposition £6,183 
Opposition Whip £6,183 
Chairmen of Planning Applications Committee, Audit and 
Pensions Committee, Licensing Committee & Councillor 
member on Adoption Panel 

£6,183 

The Mayor £11,922 
Deputy Mayor £6,183 
Cabinet Assistants  £3,000 

 
Councillors only receive an allowance for the period of their term of office in 
cases where it is less than the whole financial year.  A Special Responsibility 
Allowance would cease where the SRA entitled post ceases to exist during year. 

 
3) OTHER ALLOWANCES 
 

a) Dependent Carer Allowance 
 

Dependant carer allowance is payable in respect of expenses incurred for the 
care of a member’s children or dependants in attending meetings of the 
authority, its executive, committees and sub-committees and in discharging 
the duties set out in paragraph 7 of the Regulations.   

(1) £4.18 per half hour before 10 p.m.; £5.31 per half hour after 10 p.m. 
(not payable in respect of a member of the councillor’s household). 

 
b) Travel & Subsistence  

 
Allowances are payable (at the same rates as employees) for duties 
undertaken away from the Town Halls when discharging duties under 
paragraph 8 of the Regulations.  In addition, the cost of travel after late 
evening meetings from the Town Hall would be paid. 
 

(1) Public Transport 
Actual travel costs (second class only) will be reimbursed. 
 

(2) Car mileage 
 
Cc first 8500 miles 

(pence per mile) 
above 8500 miles 
 (pence per mile) 

Below 1000 42.9 11.7 
1000 or more 47.7 12.2 
 
The figures above are the 2009/10 rates as car mileage is paid at the same 
rate as for officers.  
 
 
 
 

(3) Cycle allowance 
£36.93 per month – where this is claimed, no other travel claims are 
permissible. 

Page 876



(4) Subsistence 
Allowance payable at same rates and conditions as employees.  
Payment is only made for expenses incurred outside the Borough, and 
is subject to a maximum of £5.00 per claim. 

 
c) Sickness, Maternity and Paternity Allowance 
 

Where a Member is entitled to a Special Responsibility Allowance, it will 
continue to be paid in the case of sickness, maternity and paternity leave in 
the same way as employees. 

 
4) ANNUAL INCREASE 
 

The allowances in this scheme apply to the financial year 2011-12.  All 
allowances have been frozen at the 2008 – 9 level.  

 
5) ELECTION TO FOREGO ALLOWANCES 
 

In accordance with the provisions of regulation 13, a Councillor may, by notice 
in writing to the Chief Executive, elect to forego any part, or all, of his or her 
entitlement to an allowance under this scheme. 
 

6) TIME LIMIT FOR CLAIMS 
 

The majority of allowances are payable monthly, but where allowances are 
the subject of claims, these claims should be made in the agreed form with 
the appropriate declaration within six months of the duty to which they relate. 

 
7) WITHHOLDING OF ALLOWANCES 

 
In the event of a Councillor being suspended or partially suspended, the 
Standards Committee shall have the power to withhold the allowances 
payable to that Councillor either in whole or in part for the duration of that 
suspension. 
 

8) MEMBERS’ PENSIONS 
 

Previously, Councillors could only join the authority’s pension scheme if they 
were aged under 70 and could only pay contributions and accrue benefits until 
their 70th birthday.  However, under new pensions regulations, the situation 
has changed, and the independent remunerator’s report now recommends all 
Councillors under the age of 75 years be entitled to join the London Borough 
of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Scheme, and have their basic allowance 
and special responsibility allowances treated as pensionable.  This 
recommendation has accordingly been adopted. 

 
9) MEMBERSHIP OF MORE THAN ONE AUTHORITY 
 

A member may not receive allowances from more than one authority (within 
the meaning of the regulations) in respect of the same duties. 
 

 

Page 877



 
ALLOWANCES FOR CO-OPTED MEMBERS AND INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Co-optees 
 
The independent remunerator’s report recommends a rate of allowance for co-opted 
members of £117 per meeting, to be calculated on an annualised basis by the 
number of meetings.  This recommended figure has not been adopted.  The 
Council’s own figure of £504.00 p.a. payable by equal monthly instalments of £42.00 
on the 15th of each month.   
 
Co-opted members shall be entitled to the same travel allowances as Councillors, 
but shall not be entitled to subsistence payments 
 
Standards Committee Independent Members 
 
The independent remunerator’s report also recommends the independent Chairman 
and Committee Members of a Standards Committee be paid an allowance of £256 
and £127 per meeting respectively, calculated on an annualised basis by the number 
of meetings, to reflect not just attendance at meetings, but related and incidental 
additional activity carried out by the postholders.  This recommendation has not been 
adopted.  The Council’s own figure of £252.00 p.a. payable by equal monthly 
instalments of £21.00 on the 15th of each month.   
 
In all cases, the allowances given in this scheme shall not be uprated by the same 
percentage rate of increase as the previous years national Local Government Pay 
Settlement but frozen at the 2008 – 9 levels. 
 

Page 878



APPENDIX 2 
 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.  We believe that the scheme of allowances that the panel recommended in 

2001, updated in line with local government pay awards, is still appropriate. We 
set out the five bands of responsibility with updated figures for the basic 
allowance and for the five bands. 

 
2.  We continue to believe that the roles identified in the 2006 report as attaching 

to the bands are still, in general terms, appropriate. Consultation has 
suggested other roles, but most are covered by the 2006 recommendations. 
We have added to the role descriptions in band one ‘community leaders’ and 
‘leaders of a specific major project’.  We appreciate that such responsibilities 
can provide development opportunities for the leaders of the future and are 
analogous to other responsibilities within band one. 

 
We also recommend the inclusion of ‘acting as a member of a committee or 
sub-committee which meets with exceptional frequency or for exceptionally 
long periods’ and ‘acting as a member of an adoption panel where membership 
requires attendance with exceptional frequency or for exceptionally long 
periods’. 

 
3.  With changes in local government structure and organisation, we accept that 

some cabinet roles may be more demanding than others. Although it may be 
sensible for many councils to remunerate cabinet members at the same level, 
we believe that there is sufficient width in band three to permit councils to 
recognise different levels of responsibility within the cabinet where this is 
appropriate. 

 
4.  In return for the levels of remuneration which we propose, it is important that 

councillors account publicly for their activities. We believe that: 
a. role descriptions should be developed for councillors for all their areas of 
work; 
b. the role descriptions should be placed on council websites; 
c. members should report publicly on their activity through a variety of channels 
as illustrated in the main report; and 
d. councils should consider the introduction of an appraisal system for 
members. 

 
5.  Councillors who, without reasonable cause, fail to discharge their duties should 

not claim the basic allowance. We believe that the legislation requiring only an 
attendance at a council meeting every six months should be tightened. 

 
6.  We endorse the recommendations of the 2006 report in relation to the chair 

and members of the standards committee. 
 
7.  We reiterate our view that only one SRA should be paid to a councillor in 

respect of duties with the same authority.  

Page 879



 
8.  Although councillors are not employees, we believe that it is reasonable that 

their special responsibility allowances should not cease in case of sickness, 
maternity and paternity leave in the same way that employees enjoy such 
entitlements. We continue to recommend that councils should be able to make 
arrangements in their schemes in appropriate circumstances to enable this to 
happen. 

 
 
9.  We continue to recommend that the allowances we recommend should be 

updated annually in accordance with the headline figure in the annual local 
government pay settlement. We appreciate that Regulation 10(1) of the Local 
Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 appears to 
require re-adoption of the scheme at the start of each municipal year. However 
Regulation 10(4) provides that the scheme will not be deemed amended by 
virtue only of adjustment of the scheme through indexation. If there is no other 
change a re-adoption can be achieved by a simple resolution. 

 
10.  While we continue to believe that intra-borough travel should be part of the 

basic allowance, we recognise that there are circumstances where it may be 
appropriate for a scheme to provide payment for the cost of transport e.g. 
journeys home after late meetings and for people with disabilities. In the case 
of dispute, we believe that the standards committee could adjudicate. 

 
11.  We strongly believe that there is need for rationalisation in the tax treatment of 

expenses borne by councillors and recommend that the Local Government 
Association be asked to pursue that at the national level, or failing that, London 
Councils attempt to achieve rationalisation on behalf of London. 

 
12.  We have consistently recommended that eligible councillors should be eligible 

for admission to the local government pension scheme and we continue to 
urge that councils should give their members this opportunity. 

 

Page 880


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes , 26/01/2011 Full Council

	6.1 Revenue Budget and Council Tax levels 2011/12
	Appendices B - D(part)
	Appendix D (continued)
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G

	6.2 Capital Programme 2011/12 to 2015/16
	Appendices 1 to 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	6.3 Treasury Management Strategy Report
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	6.4 Review of the Council's Constitution - Changes to Officer Schemes of Delegation and Minor Amendments
	Appendix

	6.5 Councillors Allowances Scheme: Revision
	Appendix 2


